
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA

MONDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2021 - 7:00 PM
ORION COMMUNITY CENTER

1335 JOSLYN ROAD
LAKE ORION, MI 48360

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
3. CITIZEN OF THE MONTH
4. PRESENTATION - Flooding Response
5. APPROVAL OF BILLS
6. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
8. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Minutes - Regular Meeting, October 4, 2021
B. Notice of Solicitation - Christ the Redeemer Community Outreach Project
C. Street Closure - Bald Mountain Road
D. Parks & Paths Bylaw Changes
E. Create Ord. 154 Subcommittee
F. Purchases - ARPA
G. Purchase - ARPA - Aerial Service Truck
H. Purchase - Facilities & Grounds Truck with Utility Crane
I. Purchase - Facilities & Grounds Truck with Plow
J. Purchase - Parks & Recreation Pickup
K. Hire Parks & Recreation Seasonal
L. Hire Firefighter
M. Matured, Called and Purchases of Securities & Bonds for Water/Sewer and General Accounts
N. CDBG  FY 2022 Public Hearing
O. Waive Permit Fees Associated with Storm Remediation
P. Updated Township Engineering Standards

9. PENDING
A. First Reading - PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone Request
B. First Reading - PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone Request
C. Second Reading - Township Initiated Text Amendment to Ord. 139
D. Schedule Budget Workshop

10. REPORTS
A. Police/Fire Reports
B. Community Survey

11. PUBLIC COMMENT
12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
13. ADJOURNMENT                

In the spirit of compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with a disability should feel free to 
contact Penny S. Shults, Clerk, at (248) 391-0304, ext. 4001, at least seventy-two hours in advance of the meeting to 
request accommodations.

2

3
6
9
13
17
21
54
61
67
71

74
75
82
83
84

123
155
179
213

214
218

1



10/18/2021

INVOICES
Total Checks

Non Board Bills 10/13/2021 $106,694.22
Board Bills 10/18/2021 $574,221.76

Total Invoices $680,915.98

Total Invoice Disbursements $680,915.98

PAYROLL

Total Gross

Regular Pay 10/13/2021 $240,083.47

FICA Expenses $14,806.09
Benefit Expenses $78,729.71

Total Payroll Disbursements $333,619.27

Grand Total Disbursements $1,014,535.25

Due to the conversion to the Pooled Cash Fund, total disbursements include
refunds from deposits, bonds & escrows which are not expenses to the township. 
The payroll check register shows deductions that are not expenses to the township.

             Prepared by Melissa Bardecki

2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2021

_____________________________________________________________________________

1.  CALL TO ORDER.  The Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees held a regular meeting on Monday, 
October 4, 2021 at Orion Center, 1335 Joslyn Road, Lake Orion, MI  48360. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Barnett, Penny Shults, Donni Steele, Brian Birney, Julia Dalrymple, 
and Kim Urbanowski 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Mike Flood (with notice)

OTHERS PRESENT:
Jerry Richards Richard Benoit David Cipriano  
Josh Yates Gary Robert Darren Ofiara
Kati DeMattia Lynn Hargrave

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE. Pastor Josh Yates gave the invocation, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance by Supervisor Chris Barnett. 

3. RECOGNITION. Supervisor Barnett honored retiring Lieutenant Dan Toth and recognized Lieutenant 
Darren Ofiara.

4. APPROVAL OF BILLS. Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Clerk Shults to authorize payment of 
bills in the amount of $1,532,159.96 and payrolls in the amount of $363,767.30, for a total disbursement of 
funds in the amount of $1,895,927.26, as presented.   AYES: Steele, Birney, Dalrymple, Urbanowski, Barnett, 
Shults   ABSENT: Flood   NAYS: None    MOTION CARRIED

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT. (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment. Public 
comment was heard. 

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA. 
Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Birney to approve the agenda, as presented. 
MOTION CARRIED

7.  CONSENT AGENDA. 

A.  Minutes – Board Workshop, September 20, 2021. Approve, as presented. 

B.  Minutes – Regular Meeting, September 20, 2021. Approve, as corrected. 

C.  Contract – Sherwood Auction Services. Approve the contract with Sherwood Auction Services and allow 
the Supervisor to execute the agreement.  

D. Agreement – Aramark Refreshment Services. Authorize the Township Supervisor to enter into a three-
year agreement with Aramark for refreshment services at the Municipal Complex and Sheriff Substation. 

E. Development Agreement for Parcel Number 09-26-300-014. Approve the Development Agreement with 
Milosch Leasing & Rental Inc. to govern its development of parcel number 09-26-300-014 and authorize the 
Township Supervisor to execute same.  

F. Purchase – Server Upgrade. Authorize the purchase of a server upgrade as quoted by I.T. Right in an 
3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2021

_____________________________________________________________________________

amount not to exceed $17,460.00.

G. Award Bid – Custodial Contract. Award bid for Custodial Services to AmeriClean and enter into a three-
year agreement for a total annual amount of $72,620.52, to start with the completion of the Municipal Complex. 

H. Award Bid – Friendship Park Tennis/Pickleball and Orion Center Trailhead Projects. Award the bid 
for paving the Friendship Park Tennis/Pickleball Courts and Orion Center Trailhead parking lot to Asphalt 
Specialists at a total cost not to exceed the $410,000.00 budgeted for these projects. 

I. PC-2021-78, The Woodlands PUD, Set Joint Public Hearing Date. Receive and file Board notice 
regarding proposed joint public hearing for OC-2021-78, The Woodlands PUD on October 20, 2021.

Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Birney to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented.   
AYES:  Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney, Dalrymple 
ABSENT:  Flood    NAYS: None      MOTION CARRIED

8.  PENDING BUSINESS.

A. Second Reading Ord. 154 Amendment. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Birney to approve 
the second reading of the amendments to the Orion Township Licensed Marihuana Facilities Ordinance 
(Ordinance No. 154) and authorize the Township Clerk to certify and file same and hereby set the application 
period for permits for Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers to begin on October 6, 2021, and end on 
November 5, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. AYES: Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney, Dalrymple
ABSENT: Flood     NAYS: None      MOTION CARRIED

Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Birney to approve the amendments to the Ordinance 154 Permit 
Application and Ordinance 154 renewal application with any minor amendments recommended by the 
Township Attorney and approved by the Township Supervisor. AYES: Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney, 
Dalrymple, Urbanowski   ABSENT: Flood    NAYS: None    MOTION CARRIED

B. Oakland County Park Passes Available for 2022. Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Birney 
to receive and file. AYES: Shults, Steele, Birney, Dalrymple, Urbanowski, Barnett   ABSENT: Flood  
NAYS: None    MOTION CARRIED

C. Purchase – ARPA Recommendations. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski to 
authorize using American Rescue Plan funding for the proposed expenditures in 2021, and authorize the 
Township Supervisor to execute all required purchase orders and agreements for the requested items. 
AYES: Steele, Birney, Dalrymple, Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults    ABSENT: Flood    NAYS: None
MOTION CARRIED

9.  REPORTS.

A.  Police/Fire Reports.  Moved by Trustee Birney, seconded by Treasurer Steele, to receive and file the reports, 
as presented.  MOTION CARRIED

B. NOTA Proposed 2022 Budget. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Birney, to receive and file the 
NOTA proposed 2022 budget, as presented. MOTION CARRIED4



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2021

_____________________________________________________________________________

C. Orion Township Public Library 2022 Budget Plan. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee 
Urbanowski to receive and file the Orion Township Public Library 2022 budget plan, as presented. MOTION 
CARRIED

D. Municipal Complex, September 2021 Executive Report. Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Clerk 
Shults to receive and file the September 2021 Municipal Complex Executive report, as presented. MOTION 
CARRIED

E. Community Survey. Presentation of 2021 Community Survey.

F. Financial Reports. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski to receive and file the 
Revenue/Expenditure & Balance Sheet reports, as presented. MOTION CARRIED

10.  PUBLIC COMMENT.  Public Comment was not heard.

11.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS.  Board member comments were heard.

12.  ADJOURNMENT.  Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski to adjourn.
MOTION CARRIED   The meeting was adjourned at 8:18 p.m.                                                                                                                                                                  

________________________________
      Penny S. Shults, Clerk

Transcription: J. London 

_____________________________
         Chris Barnett, Supervisor

              Charter Township of Orion

5



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Penny Shults, Township Clerk
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 11, 2021
Subject: Notice of Solicitation - Christ the Redeemer Community Outreach Project

REQUEST
Attached is a notice from Christ the Redeemer Catholic Church of their intent to collect personal care/hygiene items on 
behalf of local food pantries as part of a community outreach program to be conducted on Saturday, December 4, 2021.

REASON
Non-profit groups are requested t notice the Township of their intention; they are generally not subject to the licensing 
provision of the Ordinance. 

PROCESS
The notice has been provided for consideration. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board action would be to receive and file the notice of solicitation from Christ the Redeemer Community Outreach 
Project, with the Clerk to notify the OCSO of the request.  

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

6



7



8



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Penny Shults, Township Clerk
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 11, 2021
Subject: Request for Temporary Street Closure - Bald Mountain

REQUEST
Attached please find a request for Board approval to temporarily close off Bald Mountain Rd in the Hi-Hill subdivision on 
Sunday, October 31, 2021, from 5:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. to hold a subdivision Trick or Treat.  

REASON
The subdivision wishes to hold Trick or Treating. They do not plan to have any structures in the road that would not 
allow for quick passage of emergency vehicles. 

PROCESS
The request has been reviewed by the Fire Chief, DPW Director, and OCSO, and there were no concerns. The application 
has provided a petition signed by affected residents and a map indication the area affected. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board action would be to adopt the attached resolution allowing the temporary closure of Bald Mountain Rd from 5:00 
p.m. - 7:30 p.m. on October 31, 2021, subject to compliance with all Township requirements, and direct the Clerk to 
forward a copy of the resolution to the Road Commission.  

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

9



10



11



12



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Aaron Whatley, Parks & Recreation Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 14, 2021
Subject: Parks & Paths Committee Bylaws Amendment

REQUEST
The request before the board is to adopt the attached changes to the Parks & Paths Committee bylaws.  The 
amendments pertain to the dates of the committee meetings and procedure for amending the bylaws - see attached. 

REASON
The committee unanimously voted for these changes at their last meeting.  

PROCESS
Committee bylaw changes are required to be submitted to the board for approval.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board action would be to adopt the Parks & Paths Committee bylaws amendment, as presented.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

13



Page 1 of 2

Charter Township of Orion 
Parks & Paths Advisory Committee

Bylaws

These Bylaws are intended to state the rules adopted by The Parks & Paths Advisory Committee to conduct 
its meetings. It is the Committee’s intent that in adopting these rules and written uniform procedures for the 
conduct of its meetings, it will help facilitate the fair sharing of information with the public and the members 
of the Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees, hereinafter called the “Board.”

Section 1 - Name

The name of this organization shall be the Parks & Paths Advisory Committee, hereinafter called the
“Committee.”

Section 2 – Purpose

The purpose of this Committee is to communicate with, and forward recommendations to the Parks & 
Recreation Director and/or the Board on programming selection, program coordination, facility 
development, land acquisition, staffing, funding, construction priorities, and all maintenance of recreation 
facilities including parks, paths, and trails.

Section 3 - Members

The Committee shall be composed of seven (7) voting members: All members must be residents of Orion 
Township. One voting member shall be a Charter Township of Orion Board member. Members shall be of 
diverse interest and demographics and shall be appointed by the Board. The Committee may appoint non- 
voting members.

In addition, there shall be two (2) non-voting members. One non-voting member shall be the Orion Township 
employee responsible for parks & paths. The other non-voting member shall be an “alternate” who meets the 
same requirements as a voting member. The alternate will become a voting member in the absence of a voting 
member. The alternate will also automatically become a voting member upon the resignation or removal of a 
voting member, whereupon the Board shall appoint a new alternate.

Any member of the Committee may be removed by the Charter Township of Orion Board with cause by 
his/her unexcused absence of three (3) meetings during a single three-year term without notice, the 
Chairperson may request that a member be asked to resign, with a report to that effect shall be sent to the 
Township Supervisor along with a request to remove that member from the Committee and any office held by 
that member shall be vacated.

In the event a vacancy is created within the Committee, either by resignation or an inability to perform the 
functions of this office, a new alternate replacement will be appointed by the Board to fill that vacancy.

14



Charter Township of Orion Parks & Paths Advisory Committee Bylaws
 As adopted by the Township Board on 01/19/2021

Page 2 of 2

Section 4 – Offices

Chairperson: The Chairperson may establish committees, shall develop the agenda, preside at all meetings, 
and shall present an annual, mid-year report to the Board.

Vice-Chairperson: The Vice-Chairperson shall act in the absence of the Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson 
shall be responsible for periodically reviewing the condition of parks, paths, and recreation facilities and  
giving a mid-year report regarding such facilities to the Committee.

Secretary: The Secretary shall act in the absence of the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairperson. The Secretary 
shall keep the minutes of all the Committee meetings and forward a copy of them to the Supervisor’s Office. 
The Secretary shall also keep all other records of the Committee. Upon adoption of the minutes by a majority 
vote of the Committee, the Secretary shall have the authority to sign all minutes, and these minutes shall 
become a public record and a copy shall be forwarded to the Township Clerk’s office for distribution to the 
Township Board.

The Charter Township of Orion Board members shall be prohibited from holding an officer position.

Section 5 - Terms

Terms of members are three years.

The officers of the Committee shall be elected each year for one-year terms, by the Committee, at the first 
regular meeting in January. The new elected officers are to preside at the next meeting and shall hold office 
until their successors’ are elected and assume office in the next year.

Section 6 – Meetings

The regular meeting of the Committee shall be held on the third Thursday of even odd months beginning at 
6:00p.m. Adjourned or special meetings may be held at any time or place established by the Committee. The 
Chairperson, Parks & Recreation Director, or any four (4) Committee members may call special meetings. 
Meeting will be limited to two (2) hours in length with a unanimous vote required to extend the meeting.

The Committee shall abide by the provisions of the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended.

Section 7 - The Order of Business

A. The order of business for a Regular Meeting shall be:

1. Call to order by the Chairperson
2. Roll Call
3. Determination of a quorum
4. Approval of minutes of last preceding meeting
5. Approval of Agenda
6. Public Comments
7. Pending Business
8. New Business

15



Charter Township of Orion Parks & Paths Advisory Committee Bylaws
 As adopted by the Township Board on 01/19/2021

Page 3 of 2

9. Reports
10. Committee Comments
11. Adjournment

C. The Chairperson shall have the discretion of changing the order of business, with approval of the 
Committee, whenever it is advisable to do so either before, or during the progress of the meeting.

D. The order of business for the Annual Meeting, to be the Committee’s first regular Meeting in January, 
shall be:

1. Call to order by the Chairperson
2. Roll Call
3. Determination of a quorum
4. Public Comment
5. Election of new officers
6. Regular order of business
7. Committee Comment
8. Adjournment

Section 8 - Quorum

For the transaction of ordinary business, at any Regular, Adjourned or Special Meeting, four (4) members 
shall constitute a quorum. An affirmative vote of at least four (4) members of the Committee shall be 
necessary in order to make a decision.

Section 9 - Amendment of Bylaws

Changes to these Bylaws may be made or added to by the affirmative vote of five (5) out of seven (7) members. 
Bylaw changes shall be submitted to the Orion Township Clerk’s office for Board approval. 

16



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor 

Meeting Date: October 18, 2021 

Memo Date: October 14, 2021 

Subject: Create Ordinance 154 Subcommittee 

 

REQUEST 
The request is to create a subcommittee to review medical marihuana provisioning center applications and make 
recommendations to the Board of Trustees.  

REASON 
The Orion Township Board of Trustees approved the second reading of Ordinance 154 at the October 4, 2021 Board of 
Trustees meeting, which included revisions authorizing a limited number of Facilities to be licensed in the Township to 
provide safe and more conveniently available Medical Marihuana for Township residents that are qualifying patients or 
primary caregivers. At that time, the Board of Trustees established a 30-day, limited period in which to receive 
applications. The Board of Trustees established a limit of four medical marihuana provisioning centers to operate in the 
Township. It is recommended for the Board to establish a subcommittee of Township personnel to review the 
applications received during the application period, and make a recommendation to the Board of Trustees for award of 
the permits.  

PROCESS 
It is recommended the review committee consist of the following members: 

• Trustee Brian Birney 

• Trustee Julia Dalrymple 

• Planning & Zoning Director Tammy Girling 

• Building Official David Goodloe 

• Chief of Staff Samantha Timko 

• Assistant to the Clerk Jillian London 

• Representative from the Kelly Firm, Township Attorney 
 
Following the closing of the 30-day application window, the subcommittee will convene to review all the applications 
received, utilizing the standards included in Ordinance 154, Article X, and will bring to the Board recommendations for 
award of the four available permits. Following Board decision, the applicants will seek site plan approval following 
established Township processes and procedures within the Zoning Ordinance.   

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
The recommended motion is to create an Ordinance 154 Subcommittee consisting of the Township personnel identified 
in this memo, and charge the subcommittee with review of the permit applications received for Medical Marihuana 
Provisioning Centers and provide the Board of Trustees with their recommendation of the four establishments to receive 
the available permits. 
 

 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

17



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND  

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH AN ORDINANCE NO. 154 

SUBCOMMITTEE 
 

 At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Orion, Oakland 

County, Michigan (the “Township’), held on October 18, 2021. 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

 The following Resolution was offered by       and seconded 

by      : 

 WHEREAS, on October 4, 2021, the Township approved the Second Reading of its 

Ordinance No. 154 (Licensed Marihuana Facilities Ordinance), which designated Medical 

Marihuana Provisioning Centers as an allowable use within the Industrial Park “IP” District, 

subject to Township and State approval; and 

 WHEREAS, the Township shall only accept applications between the dates of October 

6, 2021, and November 5, 2021, until 4:00 p.m. (the “Application Period”); and 

 WHEREAS, upon close of the Application Period, the Township has thirty (30) days to 

approve up to four (4) medical marihuana provisioning center permits and intends to consider 

applications for the permit(s) at its November 15, 2021, meeting; and 

 WHEREAS, the Township Board of Trustees intends to create a Subcommittee for 

purposes of making a recommendation to the Board of Trustees with regard to the medical 

marihuana provisioning center permits to be issued, with such recommendation being based 

upon the criteria set forth herein;  

 WHEREAS, those applications that are incomplete (i.e., missing information or 

documentation) and/or those applications that do not meet the location requirements set forth in 
18



2 

 

Ordinance No. 154 (Art. VI) shall not be recommended for approval by the Subcommittee to the 

Board of Trustees unless the Township has not received at least four (4) applications that comply 

with the Ordinance location requirements; and 

 WHEREAS, the remaining applications shall be ranked by the Subcommittee based 

upon the number of criteria met in Section X of Ordinance No. 154; and 

 WHEREAS, such Subcommittee members shall include the Building Official, Director 

of Planning and Zoning, a Township employee to be selected by the Township Supervisor, a 

Township employee to be selected by the Township Clerk, and two (2) of the elected Trustees of 

the Orion Township Board of Trustees.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Orion does 

hereby establish an Ordinance 154 Subcommittee for purposes of providing recommendations to 

the Board of Trustees with regard to the applications received during the Application Period; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Subcommittee shall meet between the last date of 

applications, November 5, 2021, and November 15, 2021; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Ordinance 154 Subcommittee shall provide 

recommendations to the Board of Trustees with regard to the issuance of Ordinance No. 154 

Permits to Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers; however, such recommendations shall not 

be binding on the Board of Trustees; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Ordinance No. 154 Subcommittee shall evaluate 

Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers as set forth herein, and the Subcommittee may within 

its discretion, recommend more than four (4) applications to the Board of Trustees for 

consideration; however, the number of permits approved by the Board of Trustees for Medical 

Marihuana Provisioning Centers shall not exceed four (4) permits. 

 

19



3 

 

 RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.  

YEAS:      

NAYS:     

 

ABSTENTIONS:    

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

 ) ss. 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted at 

a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Orion, Oakland County, Michigan, on October 18, 

2021, the original of which is on file in my office. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this 18th day of 

October, 2021. 

 

             

     Clerk Penny Shults 

     Charter Township of Orion 

 

20



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor 

Meeting Date: October 18, 2021 

Memo Date: October 13, 2021 

Subject: Purchases - ARPA 

 

REQUEST 
The request is to authorize ARPA purchases.  

REASON 
A list of ARPA purchase recommendations was provided to the Township Board on October 4, 2021. At that time, the 
Board requested to see the detailed quotes of the items being requested for purchase.  

PROCESS 
Below are ARPA purchases being requested for Board approval: 

• $10,890.00 – Touchless timeclock embedded with an RFID reader to allow employees to use their door access 
key fobs to clock in and out for the day, instead of their thumbprint and passcode, which is the current process.  
The attached quote was obtained from our current timekeeping provider to ensure the equipment will work 
with the Township’s timekeeping system.  PO # - 21-0597 

• $38,573.01 – Laptop and remote computing equipment, to allow employees to work remotely as needed.  The 
quote was obtained from Dell utilizing public purchasing contract pricing. Note – the $4,185.70 for the five 
OptiPlex 3280 AIO will be charged to the Municipal Building Fund as part of the budgeted owner-procured 
items, not the ARPA fund.  PO # - 21-0598 

• $9,436.00 – Touchless soap dispensers and paper towel dispensers at the Municipal Complex and Sheriff 
substation. This pricing was obtained through the Municipal Complex construction project bidding process.  

• $41,800.00 – Replacement digital sign at the Orion Center for enhanced public communication. Pricing was 
obtained through the Municipal Complex construction project bidding process.  PO # - 21-0602 

• $57,320.00 – Digital sign at the Municipal Complex for enhanced public communication. Pricing was obtained 
through the Municipal Complex construction project bidding process.  PO # 21-0570 

BUDGET 

 
 

 

Fund Name: 258 - Disaster 
Contingency 

 Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Purchase Order Number: Multiple  Expected Invoice Date: 11/1/2021 

Budget Adjustment Needed: ☐  Reviewed by Budget Director: ☒ 

 
AMENDED 

BUDGET 
AVAILABLE 
BALANCE COST 

REMAINING 
BUDGET 

2021 Federal Funding $750,000 $178,952.85 $158,019.01 $20,933.84 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

21



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 

 

Item Description Vendor Name PO Number 
ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME COST 

Touchless Timeclock Ascentis Corporation 21-0597 258-426-930.000  – Repairs & 
Maint. - Bldg 

$9,075 

   258-426-807.000 - Data 
Processing 

$1,815 

     

Laptops & Remote 
Computing Equipment 

Dell 21-0598 258-426-740.000 - Operating 
Supplies 

$38,573.01 

     

Touchless Soap 
Dispensers & Paper 
Towel Dispensers 

Cunningham Limp N/A 258-426-930.000  – Repairs & 
Maint. - Bldg 

$9,436 

     

Replacement Digital Sign 
– Orion Center 

Signgraphix, Inc 21-0602 258-426-977.00 - Capital 
Outlay - Equipment 

$41,800 

     

Digital Sign – Municipal 
Complex 

Signgraphix, Inc 21-0570 258-426-977.00 - Capital 
Outlay - Equipment 

57,320 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
The recommended motion is to authorize using American Rescue Plan funding for the proposed expenditures and 
authorize the Township Supervisor to execute all required purchase orders and agreements for the requested items. 
 

 

 

22



Add-On Order Form

OR

          ADD-ON ORDER FORM             SEPTEMBER 27, 2021 1

Effective Date:  09-27-2021
Number of Individuals: 142

Quotation Valid Until: 10-17-2021

Client Name:  THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION Sales Representative:  Jack Teske
Contact:  Phone:  
Shipping Address:  2525 Joslyn Rd
Lake Orion, MI 483601951

Subscription Start Date:  10-01-2021
Subscription End Date:  09-30-2023

Products and Services Selected

Product Quantity
 

 NT8000 Black - HID Proximity 3

 

 Gold Annual Hardware Maintenance 1

Add On PIPM*: $0.00
Total Annual Recurring SaaS Fees: $0.00

Total One-Time Fees: $9,075.00
Total Clock Rental/Flex Clock Cost per Month (if applicable): $0.00

Total Annual Maintenance Fee (if applicable): $1,815.00
First Year Total: $10,890.00

*The amount shown has been rounded for display purposes. As many as eight decimal places may be present in the
actual amount. The totals for this order were calculated using the actual amount and are the true and binding totals for this 
Order.

Agreement and Execution

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO LIABILITIES ARISING OUT OF EITHER PARTY’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS, IN 
NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY (OR ANY OF ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES, SUBSIDIARIES, AFFILIATES, OR 
AGENTS), BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, (INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, LOST BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY, OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) RESULTING FROM OR IN CONNECTION WITH 
CLIENT’S USE OF THE TEMPERATURE READING AND VOICE CONTROL FEATURES OF HARDWARE BOUGHT OR LEASED BY CLIENT, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE PARTY WAS ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES, OR SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E7F621DF-B487-4E42-90B2-B7C8748B8C6A

23



     

          ORDER FORM            September 27, 2021 2

WERE OTHERWISE FORESEEABLE, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ANY AGREED OR OTHER REMEDY OF ITS ESSENTIAL 
PURPOSE.

A description of the Services and related use rights referenced in this Add-On Order Form (as well as other Ascentis Service offerings not 
purchased hereunder) is available at https://www.ascentis.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/service-descriptions-Product-
Descriptions-9.2021.pdf  (the “Services Description”). All purchases of Services, products or equipment hereunder are governed by the 
Agreement between Client and Ascentis.

Total First Year Fees are due net 15 days, or as aligned with your original and initially set payment schedule, whichever comes first, from 
the date that this Order Form is executed by Client.  Late fees may apply to overdue accounts.  These Fees do not include applicable sales 
taxes or hardware delivery. Data Exports require payment in advance. 

By signing below, Client agrees that the terms of the Agreement, including its existing billing method, renewal and renewal term, and 
payment method, shall apply to the products or services referenced on this Order Form. Client has accepted and caused this Order Form to 
be executed by its duly authorized representative as of the Effective Date set forth above. 

Client Legal Name: THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION Ascentis Corporation
By:   \s1\ By: \s2\

Printed Name: \n1\ Printed Name:  \n2\

Title: \t1\ Title:  \t2\
Date: \d1\ Date: \d2\

DocuSign Envelope ID: E7F621DF-B487-4E42-90B2-B7C8748B8C6A

Chris Barnett

Chief Assistant

24

https://www.ascentis.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/service-descriptions-Product-Descriptions-9.2021.pdf
https://www.ascentis.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/service-descriptions-Product-Descriptions-9.2021.pdf


	

	

	 	
	
	
PRICE	QUOTATION	
(Valid	for	30	days)	 Quote	no.:	25503	
	

Client:		 CHARTER	TOWNSHIP	OF	ORION						 Date:		September	20,	2021	
	 1335	Joslyn	Road		

Lake	Orion,	MI	48360		 Project:	Orion	Center	Monument	Sign							
	 	 	 	
	
	 	
Attention:		 Aaron	T.	Whatley		 								Design	no.:		A-2361	 Presented	by:		 Anne	Vinstra		
	 	

1	
	

8457 Andersonville Road, Suite H     Clarkston, MI 48346    (O) 248.848.1700     (F) 248.848.1722

It	is	our	pleasure	to	submit	this	quotation	to	manufacture	and	install	new	faces	and	electronic	
message	centers	for	the	monument	sign	located	at	the	Orion	Center.	The	faces	shall	have	a	painted	
finish	with	applied	vinyl	graphics.	They	shall	be	mechanically	fastened	to	the	existing	structure	using	
concealed	fasteners.	The	new	electronic	message	centers	shall	be	24”H	x	84”	Wide	with	fill	color	
graphics	and	an	8mm	pixel	pitch	to	match	the	other	message	centers	in	Orion	Township.		
The	existing	faces	and	EMCs	shall	be	removed	at	the	same	time	as	the	new	faces	and	EMCs	are	
installed.		
	
Prices:	
2	–	New	Faces	for	Existing	Monument	Sign	 $37,400.00	
	 	 (2)	28”H	x	90-1/4”	Wide	Header	Panels	
	 	 (2)	24”H	x	84”	Wide	Full	Color	8mm	EMCs	
	 	 (2)	18”H	x	90-1/4”	Wide	Bottom	Panels		 	
Installation	Materials		 125.00	 	
Design	Services	 325.00	 	
Installation			 3,950.00	
Total		 	 $41,800.00	
	
Cost	Savings	Option:	10mm	Full	Color	Electronic	Message	Centers	
	 	 (for	this	option	subtract	this	amount	from	the	above	total)	 -	$3,817.00	
	
	
Allowance	for	Permit	Fees	and	City	Approval	Costs		
(Not	included	in	the	above	total)	 $.00	
	

Allowance	for	Engineered	Drawings		
(Not	included	in	the	above	total)	 $.00	
	
	
	
	

25



	

	

	 	
	
	
PRICE	QUOTATION	
(Valid	for	30	days)	 Quote	no.:	25503	
	

Client:		 CHARTER	TOWNSHIP	OF	ORION						 Date:		September	20,	2021	
	 1335	Joslyn	Road		

Lake	Orion,	MI	48360		 Project:	Orion	Center	Monument	Sign							
	 	 	 	
	
	 	
Attention:		 Aaron	T.	Whatley		 								Design	no.:		A-2361	 Presented	by:		 Anne	Vinstra		
	 	

1	
	

8457 Andersonville Road, Suite H     Clarkston, MI 48346    (O) 248.848.1700     (F) 248.848.1722

Terms:	 	 All	invoices	are	due	within	30	days	of	the	invoice	date	unless	prior		
	 	 arrangements	have	been	made.	
	
Conditions:	 1.	 Permit	costs,	engineer	sealed	drawings,	variance	fees,	and	other	city	approval		
	 	 costs	shall	be	charged	to	the	allowance	amount	as	stated	above.	Final	costs	for	these	items	will	
	 	 be	reflected	in	the	final	invoice	for	the	project.		
	 2.	 Additional	charges	may	be	incurred	if	the	artwork	provided	requires	design	work	to	prepare	the	

image	for	manufacturing.		
	 3.	 Colors	shall	be	determined	from	manufacturer’s	standard	selection	unless	custom	PMS	colors	

have	been	specified	in	the	design	drawings.	
	 4.	 Client	to	provide	PMS	(Pantone)	color	reference	number	codes	or	paint	brand	reference	number	

codes.	Paint	brand	reference	codes	will	be	computer	matched	for	manufacturing.	
	 5.	 Miss	Dig	will	be	notified	to	mark	underground	utilities	for	exterior	ground	sign	installations	along	

roadways.	Identification	of	other	underground	utilities,	not	marked	by	Miss	Dig,	including	
sprinkler	lines,	is	the	responsibility	of	the	property	owner	or	tenant.	SignGraphix	is	not	
responsible	for	damage	done	to	utilities/sprinkler	lines	that	have	not	been	marked.		

	 6.	 277	or	120	Volt	primary	electrical	service	is	by	others.	
	 7.	 Please	be	advised	that	the	National	Electrical	Code	(NEC	2005)	establishes	specific	regulations	
	 	 regarding	installation	of	conductors	and	equipment	for	electric	signs,	as	described	on	Article	600.	
	 	 The	NEC	requires	each	sign	to	have	it’s	own	dedicated	circuit	rated	at	20	AMPS	in	accordance		
	 	 With	Article	600.5	(A).	It	is	the	responsibility	of	the	purchaser	to	furnish	electrical	circuits	and		
	 	 equipment	that	fully	comply	with	the	requirements	of	the	NEC.	
	 8.	 Installation	is	based	on	“normal”	soil	conditions	(in	a	landscaped	area)	free	of	any	unseen	

obstructions	below	ground.	“Winter	Conditions”	(i.e.,	snow	removal,	frozen	ground,	ice,	etc)	may	
result	in	additional	cost	to	client.	

	 9.	 Installation	prices	are	based	on	our	ability	to	run	electrical	service	from	each	letter,	through	 	
	 	 the	exterior	building	wall	and	into	a	clear	and	open	working	area	behind	the	wall	in	order	to	

connect	the	sign	wiring	to	the	primary	electrical	from	the	building.		
	 10.	 Installation	of	exterior	vinyl	requires	temperatures	of	above	50º.		
	 11.	 Due	to	ultraviolet	degradation	and	aging	of	the	original	paint,	an	image	of	the	existing	vinyl	copy	
	 	 may	be	seen	when	the	vinyl	is	removed	and	replaced,	known	as	“ghosting.”	
	 12.	 Installation	price	does	not	include	repair	or	replacement	of	existing	electrical	components	
	 	 including,	but	not	limited	to	lamps,	ballasts,	transformers,	etc.	
	 13.	 Removal	of	existing	exterior	signs	and	installation	of	new	exterior	signs	could	result	in	landscape	

damage.		Any	landscape	repairs	needed	would	be	by	others	and	are	not	included	in	this	contract.	
This	includes	any	damage	done	to	underground	sprinkler	systems.		

	 14.	 Prices	are	contingent	upon	performing	all	of	the	work	as	specified	above.			
																																15.							Due	to	the	temperature	sensitivity	of	exterior	vinyl,	installations	will	require	a	temperature	of	50	
																																													degrees	or	warmer	to	properly	adhere.	

26



	

	

	 	
	
	
PRICE	QUOTATION	
(Valid	for	30	days)	 Quote	no.:	25503	
	

Client:		 CHARTER	TOWNSHIP	OF	ORION						 Date:		September	20,	2021	
	 1335	Joslyn	Road		

Lake	Orion,	MI	48360		 Project:	Orion	Center	Monument	Sign							
	 	 	 	
	
	 	
Attention:		 Aaron	T.	Whatley		 								Design	no.:		A-2361	 Presented	by:		 Anne	Vinstra		
	 	

1	
	

8457 Andersonville Road, Suite H     Clarkston, MI 48346    (O) 248.848.1700     (F) 248.848.1722

	 16.	 Installation	cost	includes	on	site	delivery.	If	client	does	not	elect	the	installation	option,	the	
ordered	items	will	be	available	for	pick-up	at	our	office	in	Clarkston,	MI	or	can	be	
shipped/delivered	to	the	client’s	location	for	an	additional	cost.	

	 17.		 Painting	of	exterior	signs	requires	temperatures	above	55	degrees	for	at	least		
	 	 three	consecutive	days.		
	 18.	 SignGraphix	assumes	no	responsibility	for	the	structural	integrity,	electrical	components,	or	
	 	 overall	condition	of	any	existing	signage.		
	
	 	
We	propose	to	manufacture	and	install	or	furnish	the	items	described	in	this	proposal,	subject	to	the	
terms	and	conditions	set	forth	above.		Prices	charged	for	services	rendered	and/or	items	manufactured	
are	quoted	based	on	supporting	documents	including,	but	not	limited	to	design	drawings,	sign	
schedules,	site	plans,	etc.	
	
Design	drawings	and	message	schedules	must	be	signed	by	client	and	returned	with	this	
signed	quotation	as	graphic	approval.	
	
Due	to	the	custom	nature	of	this	order,	a	50%	deposit	is	required.		
	
	
Charter	Township	of	Orion							 	
	
SIGNATURE	_____________________________________________DATE	ACCEPTED	_________________________	
	
PRINTED	NAME		_________________________________________	  
	
PO/CONTRACT	NUMBER	_________________________________		(email	or	fax	copy	of	PO	to	office)	
	
	

	
	
	

PRESENTED	BY			Anne Vinstra	
SignGraphix, Inc.
8457 Andersonville Road, Suite H
Clarkston, MI 48346 
(O) 248.848.1700 27



Last Update:

Name of Project:

Accepted Approved
Item Description of Work Cost Y/N Total Contingency

Beginning Contingency Balance 500,000$         

Approved Items:

1 Credit for Trench Footing & Sheriff Station (21,080)$          Y 21,080             

2 Additional 4" Conduit from Scrips to Township Hall 9,515               Y (9,515)              

3 Sheriff Department wainscot options
Shipping 1,000               Y (1,000)              
A+B = 300lf 

Acrovyn 12,250             Y (12,250)            

4 Bullen #3
Blocking for columns & added door install 2,734               Y (2,734)              
lighting control added 3,872               Y (3,872)              
one line electrical changes 2,970               Y (2,970)              
door 228 glass light (glass only) 132                  Y (132)                 
Door 228 (supply) & head height adjustments 2,228               Y (2,228)              
VE Item Coordination

5 Additional DTE Manhole 21,890             Y (21,890)            
(possible additional cost for smaller manhole)

6 Bulletin #4 / 5 / Locker room Sketch
Electrical Changes (generator, service receptacles, FPB-20 3,533               Y (3,533)              
Sheriff's station duct work modifications 24,420             Y (24,420)            
Additional Bulkhead per Sketch 1,962               Y (1,962)              

7 Increase PSAN size from 2" to 3" NC

8 Board Room trench footing credit No impact

9 RFI # 84
(3) Additional Boiler Exhaust Mufflers per returned submittal 6,050               Y (6,050)              

10 Dens Element Premium 8,250               NC

11 Door 22A modifications
Hardware 418                  Y (418)                 
Glass 1,568               Y (1,568)              

12 Shower enclosures 8,400               Y (8,400)              
Shower wall tile 3,170               Y (3,170)              

13 Revised Drinking fountain NC

14 (5) EV Chargers 49,802             Y (49,802)            

15 Cost to provide Electric rough in within burnished block 8,250               Y (8,250)              

September 28, 2021

Orion Township Hall 

Budget Tracking Sheet

Page 1 of 4

28



16 Additional insulation and concrete for original snowmelt area's
Colored concrete area 10,890             Y (10,890)            
Standard concrete area's 9,174               Y (9,174)              

17 Sally Port Carbon Monoxide System 
Fans, sensors panels 10,010             Y (10,010)            
Electrical 1,485               Y (1,485)              
Louver, Siding, Interlock Doors 1,500               Y (1,500)              

18 Sheriffs Station Canopies
Additional 110 LF and (3) stubs for DP connections 3,500               Y (3,500)              
Relocation of Light Fixtures 1,000               Y (1,000)              
Mapes Canopies (12-14w lead time) 17,685             Y (17,685)            
Optional 3rd Canopy 6,753               Y (6,753)              

19 Additional Gas line to Balcony and basement patio 1,559               NC

20 Change (1) lav in Sheriff's Station to (1) Urinal 607                  NC

21 Add Acrovyn to Room 225B 2,057               Y (2,057)              

22 RFI #078 - auto soap dispenser 2,924               Y (2,924)              

23 Upgraded Kitchen Faucets (Moen) 1,906               NC

24 Attic Insulation
Sheriff's station 7,678               Y (7,678)              

25 Office 148 / 149 carpet modifications NC
-                       

26 Additional Urinal Screen @ SS 505                  NC

27 Added masonry wall 169 (detail 12 on 502) 5,175               Y (5,175)              

28 Add 2 ADA door operators 10,962             Y (10,962)            

29 Additional colored concrete 8,030               Y (8,030)              

30 Additional Mailbox along plaza drive 2,670               Y (2,670)              

31 Additional Gas Lines to patios 6,300               Y (6,300)              

32 Motion activated paper towel dispensers 6,512               Y (6,512)              

Total Items In Change Order No. 1 270,213$         -                       

Previous Contract Amount 16,854,000      

Change In Contingency (257,389)          

Revised Contract Amount 16,854,000$    

Revised Contingency Amount 242,611$         

The Contract Time For This Work Will Be Increased by 25 days.

Pending Items:

1 RFI # 109 - Door Swing for 018A TBD

2 Modification to Electrical room 024 TBD

3 Final Coordination of the mechanical room TBD

4 Sheriff's station door frames TBD

5 Vanity Aprons 6,530               Pending

6 Attic Insulation
Township hall 18,464             Pending

7 HVAC Curb Adaptors (internal review underway)

8 Kennedy Industries antenna move 26,602             
Additional scope requested & performed by Orion Township

9 Reduced Gas Line size per RFI #133
Mega Press Fittings (If Approved) (8,600)              Y

10 Flat Black Dryfall above woodwork ceilings 7,150               Y

11 Additional room in basement 7,277               Y

12 Ceiling rm 102 & 105 1,381               Y

Page 2 of 4

29

stimko
Highlight

stimko
Highlight



Declined Items

1 Sheriff Department wainscot options
Acrovyn 37.50               Declined
Hardtop Formica 48.50               Declined
Korogard-Koroseal 40.00               Declined

A = 145lf
Acrovyn 6,438               Declined
hardtop Formica 8,033               Declined
Korogard-Koroseal 6,800               Declined

A+B = 300lf 
hardtop Formica 15,550             Declined
Korogard-Koroseal 13,000             Declined

2 SP-2 upgrade 6,425               Declined

3 Pathway to Scripps
Earthwork & Grading TBD
Concrete options TBD
Asphalt options TBD

Credit for Spiral in Locker Room
~ HVAC Credit (3,000)              Pending
~Carpentry Credit (885)                 Pending
~paint adjustment 1,250               Pending
~ budget for K13 in Men's Room only. 4,000               pending

4 Architectural Fabrication 
(3) Helios Canopies 21,473             Pending

5 Plaza Covered Walkway (budget) Conceptual Budget
Additional 300 sf of snow melt 10,560             
Additional concrete and insulation 3,300               
Foundations 7,800               
Lighting  & Light Fixture Allowance 3,800               
Fascia & Panels 7,500               
Roofing 7,500               
Structural Steel 70,200             
Paint underside 1,000               

Planning Range $110,000 - 130,000

6 Server Room 170 split system
Split system 8,800               N
Power Feed 2,530               N
Frame / Flashing / misc. 1,155               N

7 Additional snow melt areas
Concrete & Snowmelt cost

Add area 1B (appx 375sf) 14,190             N -                       
Add area 2 (appx 1100sf) 24,530             N -                       
Add area 3 (appx 1650sf) 21,890             N -                       

Additional equipment for  increased snowmelt per SES
(1) Boiler, (1) pump, (2) pump size increases 68,750             N
SES Engineering - by others 2,800               N
AKA additional services by others TBD

Page 3 of 4

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



A quote for your consideration
Based on your business needs, we put the following quote together to help with your

purchase decision. Below is a detailed summary of the quote we’ve created to help you with
your purchase decision.

To proceed with this quote, you may respond to this email, order online through your
Premier page, or, if you do not have Premier, use this Quote to Order.

Quote No. 3000101025610.1
Total $42,758.71
Customer # 21974127
Quoted On Oct. 04, 2021
Expires by Oct. 29, 2021

Contract Name
Dell National Cooperative
Purchasing Alliance-NCPA
Master Agreement

Contract Code C000000005600
Customer Agreement # NCPA 01-42
Deal ID 22147789

Sales Rep Betsy Salinas
Phone (800) 456-3355, 6179115
Email Betsy_Salinas@Dell.com
Billing To ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

ORION TOWNSHIP 
2525 JOSLYN RD 
LAKE ORION, MI 48360-1951

Message from your Sales Rep

Please contact your Dell sales representative if you have any questions or when you're ready to place an order. Thank
you for shopping with Dell! 

Regards,
Betsy Salinas

Shipping Group

Shipping To
JULIANNE SAVARD 
ORION TOWNSHIP 
2525 JOSLYN RD 
LAKE ORION, MI 48360-1951 
(248) 391-0304

Shipping Method
Standard Delivery

Product Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Latitude 7220 $1,837.89 8 $14,703.12

Dell Latitude 3520 $836.75 23 $19,245.25

OptiPlex 3280 AIO $837.14 5 $4,185.70

iKey Detachable Keyboard for Dell Rugged Extreme Tablet $323.99 8 $2,591.92

Desktop Dock for the Latitude 12 Rugged Tablet $254.09 8 $2,032.72

Page 1
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

46

http://www.dell.com/account
http://www.dell.com/qto
mailto:Betsy_Salinas@Dell.com


Subtotal:
Shipping:

Environmental Fee:
Non-Taxable Amount:

Taxable Amount:
Estimated Tax:

Total:

$42,758.71
$0.00
$0.00

$42,758.71
$0.00
$0.00

$42,758.71

Page 2
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

47



Shipping Group Details

Shipping To
JULIANNE SAVARD 
ORION TOWNSHIP 
2525 JOSLYN RD 
LAKE ORION, MI 48360-1951 
(248) 391-0304

Shipping Method
Standard Delivery

Quantity Subtotal

Dell Latitude 7220
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Nov. 18, 2021
Contract # C000000005600
Customer Agreement # NCPA 01-42

$1,837.89 8 $14,703.12

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Latitude 7220 Rugged, CTO 210-ATEF - 8 -

8th Generation Intel Core i5-8365U Processor (4 Core,6MB
Cache,1.6GHz,15W) 379-BDQV - 8 -

Windows 10 Pro English, French, Spanish 619-AHKN - 8 -

No Microsoft Office License Included – 30 day Trial Offer Only 658-BCSB - 8 -

Intel Core i5-8365U with u-blox NEO-M8 GPS card 8GB Memory 338-BTPT - 8 -

No Out-of-Band Systems Management - vPro Disabled 631-ACHF - 8 -

8GB 2133MHz LPDDR3 Memory 370-AFCZ - 8 -

M.2 256GB PCIe NVMe Class 40 Solid State Drive 400-BGWQ - 8 -

11.6", FHD (1920 x 1080), 1000 Nit Outdoor-Readable, AG/AS/AP,
Glove-Capable Touchscreen 391-BEVG - 8 -

Intel Wi-Fi 9560 Driver with Bluetooth 555-BFIU - 8 -

Intel Dual Band Wireless AC 9560 (802.11ac) 2x2 555-BFJV - 8 -

No Mobile Broadband Card 362-BBBB - 8 -

2-cell 34wH) Lithium Ion Primary Battery 451-BCCD - 8 -

45 Watt AC Adapter 450-AEHK - 8 -

No Security Software 650-AAJS - 8 -

No Media 620-AAOH - 8 -

US Power Cord 537-BBBL - 8 -

Latitude Rugged 7220 Getting Started Guide 340-COCF - 8 -

US Order 332-1286 - 8 -

No Carrying Case 460-BBEX - 8 -

No Secondary Battery 451-BCOI - 8 -

SERI Guide (ENG/FR/Multi) 340-AGIK - 8 -

Custom Configuration 817-BBBB - 8 -

System Regulatory Label 389-DRXP - 8 -

Regulatory Label (WLAN) 389-DRXQ - 8 -

Windows 10 Additional Software 658-BEPO - 8 -

Shipping Material, Shuttle 340-AQMD - 8 -

Directship Info Mod 340-CKTD - 8 -

Page 3
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

48



No Option Included 340-ACQQ - 8 -

No Mouse 570-AADK - 8 -

No Removable CD/DVD Drive 429-AATO - 8 -

ENERGY STAR Qualified 387-BBNJ - 8 -

BTO Standard shipment Air 800-BBGF - 8 -

No UPC Label 389-BDCE - 8 -

5 MP HD IR webcam /8 MP rear camera with Flash and Dual
Microphone 319-BBHH - 8 -

WLAN Chassis No NFC 321-BEZF - 8 -

Connector for I/O Expansion 750-ABNN - 8 -

Mini Serial Port 325-BDNX - 8 -

Hazardous Locations Certification 340-CNKH - 8 -

No Security 461-AAHD - 8 -

No AutoPilot 340-CKSZ - 8 -

No Removable CD/DVD Drive 429-AATO - 8 -

ProSupport: Next Business Day Onsite, 3 Years 804-0500 - 8 -

Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//support.dell.com/ProSupport 989-3449 - 8 -

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Initial Year 997-6988 - 8 -

ProSupport: 7x24 Technical Support, 3 Years 997-6995 - 8 -

Quantity Subtotal

Dell Latitude 3520
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Oct. 15, 2021
Contract # C000000005600
Customer Agreement # NCPA 01-42

$836.75 23 $19,245.25

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Latitude 3520, BTX 210-AYNQ - 23 -

11th Generation Intel Core i5-1135G7 (4 Core, 8M cache, base
2.4GHz, up to 4.2GHz) 379-BEMW - 23 -

Windows 10 Pro English, French, Spanish 619-AHKN - 23 -

No Microsoft Office License Included – 30 day Trial Offer Only 658-BCSB - 23 -

Intel i5-1135G7, Intel Iris Xe Graphics 338-BZCS - 23 -

8GB, 1x8GB, DDR4 Non-ECC 370-AFVS - 23 -

M.2 256GB PCIe NVMe Class 35 Solid State Drive 400-BIJP - 23 -

Not selected in this configuration 817-BBBC - 23 -

15.6" HD (1366 x 768) AG Non-Touch, 220nits, Camera &
Microphone, WLAN Capable 391-BFVS - 23 -

Single Pointing Non-Backlit Keyboard, US English, 10 Key Numpad 580-AJMX - 23 -

No Mouse 570-AADK - 23 -

WLAN Intel AX201 WLAN + BT Driver (WIFI + Bluetooth) 555-BGMJ - 23 -

Intel Dual Band Wi-Fi 6 AX201 2x2 802.11ax 160MHz + Bluetooth 5.1 555-BFNI - 23 -

No Mobile Broadband Card 556-BBCD - 23 -

4 Cell 54Whr ExpressChargeTM Capable Battery 451-BCUB - 23 -

65W AC Adapter, 4.5mm Barrel 492-BDBO - 23 -

Page 4
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

49



No Fingerprint Reader, WLAN Capable 346-BHFL - 23 -

No Anti-Virus Software 650-AAAM - 23 -

Foxit PhantomPDF Standard 634-BWQP - 23 -

OS-Windows Media Not Included 620-AALW - 23 -

US Power Cord 537-BBBL - 23 -

Quick Start Guide for 3520 340-CVBG - 23 -

US Order 332-1286 - 23 -

No Resource USB Media 430-XXYG - 23 -

No Docking Station 452-BBSE - 23 -

SERI Guide (ENG/FR/Multi) 340-AGIK - 23 -

ENERGY STAR Qualified 387-BBPQ - 23 -

Fixed Hardware Configuration 998-ERGU - 23 -

Regulatory Label included 389-BEYY - 23 -

Additional Software 658-BEZU - 23 -

MIN Packaging TGL 340-CVST - 23 -

Intel(R) Core(TM) i5 non-vPro Processor Label 389-DXDU - 23 -

BTS/BTP Smart Selection Shipment (VS) 800-BBQH - 23 -

EAN label 389-BKKL - 23 -

Latitude 3520 Bottom Door 321-BGKJ - 23 -

EPEAT 2018 Registered (Silver) 379-BDTO - 23 -

No AutoPilot 340-CKSZ - 23 -

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Extended Year(s) 975-3461 - 23 -

Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//support.dell.com/ProSupport 989-3449 - 23 -

ProSupport: Next Business Day Onsite, 1 Year 997-6662 - 23 -

ProSupport: Next Business Day Onsite, 2 Year Extended 997-6664 - 23 -

ProSupport: 7x24 Technical Support, 3 Years 997-6673 - 23 -

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty 997-6727 - 23 -

Quantity Subtotal

OptiPlex 3280 AIO
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Dec. 22, 2021
Contract # C000000005600
Customer Agreement # NCPA 01-42

$837.14 5 $4,185.70

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

OptiPlex 3280 All-in-One BTX 210-AVPP - 5 -

10th Generation Intel Core i5-10500T (6-Core, 12MB Cache, 2.3GHz
to 3.8GHz, 35W) 338-BVDE - 5 -

Windows 10 Pro English, French, Spanish 619-AHKN - 5 -

No Microsoft Office License Included – 30 day Trial Offer Only 658-BCSB - 5 -

8GB (1x8GB) DDR4 non ECC memory 370-AFWE - 5 -

M.2 256GB PCIe NVMe Class 35 Solid State Drive 400-BEUW - 5 -

Thermal Pad 412-AALV - 5 -

Screw for M.2 SATA SSD 773-BBBJ - 5 -

Page 5
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

50



No Additional Hard Drive 401-AADF - 5 -

Intel Integrated Graphics, Dell OptiPlex 490-BBFG - 5 -

3280 AIO 21.5" FHD 1920x1080 WVA No Touch Anti-Glare, Camera,
Integrated Graphics, 130W Adapter 321-BGLB - 5 -

130 Watt E4 AC Adapter 450-AHDT - 5 -

System Power Cord (Philipine/TH/US/Guam) 450-AAPQ - 5 -

Intel® Wi-Fi 6 AX200 2x2 (Gig+) + Bluetooth 5 555-BFFW - 5 -

Screw for M.2 SATA SSD 773-BBBJ - 5 -

Wireless Driver, Intel WiFi 6 AX200 2x2 (Gig+) + Bluetooth 5 555-BFVB - 5 -

OptiPlex All-in-One Basic Stand 575-BBTI - 5 -

No Additional Cable Requested 379-BBCY - 5 -

Dell KB216 Wired Keyboard English 580-ADJC - 5 -

Dell Optical Mouse - MS116 (Black) 570-ABIE - 5 -

No Cable Cover 325-BCZQ - 5 -

SupportAssist 525-BBCL - 5 -

Dell(TM) Digital Delivery Cirrus Client 640-BBLW - 5 -

Dell Client System Update (Updates latest Dell Recommended BIOS,
Drivers, Firmware and Apps) 658-BBMR - 5 -

Waves Maxx Audio 658-BBRB - 5 -

Dell SupportAssist OS Recovery Tool 658-BEOK - 5 -

Win 10 PKID Label 658-BFDQ - 5 -

OS-Windows Media Not Included 620-AALW - 5 -

ENERGY STAR Qualified 387-BBLW - 5 -

EPEAT 2018 Registered (Silver) 379-BDTO - 5 -

SERI Guide (ENG/FR/Multi) 340-AGIK - 5 -

Dell Watchdog Timer 379-BDWG - 5 -

Quick Setup Guide 3280 AIO 340-CPVI - 5 -

US Order 332-1286 - 5 -

Print on Demand Label 389-BDQH - 5 -

Trusted Platform Module (Discrete TPM Enabled) 329-BBJL - 5 -

EPE Ship Material for Fixed/HAS stand config or no stand config,
APCC, FSJ 340-CRMM - 5 -

Shipping Label 389-BBUU - 5 -

FCC Label 389-DUYX - 5 -

FSJ Reg Label for 3280 AIO (Non-Touch) 389-DVET - 5 -

Intel(R) Core(TM) i5 Processor Label 340-CNBZ - 5 -

Desktop BTS/BTP Shipment 800-BBIP - 5 -

No Anti-Virus Software 650-AAAM - 5 -

Not selected in this configuration 817-BBBC - 5 -

Non-Touch LCD, Dell OptiPlex AIO 391-BBDM - 5 -

Fixed Hardware Configuration 998-ETDJ - 5 -

No Out-of-Band Systems Management 631-ACNI - 5 -

No AutoPilot 340-CKSZ - 5 -

Page 6
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

51



No External ODD 429-ABGY - 5 -

No Optane 400-BFPO - 5 -

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service 867-5596 - 5 -

ProSupport: Next Business Day Onsite, 3 Years 867-5624 - 5 -

ProSupport: 7x24 Technical Support, 3 Years 867-5636 - 5 -

Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//support.dell.com/ProSupport 989-3449 - 5 -

Quantity Subtotal

iKey Detachable Keyboard for Dell Rugged Extreme Tablet
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Oct. 13, 2021
Contract # C000000005600
Customer Agreement # NCPA 01-42

$323.99 8 $2,591.92

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

iKey Detachable Keyboard for Dell Rugged Extreme Tablet AA158359 - 8 -

Quantity Subtotal

Desktop Dock for the Latitude 12 Rugged Tablet
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Feb. 24, 2022
Contract # C000000005600
Customer Agreement # NCPA 01-42

$254.09 8 $2,032.72

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Desktop Dock for the Latitude 12 Rugged Tablet 470-ABNJ - 8 -

Subtotal:
Shipping:

Environmental Fee:
Estimated Tax:

Total:

$42,758.71
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$42,758.71

Page 7
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

52



Important Notes

Terms of Sale

This Quote will, if Customer issues a purchase order for the quoted items that is accepted by Supplier, constitute a contract between the
entity issuing this Quote (“Supplier”) and the entity to whom this Quote was issued (“Customer”). Unless otherwise stated herein, pricing is
valid for thirty days from the date of this Quote. All product, pricing and other information is based on the latest information available and is
subject to change. Supplier reserves the right to cancel this Quote and Customer purchase orders arising from pricing errors. Taxes and/or
freight charges listed on this Quote are only estimates. The final amounts shall be stated on the relevant invoice. Additional freight charges
will be applied if Customer requests expedited shipping. Please indicate any tax exemption status on your purchase order and send your tax
exemption certificate to Tax_Department@dell.com or ARSalesTax@emc.com, as applicable.

Governing Terms: This Quote is subject to: (a) a separate written agreement between Customer or Customer’s affiliate and Supplier or a
Supplier´s affiliate to the extent that it expressly applies to the products and/or services in this Quote or, to the extent there is no such
agreement, to the applicable set of Dell’s Terms of Sale (available at www.dell.com/terms or www.dell.com/oemterms), or for cloud/as-a-
Service offerings, the applicable cloud terms of service (identified on the Offer Specific Terms referenced below); and (b) the terms
referenced herein (collectively, the “Governing Terms”). Different Governing Terms may apply to different products and services on this
Quote. The Governing Terms apply to the exclusion of all terms and conditions incorporated in or referred to in any documentation submitted
by Customer to Supplier.

Supplier Software Licenses and Services Descriptions: Customer’s use of any Supplier software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, or in the absence of accompanying terms, the applicable terms posted on www.Dell.com/eula. Descriptions and
terms for Supplier-branded standard services are stated at www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global or for certain infrastructure products at
www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm.

Offer-Specific, Third Party and Program Specific Terms: Customer’s use of third-party software is subject to the license terms that
accompany the software. Certain Supplier-branded and third-party products and services listed on this Quote are subject to additional,
specific terms stated on www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms (“Offer Specific Terms”).

In case of Resale only: Should Customer procure any products or services for resale, whether on standalone basis or as part of a solution,
Customer shall include the applicable software license terms, services terms, and/or offer-specific terms in a written agreement with the end-
user and provide written evidence of doing so upon receipt of request from Supplier.

In case of Financing only: If Customer intends to enter into a financing arrangement (“Financing Agreement”) for the products and/or
services on this Quote with Dell Financial Services LLC or other funding source pre-approved by Supplier (“FS”), Customer may issue its
purchase order to Supplier or to FS. If issued to FS, Supplier will fulfill and invoice FS upon confirmation that: (a) FS intends to enter into a
Financing Agreement with Customer for this order; and (b) FS agrees to procure these items from Supplier. Notwithstanding the Financing
Agreement, Customer’s use (and Customer’s resale of and the end-user’s use) of these items in the order is subject to the applicable
governing agreement between Customer and Supplier, except that title shall transfer from Supplier to FS instead of to Customer. If FS
notifies Supplier after shipment that Customer is no longer pursuing a Financing Agreement for these items, or if Customer fails to enter into
such Financing Agreement within 120 days after shipment by Supplier, Customer shall promptly pay the Supplier invoice amounts directly to
Supplier.

Customer represents that this transaction does not involve: (a) use of U.S. Government funds; (b) use by or resale to the U.S. Government;
or (c) maintenance and support of the product(s) listed in this document within classified spaces. Customer further represents that this
transaction does not require Supplier’s compliance with any statute, regulation or information technology standard applicable to a U.S.
Government procurement.

For certain products shipped to end users in California, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to Customer’s invoice. Supplier
encourages customers to dispose of electronic equipment properly.

Electronically linked terms and descriptions are available in hard copy upon request.

Page 8
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

53

mailto:Tax_Department@dell.com
mailto:ARSalesTax@emc.com
http://www.dell.com/terms
http://www.dell.com/oemterms
http://www.dell.com/eula
http://www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global
http://www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm
http://www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms


V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Aaron Whatley, Parks & Recreation Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 13, 2021
Subject: Purchase - ARPA - Aerial Service Truck

REQUEST
The request before the board is to authorize the purchase of a 2022 Chevrolet Silverado with 40' Aerial Service Truck 
(commonly referred to as a 'bucket truck.') 

REASON
This vehicle will allow the Township staff to help keep the exterior of the facilities clean, keep up on parks maintenance 
that may be out of reach, and put notifications on light pole banners.

PROCESS
The pickup truck will be purchased through the Oakland County purchasing program.  The total cost for the new vehicle 
is $125,679.  This vehicle is budgeted for in 2022 (budget not yet adopted) but due to the vehicle shortage, needs to be 
ordered as soon as possible, in order to receive it in 2022.  If approved, this expense will hit the 2022 budget.  

This truck was originally budgeted for in the Facilities & Grounds budget for 2022, but because it will help keep the 
facilities and parks clean and will allow the Township to put community notifications on the light pole banners it will 
qualify for ARPA funding. 

BUDGET

Fund Name: 101 - General Project/Grant Tracking? ☐

Purchase Order Number: 21-0606 Expected Invoice Date: 1/1/2022
Budget Adjustment Needed: ☐ Reviewed by Budget Director: ☒

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME
AMENDED 

BUDGET
AVAILABLE 
BALANCE COST

REMAINING 
BUDGET

258-426-978.000  – Capital Outlay Vehicles $125,679 $125,679 $125,679 $0

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board action would be to authorize the purchase of the 2022 Chevrolet Silverado with 40' Aerial Service Truck at a total 
cost not to exceed $125,679.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Aaron Whatley, Parks & Recreation Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 13, 2021
Subject: Purchase - Facilities & Grounds Truck with Utility Crane

REQUEST
The request before the board is to authorize the purchase of a 2022 GMC Sierra 2500 pickup truck. 

REASON
This vehicle will act as a replacement for the currently owned 2013 GMC 2500HD pickup truck and follow the fleet 
rotation schedule.

PROCESS
The pickup truck will be purchased through the Oakland County purchasing program.  The total cost for the new vehicle 
is $63,398; a $10,000 credit for trade in of the current vehicle brings the cost down to $53,398.  This vehicle is budgeted 
for in 2022 (budget not yet adopted) but due to the vehicle shortage, needs to be ordered as soon as possible, in order 
to receive it in 2022.  If approved, this expense will hit the 2022 budget.  

Additionally, the trade in appraised values are subject to change depending on condition, mileage, and market 
conditions at the time of actual trade in.  This could cause the net cost to fluctuate minimally so the recommendation 
would be to allow a cost not to exceed the budgeted $58,000. 

BUDGET

Fund Name: 101 - General Project/Grant Tracking? ☐

Purchase Order Number: 21-0604 Expected Invoice Date: 1/1/2022
Budget Adjustment Needed: ☐ Reviewed by Budget Director: ☒

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME
AMENDED 

BUDGET
AVAILABLE 
BALANCE COST

REMAINING 
BUDGET

101-265-978.000  – Capital Outlay Vehicles $58,000 $58,000 $53,398 $4,602

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board action would be to authorize the purchase (with trade in) of the new GMC Sierra 2500 pickup truck for the 
Facilities & Grounds department, at a total net cost not to exceed $58,000 as budgeted.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

61



62



63



64



65



66



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Aaron Whatley, Parks & Recreation Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 13, 2021
Subject: Purchase - Facilities & Grounds Truck with Plow

REQUEST
The request before the board is to authorize the purchase of a 2022 GMC Sierra 2500 pickup truck. 

REASON
This vehicle will act as a replacement for the currently owned 2005 GMC 3500 dump/plow pickup truck and follow the 
fleet rotation schedule.

PROCESS
The pickup truck will be purchased through the Oakland County purchasing program.  The total cost for the new vehicle 
is $42,313; a $7,000 credit for trade in of the current vehicle brings the cost down to $35,313.  This vehicle is budgeted 
for in 2022 (budget not yet adopted) but due to the vehicle shortage, needs to be ordered as soon as possible, in order 
to receive it in 2022.  If approved, this expense will hit the 2022 budget.  

Additionally, the trade in appraised values are subject to change depending on condition, mileage, and market 
conditions at the time of actual trade in.  This could cause the net cost to fluctuate minimally so the recommendation 
would be to allow a cost not to exceed the budgeted $36,000. 

BUDGET

Fund Name: 101 - General Project/Grant Tracking? ☐

Purchase Order Number: 21-0605 Expected Invoice Date: 1/1/2022
Budget Adjustment Needed: ☐ Reviewed by Budget Director: ☒

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME
AMENDED 

BUDGET
AVAILABLE 
BALANCE COST

REMAINING 
BUDGET

101-265-978.000  – Capital Outlay Vehicles $36,000 $36,000 $35,313 $687

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board action would be to authorize the purchase (with trade in) of the new GMC Sierra 2500 pickup truck for the 
Facilities & Grounds department, at a total net cost not to exceed $36,000 as budgeted.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

67



68



69



70



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Aaron Whatley, Parks & Recreation Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 13, 2021
Subject: Purchase - Parks & Recreation Pickup

REQUEST
The request before the board is to authorize the purchase of a 2022 Ford Ranger pickup truck. 

REASON
This vehicle will act as a replacement for the currently owned 2010 Ford F150 pickup truck and follow the fleet rotation 
schedule.

PROCESS
The pickup truck will be purchased through the Oakland County purchasing program.  The total cost for the new vehicle 
is $30,764; a credit for the 2010 Ford F150 pickup truck trade-in will be applied towards this purchase but the trade-in 
value has not been determined yet.  This vehicle is budgeted for in 2022 (budget not yet adopted) but due to the vehicle 
shortage, needs to be ordered as soon as possible, in order to receive it in 2022.  If approved, this expense will hit the 
2022 budget.

The recommendation would be to authorize Parks & Recreation to purchase this replacement vehicle with a cost not to 
exceed the $30,000 (after the vehicle trade-in).

BUDGET

Fund Name: 101 - General Project/Grant Tracking? ☐

Purchase Order Number: 21-0607 Expected Invoice Date: 1/1/2022
Budget Adjustment Needed: ☐ Reviewed by Budget Director: ☒

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME
AMENDED 

BUDGET
AVAILABLE 
BALANCE COST

REMAINING 
BUDGET

208-751-978.000  – Capital Outlay Vehicles $30,000 $30,000 $28,539 $1,461
208-751-978.000 - Capital Outlay - 

Vehicles - Spray in Liner
$30,000 $1,461 $525 $936

208-751-978.000 - Capital Outlay Vehicles 
- LED roof light

$30,000 $936 $1,700 $-764

TRADE IN VALUE - UNDETERMINED + + + +

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board action would be to authorize the purchase (with trade in) of the new 2022 Ford Ranger pickup truck for the Parks 
& Recreation department, at a total net cost not to exceed $30,000 as budgeted.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

71



72



73



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 13, 2021
Subject: Hire Full Time Firefighter

REQUEST
To approve hiring of a firefighter, full-time with full benefits, Matthew Schaefer.

REASON
The above listed candidate is recommended for hire by the Fire Chief, Township Supervisor and Human Resources.   

PROCESS
The fire department has an established firefighter testing process in place.  The candidate has completed and passed the 
testing, interview and vetting process by both the fire department committee and Township Supervisor.  The candidate 
is recommended for employment with the Orion Township Fire Department beginning Monday, October 25, 2021.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Authorize the hiring of Matthew Schaefer as full-time Firefighter effective October 25, 2021 pending results of Physical, 
Background Check and Drug Screening.

 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

74



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Donni Steele, Township Treasurer
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 12, 2021
Subject: Matured, Called and Purchases of Securities & Bonds for Water/Sewer and General 

Accounts

REQUEST
Please Review. If you have any questions, or would like to receive additional and supporting documentation, please 
contact me anytime.

REASON
To report to the Board all called/matured and purchased securities & bonds for water, sewer and general investment 
funds through Robinson Capital. Attached are the statements for September 2021.

PROCESS
Robinson Capital is our Investment Advisor and they will continue to make investment purchases on our behalf—safety, 
liquidity and yield, in that order.

Please also review Robinson’s monthly commentary for September 2021.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Receive and File

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

75



76



77



September 1yr

3mT-Bill 0.00% 0.07%

2y Tsy -0.09% 0.00%

Returns

-12%

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

'08 '10 '12 '14 '16 '18 '20

U.S. Weekly Payrolls % Change

September 2014

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

3mo 6mo 2yr 5yr

Y
ie

ld
 -

to
 -

M
a
tu

ri
ty

Time - to - Maturity

Historical U.S. Treasury Yield Curves

9/30/2021

8/31/2021

9/30/2020

Current Previous Month

0.02%

0.09%

-2.40%

-1.01%

0.48%
0.62%

-0.29%
-0.34%

-0.60%

-0.22%

-0.69%

-1.42%

-2.20%

-1.06%

-5.38%

-2.30%

1.16%

1.72%

-7%

-6%

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

1yr1m'20'19'18'17'16'15'14'13'12'11'10'09'08'07'06'05

Cash (3mo T-Bill) vs. 2yr Treasury

Source: Barclays Capital, Bloomberg, Robinson

Cash Outperforms

Cash Underperforms

Source: Bloomberg, Robinson

For the first time Federal
Reserve Chair Powell
indicated that "a gradual
tapering process that
concludes around the middle
of next year can be
appropriate". Fed Chair
Powell is referring to the
slowing down of the monthly
asset purchases of $120
Billion. Wall Street predicts
this means tapering will begin
in December with a monthly
decline of $15B in purchases.

September saw rates
increase across the maturity
spectrum. The yield curve
continues to steepen quickly
(see the difference
compared to one year ago).

2-Year Treasuries had
negative returns in
September as rates
rose.

Short- erm

Federal Reserve Stance Performance

trategiesS September 2021BT ond

Yield Curve Graph of the Month

The Case-Shiller National
Home Price Index tracks the
value of single-family homes
across the country. Since
April this Index has reached
historical levels and is one of
many proxies that illustrates
the hot housing market. The
unprecedented rise in home
prices raises the question of
how sustainable this rise is
and whether the eventual fall
will occur without too much
disruption.

Source: The Federal Reserve, Robinson

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

'05 '10 '15 '20

Federal Reserve Balance Sheet 
in Billions ($)

Average
Record High

Source: S&P, Case-Shiller, Robinson

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

'06 '08 '10 '12 '14 '16 '18 '20

Average 30-Year Mortage Rate

'86 '91 '96 '01 '06 '11 '16 '21

Financial Conditions Index

TIGHTENING

EASING

-20

0

20

40

60

80

80

100

120

140

160

180

'86 '91 '96 '01 '06 '11 '16 '21

Homebuilder vs Homebuyers

Homebuyer Sentiment

Homebuilder Sentiment

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

'00

Bloomberg Bankruptcy Index

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

'10 '12 '14 '16 '18 '20

Buying Conditions

Houses

Vehicles

-200

-100

0

100

200

300

'11 '13 '15 '17 '19 '21

Citi Economic Surprise Index

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

'89 '93 '97 '01 '05 '09 '13 '17 '21

Home Price Index YoY

78



RobinsonFunds.com

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

1
9

0
0

1
9

0
5

1
9

1
0

1
9

1
5

1
9

2
0

1
9

2
5

1
9

3
0

1
9

3
5

1
9

4
0

1
9

4
5

1
9

5
0

1
9

5
5

1
9

6
0

1
9

6
5

1
9

7
0

1
9

7
5

1
9

8
0

1
9

8
5

1
9

9
0

1
9

9
5

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
5

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
5

2
0

2
0

Real 10-Year Interest Rates

'79 '85 '91 '97 '03 '09 '15 '21

Robinson Combined Index (Leading Economic, Housing, Recession Models)

Market Review: The Robinson Leading Economic Index deaccelerated in
September, but still shows an expanding and recovering economy - albeit
with supply change and labor market disruptions. Housing metrics had a solid
'bounce back' month but consumer and business confidence indicators
continued to slide downward. Despite supply chain related delays and rising
commodity and energy prices, manufacturing numbers rose again, signaling
strong consumer and economic demand and boding well for the coming
months. Investors appear to be cautiously optimistic regarding the Delta
variant as cases across the country have declined in recent weeks, but the
upcoming winter sets the stage for more coronavirus disruption if the
downward case trend reverses. There will be considerable attention on
Congress throughout October as they quickly approach critical dates and
deadlines related to the debt ceiling, an infrastructure bill, and a large
spending package - the outcome of each of these will have important
immediate and medium-term implications. The passage of the full
infrastructure and spending bills would require markets to recalibrate growth,
inflation, and interest rate expectations.

Inflation: One of the Federal Reserve's favorite inflation indicators, Core
Personal Consumption Expenditure Index (see bottom left), ticked higher to a
30-year high. This marks five straight months with the Index at record levels.
It is important to point out that the Index is compared to levels from one year
ago (the depths of the pandemic) which provides an unusual and unique
baseline for comparison.

Employment: As we mentioned last month, with the maturity of many of the
federal unemployment programs, the total number of people receiving
government benefits was nearly cut in half in September (see bottom right).
Given the fact that job openings are at all-time highs, it is now or never for
the labor market to find equilibrium again.

63 KERCHEVAL AVE.           SUITE 111            GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MI 48236   (313) 821-7000              

Strength

2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021

Robinson Leading Economic Index 

Recession

Strength

Weakness

Economic Comments

Source: Bloomberg, Robinson

Source: Bloomberg, Robinson

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

'00

Inflation Expectations 12 Months Ahead

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

'00

Home Price Index

100

105

110

115

120

125

130
Home Price vs Hourly Earnings (2009 =100)

Home Price Index

Average Hourly
Earnings

Low of 21,000

0.00%

0.20%

0.40%

0.60%

0.80%

1.00%

1.20%

1.40%

'21 '18 '15 '12 '09 '06

Employment Cost Index: Wages QoQ

All-time High
All-time High

The opinions expressed in this report are based on Robinson Capital Management’s independent analysis of information obtained or derived from sources believed to be reliable. Robinson does not represent or guarantee that the
information contained in this report is either accurate or complete. Under no circumstances shall Robinson have any liability to any person or entity for any loss or damage in whole or in part caused by, resulting from, or relating to, any
error (negligent or otherwise) or other circumstance or contingency within or outside the control of Robinson or any of its directors, officers or employees. This report is for information only and is not an offer to buy or sell any security
or to participate in any trading strategy. Sources include: Federal Reserve, Barclays, Bloomberg, Bank of America, Citigroup among others. This report or any portion hereof may not be reprinted, sold, or redistributed without the
written consent of Robinson Capital Management. Opinions expressed are subject to change without notice. For additional information, please contact us at:

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

Jul-19 Jan-20 Jul-20 Jan-21 Jul-21

CPI vs 2% Target (2019=100)

CPI 2% Target

Source: Bureau of Economic Anlysis, Bloomberg, Robinson

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

'01 '06 '11 '16 '21

Job Openings (thousands)

Source: Department of Labor, Robinson

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2

2.2

2.4

2.6

2.8

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

11000

12000
Job Openings and Quit Rates

Job Openings (L)

Job Quit Rate (R)

0

1

2

3

4

'00

10-Year Breakeven Rate

-0.16

-0.14

-0.12

-0.1

-0.08

-0.06

-0.04

-0.02

0

0.02

Feb-20 Aug-20 Feb-21 Aug-21 Feb-22 Aug-22

Total Jobs as % of Peak Employment

Actual

Projected

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%
Wage Inflation

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

'00 '05 '10 '15 '20

Plans to Raise Prices

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

'11 '13 '15 '17 '19 '21

Total People Recieving Benefits (1,000s)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

'91 '94 '97 '00 '03 '06 '09 '12 '15 '18 '21

PCE Index YoY

79

http://www.robinsonfunds.com/


  Overall……………….. B+

   Business…………………………… A
   Demographic……………………… C+

   Financial…………………………… B

      Asset Quality……………………. B-
      Capital…………………………… C+
      Liquidity…………………………. A+
      Profitability……………………… A-

   Robinson Downside Risk A-

B+2Q 2021JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association is headquartered in Columbus, OH, with total assets of $3,190.1 Bln. The

bank has declined in size over the quarter but has experienced strong asset growth of 13.1% over the past year. The total

loan portfolio is well-diversified with 40% in real estate loans. The real estate portfolio is largely concentrated in the

residential sector, representing 86% of the portfolio. The bank's core deposits, deposits that are a stable source of funds for

the lending base, are very strong, representing a reliable and inexpensive source of funds for the bank.

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association has a strong demographic footprint in its respective markets, providing healthy

geographic diversification. New York County, NY, represents the bank's only deposit base. Unemployment within New York

County, NY is 7.8%, 1.9% higher than the national average. New York County, NY's population growth has weakened over

the past couple years relative to that of the US and median household income significantly increased recently against the

nation's median level.

Demographic Risk

Business Risk

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Loan Distribution

Real Estate

Commercial

Consumer

Agriculture

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Deposit Distribution

Demand

MMkt &
Savings

Time Dep <
$250K

Time Dep >
$250K

Other

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Real Estate Portfolio

Residential

Commercial

Constr & Land

Farmland

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

2Q212Q202Q192Q182Q17

Total Assets ($Mln)

Business Analysis

Demographic Analysis

Risk Ratings

S
tr

e
n

g
th

W
e
a
k
n

e
s
s

-4.0%

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

2019201720162015

Median Income Change vs.US

New York County, NY

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Ju
n-

21

M
ay

-2
1

A
pr

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

F
eb

-2
1

Ja
n-

21

D
ec

-2
0

N
ov

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

S
ep

-2
0

A
ug

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Ju
n-

20

M
ay

-2
0

Unemployment Rate History

US New York County, NY

-0.9%

-0.8%

-0.7%

-0.6%

-0.5%

-0.4%

-0.3%

-0.2%

-0.1%

0.0%

2019201820172016

Population Change vs. US

New York County, NY

A          B         C          F

A          B         C          F

2Q214Q192Q184Q162Q154Q132Q124Q102Q094Q07

Risk Rating History

US (avg) JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

A

B

C

F

80



Asset Quality Capital Liquidity Profitability

Chg vs. Chg vs. Chg vs. Chg vs.

NonPerforming Lns 1Q 2021 Leverage Ratio 1Q 2021 Liquidity Ratio 1Q 2021 Return on Assets 1Q 2021

Bank 1.7% ▼0.2% Bank 7.9% ▲0.1% Bank 43.4% ▼6.5% Bank 1.2% ▼0.2%

US (median) 0.6% ▲0.1% US (median) 9.9% ▼0.1% US (median) 36.9% ▲1.2% US (median) 1.1% ▼0.0%

Reserves to Total Loans Core Deposits/Deposits Net Interest Margin (NIM)

Bank 2.1% ▼0.4% Bank 91.6% ▼0.1% Bank 2.5% ▲0.1%

US (median) 1.3% ▲0.0% US (median) 80.3% ▲0.0% US (median) 3.3% ▲0.1%

Asset quality is satisfactory and presents no immediate concern. The asset quality trend has marginally improved over the past quarter, but has displayed little

to no change over the past year. The bank's capital position is marginally below levels considered to be adequate. The overall capital score has marginally

weakened over the past quarter and has exhibited weakness over the past year. Liquidity is one of the best in the United States and the diversification of

funding provides ample liquidity in times of need. The liquidity score has marginally weakened over the past quarter, but has displayed little to no change over

the past year. The bank's profitability is sound with return on average assets (ROA) for the quarter at 1.16%, representing a healthy earnings position. This

trend has demonstrated sizeable improvement over the past quarter, but has weakened slightly over the past year. 

Robinson views the finanical risk of this bank to be investment grade given JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association's

solid and healthy financial profile and limited potentail of downside risk. Its overall financial trend has marginally improved

over the past quarter, but has exhibited weakness over the past year. 

15%

Financial Risk

S
tr

e
n

g
th

W
e
a

k
n

e
s
s

S
tr

e
n

g
th

W
e
a

k
n

e
s
s

S
tr

e
n

g
th

W
e
a
k
n

e
s
s

Financial Analysis

Additional Downside Risk Considerations

S
tr

e
n

g
th

W
e
a
k
n

e
s
s

A          B         C          F

2Q214Q202Q204Q192Q19

Profitability Score

US (avg) Profitability

A

B

C

F

2Q214Q202Q204Q192Q19

Liquidity Score

US (avg) Liquidity

A

B

C

F

2Q214Q202Q204Q192Q19

Capital Score

US (avg) Capital

A

B

C

F

2Q214Q202Q204Q192Q19

Asset Quality Score

US (avg) Asset Quality

A

B

C

F

Robinson Downside Risk
Robinson Downside Risk measures overall 
downside risk of a bank, based on a 
proprietary bank risk model. Analysis takes 
into account various factors, including 
trends and ratios discussed in this report.

A          B         C          F

Commercial Real Estate % of Capital
Historically, higher levels of 
commercial real estate (CRE)  
exposure have the potential to be 
problematic. Levels above 300% 
represent higher risk.

A          B         C          F

Disclosures

ROBINSON CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 63 KERCHEVAL AVE., SUITE 111  GROSSE POINTE FARMS, MI 48236 (313) 821-7000           ROBINSONFUNDS.COM

This report is being provided to the recipient at the request of the recipient. The information, data, analyses and opinions presented in this report do not
constitute investment advice; are provided solely for informational purposes; and do not constitute an offer to buy or sell a security. The information, data,
analysis and opinions presented in this report assessing or characterizing the overall or relative performance, outlook or other indicators of financial strength
or risk of a financial institution represent the opinions of Robinson Capital Management (RCM). These opinions are based on RCM's independent analysis of
financial data and utilize information obtained or derived from sources believed to be reliable. RCM does not work directly with, and is not sponsored by, any
institutions that it analyzes, and such considerations do not affect the conclusions of RCM’s analysis. Opinions and information presented in this report are as
of the date written and are subject to change without notice. RCM does not represent or guarantee that its opinions or the information contained in this report
is either accurate or complete. While RCM believes that the information included in this report, including that obtained from outside sources, is correct, RCM
cannot guarantee its accuracy. Under no circumstances shall RCM have any liability to any person or entity for any loss or damage in whole or in part caused
by, resulting from, or relating to, any error (negligent or otherwise) or other circumstance or contingency within or outside the control of RCM or any of its
directors, officers or employees. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. This report or any portion hereof may not be reprinted, sold, or
redistributed without the written consent of RCM.

RCM is a boutique investment advisor focused exclusively on traditional and alternative fixed income investments. Founded in 2012, and headquartered in
Grosse Pointe Farms, Michigan, RCM offers investment advisory services to a variety of institutional investors and regulated fund products.

81



Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary

To: Board of Trustees
From: Chris Barnett, Supervisor

Meeting Date: October 18, 2021
Memo Date: October 13, 2021

Subject: 2022 CDBG Annual Application – Schedule Public Hearing

REQUESTS
Orion Township is eligible to receive an estimated $56, 147.00 for the 2022 program year.

Per CDBG guidelines, the purpose of the public hearing is to take comments form the public only (no Board or agency 
comments allowed during the public hearing per Federal requirements) on the use of the funds the Township is being 
allocated.

We are not required to have the hearing on individual projects – only on the total allocation.

REASON

PROCESS

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Set the public hearing on the CDBG 2022 allocation for Monday, November 15, 2021 at 7:00 p.m.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

82



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: David Goodloe, Building Official
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 14, 2021
Subject: Waive permit fees.

REQUEST
I am requesting the building department waive permit fees for homeowners for remediation due to the storm on 
October 8, 2021.

REASON
The storm has caused a lot of damage to properties that is not covered by insurance companies. 

PROCESS

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Motion to approve the building official to waive permit fees for homeowners due to the storm on October 8, 2021

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

83



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 12, 2021
Subject: Updated Township Engineering Standards

REQUEST
Adopt the Updated Township Engineering Standards. 

REASON
As part of Orion Township’s updated MS4 permit, issued by EGLE June 1, 2021, changes to the Township’s stormwater 
management standards within the Engineering Standards were required.   

PROCESS
Adopt the updated Township Engineering Standards

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
October 18, 2021

Move to adopt the updated Township Engineering Standards conditioned upon the successful 2nd reading of the 
Township Initiated Text Amendment to Ordinance 139 being held this evening.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

84



Charter Township of Orion
Planning & Zoning Department
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
P: (248) 391-0304 ext. 5000; Fax (248) 391-1454

TO: Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees

FROM:            Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director

DATE: October 14, 2021

RE: Updated Township Engineering Standards 
____________________________________________________________________________

On July 19, 2021, Township Engineer Jim Stevens made a brief presentation to the Board of 
Trustees on a required permit with the Michigan Department of Environmental, Great Lakes, and 
Energy (EGLE) commonly called our MS-4 permit.

The Township’s new permit required changes to our Stormwater Management & Soil Erosion & 
Sedimentation Control Ordinance #139 which is on the agenda for its 2nd reading this evening.  
There was a need to also make changes to the Township’s Engineering Standards in order to 
incorporate the changes proposed to Ordinance #139.

Provided to you is the updated Township Engineering Standards with redlines of all the changes. 
Please note, all of the appendices are not included in the document.  I have only provided the one 
change to the appendices which is a proposed addition to Appendix D.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions at x 5000.

85



WATER RESOURCES COMMISIONER

·

·

·

·

H   is based on the water level at 50% of VhED ED

86



·

·

·

·

WATER RESOURCES COMMISIONER

H   is based on the water level at 50% of VED
hED

87



WATER RESOURCES COMMISIONER

·

·

·

·

H   is based on the water level at 50% of VEDh ED

88



WATER RESOURCES COMMISIONER

·

·

·

·

H   is based on the water level at 50% of VEDhED

89



TABLE OF CONTENTS
ITEM PAGE

GENERAL PLAN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS AND REVIEW PROCEDURES

I. Plan Submittal Procedures 1

II. Preparation of Engineering Plan 1

III. Permitting Agencies 4

IV. Additional Permitting Information 5

ENGINEERING PLAN REQUIREMENTS

I. Plan Requirements 6

II. Topographical Survey 7

III. Utilities (General) 8

IV. Water Main 9

V. Sewers (Sanitary/Storm) 13

VI. Sanitary Sewer 15

VII. Storm Sewer 17

VIII. Detention/Retention Basin 20

IX. Flood Plain Development 23

X. Site Grading 23

XI. Retaining Walls 24

XII. Soil Erosion Control 26

XIII. Paving Improvements 27

Appendices
Appendix A: General Liability Insurance Form
Appendix B: Inspection Escrow/Maintenance & Guarantee Bond
Appendix C: Orion Township Standard Notes & Fire Department Notes
Appendix D: Allowable Discharge Rates for Drainage Districts in Orion Township, 

Retention/Detention Storage Volume & Orifice Sizing, and Typical OCWRCDC Cross-
Section DetailsStandpipe Detail

Appendix E: Retaining Wall Certification Form
Appendix F: Fire Department Ladder Truck Turning Template
Appendix G: Subdivision Asphalt Paving Detail

90



1

GENERAL PLAN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
AND REVIEW PROCEDURES

I. PLAN SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

A. The plan review and approval process consists of two (2) separate review submittals as 
required by the Planning and Zoning Department (PZD). The Township’s engineer 
conducts these reviews, which must be completed before construction can begin. 

1. The first review submittal is of the SITE PLAN. 
a. The SITE PLAN shall be provided in accordance with The Charter Township 

of Orion Planning Commission Outline of the Site Plan Review Procedures 
(http://oriontownship.org/GeneralInformation/Information/Forms.aspx#planni
ng) and Section 30.01- Site Plan Review Procedures and Standards (page 30-3, 
of the Zoning Ordinance 78). The SITE PLAN application can also be located 
through the provided link.

i. Once all applicable Township Departments give approval, the SITE 
PLAN must be presented for approval to the Planning Commission and 
Township Board (for PUD’s).  A review of the impacts on any existing 
woodlands or wetlands is conducted prior to being presented to the 
Planning Commission and Township Board as well. 

2. The second review step for a project is the ENGINEERING PLAN review.
a.  The ENGINEERING PLAN must address the same concerns as the site plan 

but shall include the required information in greater detail.  The application for 
this submittal can be obtained from the PZD. Additionally, if a Soil Erosion 
permit is required for the site it shall also be applied for at this time.  
(http://oriontownship.org/GeneralInformation/Information/Forms.aspx#planni
ng) 

i. Upon receipt of the Planning Commission and Township Board (if 
applicable) approval of the SITE PLAN, an Engineering Plan Review 
application, a signed and sealed cost estimate, two (2) bond sets of 
signed and sealed engineering plans and one (1) electronic set (pdf) for 
site improvement are to be submitted to the Township PZD.

II. PREPARATION OF ENGINEERING PLAN  

A. ALL ENGINEERING PLAN SUBMITTALS MUST ORIGINATE AT THE 
PLANNING/ZONING DEPARTMENT.

B. Plans are forwarded from PZD to the Township Engineer.  The engineers will review 
the total site for the Township, concentrating on water, sanitary, storm water 
detention/retention and soil erosion control.  Site grading and paving will be checked 
as part of the storm design.  A cost estimate and all relevant calculations are required, 

91

http://oriontownship.org/GeneralInformation/Information/Forms.aspx#planning
http://oriontownship.org/GeneralInformation/Information/Forms.aspx#planning
http://oriontownship.org/GeneralInformation/Information/Forms.aspx#planning
http://oriontownship.org/GeneralInformation/Information/Forms.aspx#planning


2

as noted in these Standards.  If additional information is needed, the Township Engineer 
will contact the Design Engineer directly.

1. As part of the review process, the Township Engineer may contact the PZD, the 
Department of Public Works (DPW), Fire Department and Oakland County 
Sheriff’s Department for comments and feedback.  If other agencies (MDOT, 
RCOC, etc.) have not completed their reviews, the Township Engineer may request 
that their comments be supplied to the Township Engineer prior to final approvals.

2. When plans are complete and ready to be stamped approved the Township Engineer 
will request additional sets of plans be submitted for distribution to regulatory 
agencies for public improvements.  In general, 4 sets of water main plans, 9 sets of 
sanitary sewer plans and 9 complete sets (for distribution to other Township 
Departments) are required.  The permitting plans shall include a location map, a 
quantity list with private and public water main or sanitary sewer indicated, a utility 
plan sheet, and the current Charter Township of Orion Standard Water Main or 
Sanitary Sewer Detail Sheets.  All plan sets must be signed and sealed by an 
engineer registered in the State of Michigan.

3. A water main permit is required for the addition of public main in excess of 100'.  
Water main plans along with a completed Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality (MDEQ) Permit Application for Water Supply Systems (Act 399 of 1976, 
as amended) shall be provided to the Township Engineer.  It is recommended that 
the Streamlined Water Main Permit Checklist be completed in order to expedite 
permit issuance.  The most recent version of the application and the checklist can 
be obtained on the MDEQ website, http://www.michigan.gov/deq/. The applicant 
must complete the Project Basis of Design, including Item G by contacting the 
Township Engineer to obtain pressure and flow values from the hydraulic model.  
This test can be scheduled by contacting the Fire Department at (248) 391-0304 
ext. 143. The WSSN for the Charter Township of Orion is 5035 and for the GLWA 
is 2838.  The Township Engineer will have the DPW Director execute the permit 
application and then will forward the application and plans to the MDEQ for 
permitting. 

4. All public sanitary sewer extensions require a construction permit.  Sanitary sewer 
plans along with a completed MDEQ Sanitary Sewer Permit Application (Part 41 
of Act 451 of 1994, as amended) shall be provided to the Township Engineer. The 
most recent version of this application can be obtained on the MDEQ website.  The 
Township Engineer will provide the flow rates and units for Items 21-24 on page 
three of the application.  Additionally, the Township Engineer will have the DPW 
Director execute the permit application and then will forward the application and 
plans to the Oakland County Dept. of Public Works.  It is recommended that the 
design engineer complete the Streamlined Sanitary Sewer Permit Certification 
Checklist in order to expedite permit issuance. Upon their approval, the plans will 
then be forwarded to the GLWA and finally to MDEQ for permitting.

5. All public improvement plans submitted for permits must carry the seal and 
signature of the Design Engineer along with the approval stamp of the Charter 
Township of Orion.  Note that lineal footage and type of sanitary and/or water main 
pipe must be summarized on the cover sheet and, depending on which permit is 

92

http://www.michigan.gov/deq/0,1607,7-135-3313_3675_3691-72232--,00.html
http://www.michigan.gov/deq/0,1607,7-135-6830-89034--,00.html
http://www.michigan.gov/documents/deq/wb-fos-part41-Streamline-Sewer-Checklist_188809_7.doc
http://www.michigan.gov/documents/deq/wb-fos-part41-Streamline-Sewer-Checklist_188809_7.doc


3

necessary, the Charter Township of Orion Standard Water Main or Sanitary Sewer 
Details shall be included within the engineering plans.

6. Upon final plan approval and receipt of all permits, but prior to commencing 
construction, a pre-construction meeting shall be held.

a. The Developer or Developer’s Authorized Representative shall contact the 
Township Engineer to schedule the pre-construction meeting.  The 
following attendees are required, at a minimum, from the developer’s team: 
The Developer or Developer’s Authorized Representative, the Design 
Engineer, the General Contractor and/or the Underground Contractor and 
the Paving Contractor.  Prior to scheduling the meeting, proof of payment 
of the required construction escrow, SESC escrow, performance guarantee, 
and SESC guarantees as specified in the Engineering approval letter shall 
be submitted to the Township PZD.

b. The contractor shall provide, at the Pre-construction Meeting, proof of 
general liability insurance (project name appearing in description area) 
endorsing the Charter Township of Orion and its Engineer as additionally 
insured.  Policies are required to provide coverage up to $3,000,000 for each 
occurrence and $3,000,000 aggregate.  Standard language regarding 
cancellation will be upgraded to “30 days written notice” for cancellation 
and the language “failure to do so shall impose no obligation or liability of 
any kind upon the insurer, its agents or representatives.” will be removed or 
crossed off.  See Appendix A for example of properly completed insurance 
form.

c. The final approval letter from the Township Engineer will detail the total 
amount of fees required for the project, which typically include construction 
escrow, SESC escrow, performance guarantee, SESC guarantee, and 
Maintenance & Guarantee Bond.  A description of the basis for the escrow 
and bonds can be viewed in Appendix B, as well as the approved form for 
the Maintenance & Guarantee Bond.

d. Final occupancy permit will require a passing DPW final inspection, 
approval of reproducible record plans, an electronic pdf of the record plans, 
a GIS file of the as built utility information, maintenance and guarantee 
bond, and recorded easements including a legal description and sketch.  A 
grading certificate may also be required if requested by the Charter 
Township of Orion. The design engineer shall note that the GIS file shall be 
in NAD83 State Plane Michigan South Intl Feet. If submitting vertical 
elevations, they shall be in NAVD88. The developer’s engineer should 
contact the Township Engineer to be provided a blank schema to facilitate 
the GIS submission. An AutoCAD file is acceptable in place of a GIS file 
if, and only if, the developer’s engineer does not have GIS capabilities.

e. Unused construction escrow, soil erosion escrow, and guarantee funds will 
be eligible for return as described in the final approval letter.

93



4

III. PERMITTING AGENCIES

TOWNSHIP DEPARTMENTS:
Planning and Zoning Department
Tamara Girling 
Planning and Zoning Director
2525 Joslyn Road
Lake Orion, MI 48360
Phone: (248) 391-0304 ext. 159

Public Works Department
C. William Ireland
Director of Public Works
2525 Joslyn Road
Lake Orion, MI 48360
Phone: (248) 391-0304 ext. 118

Building Department
Randy McClure
Building Official
2525 Joslyn Road
Lake Orion, MI 48360
Phone: (248) 391-0304 ext. 124

TOWNSHIP ENGINEERS:
OHM Advisors, Inc.     
34000 Plymouth Road
Livonia, Michigan 48150
Phone: (734) 522-6711
Contact: James C. Stevens, P.E.

OTHER REVIEW AGENCIES:
Great Lakes Water Authority
735 Randolph, Suite 1900
Detroit, MI 48226
Phone: (313) 964-9501
Fax: (313) 842-6538
Contact:  Robert J. Daddow
Phone: (248)-858-1650.  

Email: daddowr@oakgov.com
OTHER REVIEW AGENCIES (cont.):
Road Commission for Oakland County
2420 Pontiac Lake Road
Waterford, Michigan 48328
Phone: (248) 858-4804

Michigan Department of Transportation
Lansing Headquarters
State Transportation Building
425 W. Ottawa St.
P.O. Box 30050
Lansing, Michigan 48909
Phone: (517) 373-2090

Metro Region Office
1810 W. Nine Mile Road
Southfield, Michigan 48075
Phone: (248) 483-5100
Fax: (248) 569-3103

Oakland TSC
2300 Dixie Highway
Waterford, Michigan 48328
Phone: (248) 451-0001
Fax: (248) 451-0108

Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality
Lansing Headquarters
Phone: (517) 373-7917

SE Michigan District Office
27700 Donald Court
Warren, Michigan 48092-2793
Phone: (586) 753-3700
Fax: (586) 751-4690

Oakland County Drain Commission
One Public Works Drive
Waterford, Michigan 48328-1907
Phone: (248) 858-0958

94

mailto:daddowr@oakgov.com


5

ADDITIONAL PERMITTING INFORMATION

A. A ROW Permit from the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) is necessary for 
all work within ROWs maintained by RCOC. Most roads within the Township limits are 
maintained by RCOC, with the exception of local private roads and Lapeer Road (M-24)

B. A ROW Permit from the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) is necessary for 
work within ROWs maintained by MDOT.  Lapeer road (M-24) (Charter Township of 
Orion limits, Brown/Dutton Road, to Oxford Township limits, Indian Lake Road) is an 
MDOT road. 

C. The Village of Lake Orion is surrounded by Orion Township, any work within the Village 
limits will need be approved by the Village of Lake Orion.

D. The Design Engineer shall submit plans to RCOC for review of any work proposed within 
County rights-of-way.  The Township will request the Developer/Design Engineer  to 
submit the RCOC review comments and Permit prior to final approval.  Note that the 
Township's standards for entrance drive or other improvements may be more stringent than 
RCOC requirements.

E. On state highways, approach improvements or use of drainage facilities must have approval 
of the Michigan Dept. of Transportation (MDOT).  The Design Engineer shall submit plans 
to MDOT for review of any work proposed in state rights-of-way.  The Township will 
request the Developer/Design Engineer to submit the MDOT review comments and permit 
prior to final engineering approval. Note that the Township's standards for entrance drive 
or other improvements may be more stringent than RCOC requirements.

F. The Charter Township of Orion, as a municipal enforcing agency (MEA), is the Soil 
Erosion Control Agent for all work performed in the Township. Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Plans shall be submitted to the Township for all sites greater than 
one acre or within 500' of a lake or stream.  The Township will require a Soil Erosion and 
Sediment Control (Part 91 of Act 451 of 1994) Permit prior to final engineering approval.  
Upon receipt of the Part 91 permit, all sites with construction activity that disturbs more 
than five (5) acres of land must submit a Notice of Coverage to MDEQ Surface Water 
Quality in Lansing.  Forms are available at the MDEQ website, 
http://www.michigan.gov/deq/.  Notice of Termination is also required upon completion.

G. The Oakland County Water Resource Commissioner (OCWRC) reviews all work 
associated with County Drains, i.e. tapping an existing drain, work within a County Drain 
easement, etc.

H. Capital, lateral and tapping fees are assessed by the DPW for sanitary sewer and water 
main taps, respectively. Contact the Charter Township of Orion DPW for more 
information, (248) 391-0304 ext. 117. 

95

http://www.michigan.gov/deq/0,1607,7-135-3313_3682_3713---,00.html


6

ENGINEERING PLAN REQUIREMENTS

I. PLAN REQUIREMENTS

A. GENERAL

1. It is recommended that plans be submitted on 24" x 36" paper.
a. Minimum horizontal scale: 1” = 50’
b. Minimum vertical scale: 1” = 5’

2. A general plan at 1" = 100' or 1" = 200' needs to be included when the size of site 
prohibits a single plan sheet at 1” = 50’.  Provide street names, units, utilities, 
pavement, site dimensions, and phase lines on the general plan.  Setbacks and 
building separations shall be noted in accordance with the zoning requirements and 
the approved site plan.

3. A cover sheet including project name, location map showing major thoroughfares 
& section number, proprietor, engineer & architect contact information (necessary 
for forwarding review comments), and Professional Engineer (State of Michigan) 
seal and original signature shall be submitted with the plan set.

4. A title block shall be used for each sheet.
5. Appropriate sidwell numbers, lot number (if multiple lots), parcel dimensions, 

property zoning, building use and adjoining rights-of-way shall be shown.  
Additionally, the property owners and zoning shall be shown for all adjacent 
properties.

6. The Charter Township of Orion Standard Notes and Charter Township of Orion 
Fire Department Notes shall be included in the plan set.  See Appendix C for these 
notes.  The Standard Details (available by contacting the Township Engineer) are 
required with the permitting and final plan submittals.

7. A minimum of two benchmarks must be shown on the general plan.  See Section II 
Topographical Survey for additional requirements.

8. A legal description of property shall be included.  The description must have an 
error of closure no less than 1’: 5000’. 

9. A striping and traffic control plan for parking lot that indicates the proposed loading 
area must be included in the submittal.

10. A plan sheet that shows landscaping in accordance with zoning requirements and 
the approved Site Plan shall be provided.  All utilities shall be shown on the 
landscaping plan.

11. Per Oakland County the proposed sanitary sewer shall be shown on the same sheet 
in both plan view and profile view for each run of sewer. Each sheet shall only 
show runs from manhole to manhole with no mid run breaks across the sheets. This 
is in addition to the overall utility plan. 

12. The project’s tree survey information shall also be provided (it should not differ 
from information submitted to the PZD for site plan review).  The developer's 
engineer shall be responsible for coordinating tree removal plans with construction 
plans.  Grading limits shall be shown on the tree removal plan. 

13. Wetland limits and size shall be clearly shown, regardless of size/regulation status.
14. Easements for off-site work (grading, sewer, tap, etc.) must be submitted prior to 

construction.  Appropriate notes shall be provided within the plan set.
96



7

II. TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

A. GENERAL

1. Indicate a minimum of 2 Benchmarks based on NAVD88 or NGVD29 (USGS).
2. Show property lines indicated by bearing and distance.
3. The existing elevations shall be provided so that the drainage pattern can be 

established. On parcels of more than one (1) acre, topography on the site and within 
one hundred (100') of the site at two-foot (2 ft.) intervals, must be shown. 

4. Proposed elevations shall be shown at property corners and along property lines 
with sufficient on-site elevations or contours to establish site drainage.

4. Show all existing conditions, including but not limited to: ditches, culverts, utilities 
(invert and casting elevation), sidewalks, power poles, easements, building 
footprint and finish grade, finish grade of adjacent buildings, wetlands and 
woodlands, flood plains etc.

5. Show existing adjacent roads with ROW.  Grades must be shown at ditch centerline, 
top of bank, edge of shoulder, edge of pavement or top of curb and pavement 
centerline.  Grades must be shown on both sides of the road.

6. Show the locations of all existing gas, electric, cable and phone lines.

97



8

III. UTILITIES (GENERAL)

A. GENERAL

1. No new utilities are to be placed underneath building footprint.  For existing utilities 
to be abandoned within the influence of the foundation and pavement, the following 
criteria shall apply:

a. Abandoned utility less than 5' below footing/pavement – Remove existing 
utility.

b. Abandoned utility more than 5' below footing/pavement – Grout existing 
utility full as directed, using standpipe to prevent air voids.  Provide 
calculations showing the volume (in cubic feet) of grout required on plans.

c. Abandoned utility not within influence (assume 1:1 trench) of 
footing/pavement ---bulkhead as required by Township, unless utility is 
determined by the Township to be a hazard, nuisance, or potential 
maintenance problem.

2. Water Main and Sanitary Sewer must be extended across property frontage(s) or to 
a property line as directed by the Township.

3. Provide a sleeve (casing pipe) when utilities must cross retaining walls.
4. No water main or sanitary sewer will be allowed within ten (10) feet, measured 

horizontally, of the high water elevation of basins.   
5. All utilities shall be shown on the site, engineering, and as-built plans, including 

those that will not be Township maintained.  All utility crossings shall specify top 
and bottom of pipe elevations and finished grade elevations. 

6. Ensure that all utilities (water, storm, sanitary) are all traceable, including utility 
leads. 

7. No trees shall be planted in the sanitary sewer, storm sewer or water main 
easements.

98



9

IV. WATER MAIN

A. GENERAL

1. Quantity list on the cover sheet or utility sheet of the plans.  (This location is 
required for permitting purposes.)

2. Looped water main may be required based on Township review.
3. 10' horizontal separation required between water main and either sanitary or storm 

sewer.  All other utilities shall be located outside the limits of the water main 
easement.  (See item 7 below.)

4. 18" minimum vertical clearance between water main and all utilities, i.e. storm, 
sanitary sewer, electric, gas, phone, etc.  Top and bottom of pipe elevations shall 
be indicated on the profile with crossing noted on plan view.

5. All fittings, valves, hydrants shall be dimensioned from property corners or located 
by State Plane Coordinates.

6. Tapping sleeve and valve (TS&V) shall be used to connect to existing mains unless 
connection can be made without interrupting service on the main.  A like sized tap 
(i.e. the proposed main is the same size as the main to which it will connect) can 
only be constructed when the existing main is ductile iron.  Additionally, a 
mechanical tapping sleeve must be utilized, not the typical stainless steel tapping 
sleeve.  A gate valve and well is also required at all extensions of municipal water 
main.

7. Minimum 12' wide exclusive easement must be shown on the plans and must extend 
to the property lines where future connections are anticipated.

8. Water main cover shall be 5.5' to top of pipe, with 4' minimum allowed at 
ditch/utility crossings, in conformance with Charter Township of Orion Standard 
Water Main Details.

9. Taps for domestic water service from the fire service lead are not permitted, per 
Fire Department requirements.

10. Testing:
a. Bacteria samples will be obtained by the Township Engineer.  Contact 

Township Engineer for scheduling.
b. Prior to bacteria testing, the Contractor will conduct pressure testing with 

the Township Engineer witnessing on behalf of the Charter Township of 
Orion.  Contact the Township Engineer for scheduling.

B. MAINS

1. Minimum size water main (exclusive of hydrant leads) is 8", with the following 
maximum dead-end main lengths:

a. 50' for 6" fire hydrant lead
b. 600' for 8" main
c. 1000' for 12" main

All dead-end mains must end with a gate valve, well, and hydrant.  Maximum 
lengths are subject to modification based on Township review, and may require 
submittal of calculations showing adequate fire flow and daily turnover.

2. Profiles are required on water main over 12" diameter.
99



10

3. Pipe size, length and type are required to be shown in plan view for each run of 
pipe.  Material requirements are as indicated on the current Standard Details. 

4. Use of 90 bends shall be prohibited, and may be placed only as specifically 
approved in writing by the Township.  Minimum length between bends shall be two 
(2) pipe diameters.  Maximum preferred bend size is 45. 

5. Length, size, and invert of casing and pipe shall be shown at all bore locations.  
Casing pipe is required in the event a water main must pass under a structural 
retaining wall, and must extend beyond the angle of repose of the retaining wall.  
Every attempt must be made to direct the water main around any structural retaining 
wall.

6. Joints shall be restrained per manufacturer or as approved by Township Engineer, 
tied or harnessed at all deflections of 11¼ or greater, behind tee outlets, at hydrant 
shoes, at plugs or caps and at any crosses to prevent lateral movement of the pipe.  
Concrete thrust blocks shall be required in addition to restraints, unless approval by 
the Township Engineer is given to exclude thrust blocks.  Concrete thrust blocks 
shall bear against undisturbed earth in all instances and shall have sufficient bearing 
area to develop the full resultant axial thrust of the pipe at test pressure.  The 
concrete thrust block shall not cover fastener nuts and/or threaded connections that 
would hinder future maintenance or repairs of fittings or valve assemblies.

a. Ductile Iron Joints, where required, shall be restrained by an approved 
mechanical restraining gland or instant push-on restraining device.  

b. Push-on Joints shall be restrained with approved instant joint-retaining 
device such as Field Lok Gasket manufactured by U.S. Pipe Company or 
approved equal.  A restraining schedule must be submitted and approved by 
the Township Engineer prior to installation and can be obtained from the 
pipe manufacturer. 

c. Mechanical Joint-Retaining Glands where allowed shall be the “Megalug 
Series” as manufactured by EBAA Iron or approved equal. 

d. Thrust blocks, shall be made of 3,000 psi concrete and of adequate size and 
shape to resist all design working and surge pressures to which the main 
will be subjected.

e. All joint materials and lubricants shall be furnished with the pipe, including 
all material required for connection to existing water mains and 
appurtenances.

f. Harnessed joints and steel reinforced concrete anchorage will be required 
on pipes larger than 16” diameter.

C. VALVES

1. Valve spacing:  800' maximum inline, or less, based on requirements of item #2.
2. The following requirements need to be met in the event of a breakage:  

a. A maximum of three valves shall be used to isolate break.
b. No more than 2 hydrants can be out of service.
c. No more than 24 single family units or 30 multiple units out of service.
d. Subject to modification based on Fire Department review.

3. Valves shall generally be located outside of sidewalk/pathway.
4. Gate wells are required for all valves that are 6” diameter and larger. Valves that 

are 2” and smaller only require a box.  Valves between 3” and 4” that require a 
100



11

tapping sleeve for installation shall be placed in a gatewell, otherwise a box is 
acceptable.

D. HYDRANTS

1. Hydrant spacing:
a. Residential:  500' maximum
b. Commercial, industrial or multiple:  Spacing of hydrants shall be considered 

as individual cases, and shall be determined by consultation with the Fire 
Department and the Director of Public Works.

2. Hydrants must be protected by 6" curb in parking areas.  The Township can at its 
discretion approve standard hydrant posts.

3. No parking within 10' of a hydrant.
4. Hydrants to be placed between 3' and 10' of the back of curb.
5. Hydrant leads shall be restrained joint only, per Standard Detail Sheet.  In addition 

to restraint joint, thrust blocks shall be placed at hydrants, unless otherwise 
approved by the Township.

6. Gate wells should not be used for hydrant valves; all hydrant valves shall be 
installed in boxes.

7. Any hydrant proposed for relocation shall be the current required model per the 
Water Main Standard Details; if not, a new hydrant shall be used.  A note shall be 
placed on the plans stating this requirement.

E. METERS

1. All users (homes, businesses, commercial buildings, etc.) shall have approved type 
meters installed.  Contact Charter Township of Orion DPW at (248) 391-0304.

F. WELLS

1. All wells, pumps and pump housings shall be permitted and constructed as required 
by current Oakland County and Michigan Department of Public Health 
requirements, standards, and specifications.

2.  Private wells must be separate and independent of the Township water system.
3. Where a well is to be abandoned, it shall be capped as required by Oakland County 

and Michigan Department of Public Health requirements, standards, and 
specifications.

G. METERS AND SERVICE LINES

1. The Charter Township of Orion Water Department will make the tap only on all 
water services 2-inches and fewer inches in diameter. The contractor will be 
responsible for installing the lead.

2. All water service connections shall include corporation stops, service pipe, and 
either curb stops and boxes (for 2" and smaller), valve and box (for 2" to 4"), or 
gate valve and well (for larger than 6").  Where possible, the curb stops and box 
shall be set in the road ROW, 6" from the property line.  Otherwise, all curb stops 
and boxes shall be located within a dedicated water main easement.

101



12

3. Stops and boxes shall not be placed within existing or proposed pavement, unless 
there is no alternative, or if otherwise required by the Township.  Stops placed 
within existing or proposed pavement will be required to be housed in a valve box 
and cover per the standard details.

4. Water service size shall be 3/4" minimum. 
5. All water services up to 2" diameter shall be either Type K soft copper or Poly Blue 

PVC with a pressure class of 200 psi to the meter.  If PVC is used, a tracing wire 
shall be run from the meter setup to the curb box.

6. All water services greater than 2" diameter shall be Class 54 ductile iron pipe.
7. Meters shall be purchased from the Charter Township of Orion Water Department. 

a. 3/4", 1", and 1.5” meters shall be installed by the Township.
b. 2" (or larger) meters shall be installed by a licensed plumber.

H. MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION METHODS

1. All proposed water systems shall be constructed in compliance with these standards 
and the Charter Township of Orion Water Main Standard Details. 

102



13

V. SEWERS (SANITARY/STORM)

A. GENERAL

1. Storm and sanitary sewer size, grade and manhole spacing table: 
  Std. Min. Max. Std. Max.
  Grade Grade Grade Run Run

Size   (%) (%) (%) (Ft) (Ft) 
8”* 0.80 0.40 8.0 300 350
10"   0.60 0.30 6.2 300 350

 12"   0.40 0.22 6.0 300 350
15"   0.24 0.16 3.6 300 350

 18"   0.18 0.12 2.8 300 400
 21"& greater  0.14 0.10 2.2 300 400

* The minimum allowable sanitary sewer size is 8” diameter.
* The minimum allowable storm sewer size is 8” diameter.

2. The following must be shown on plan view for storm and sanitary sewer plans:
a. Size of pipe
b. Length between structures
c. Easement (where required)
d. Progressive numbering system for all structures.
e. Dimension to property lines, or coordinates related to a property corner.

3. Profiles must be shown with the following information for storm and sanitary sewer 
plans:

a. Length, type, class, size and slope of pipe between structures
b. Top of casting and all sewer inverts at all structures
c. Existing and proposed ground elevations
d. All utility crossings
e. Special backfill areas, i.e., compacted sand 
f. Provisions for infiltration testing (sanitary sewer only)
g. Hydraulic Grade Line (storm sewer only)
h. Progressive numbering system

4. All structures shall be dimensioned from property corners or located by State Plane 
Coordinates.

5. A structure will be required at all changes in alignment, size or grade and at all 
junction points.

6. No “blind” taps of mainline sewer shall be allowed into the existing system.  All 
such taps will require the installation of a standard structure (i.e. manhole or catch 
basin).  Taps for sewer leads do not require a structure.

7. Where Manning's equation is required to compute flow, minimum value for "n" 
shall be 0.013 for sewers (even if a smoother pipe is accepted), 0.025 for culverts, 
and 0.035 for open channels.

8. All sewer construction is required to maintain a minimum 10’ horizontal separation 
between the sewer and water main.  Additionally, an 18” minimum vertical 
clearance is required between the sewer and water main.

103



14

B. MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION METHODS

1. All proposed sewer systems shall be constructed in compliance with these standards 
and the Charter Township of Orion Sanitary Sewer/Storm Sewer Standard Details.  
The current allowable sewer material types are as follows:

a. Building Leads – S.D.R. 23.5 ABS pipe or Schedule 40 PVC
b. Sanitary Sewer: PVC Truss Pipe (ASTM D2680) (Diameter - 15” or less)
c. Storm Sewer: Shall follow all manufacturer specifications and all County 

standards
d. Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Sanitary Sewer: Diameter – 18” or larger, Storm 

Sewer: All sizes)
i. RCP CL. IV for a depth up to 14 feet

ii. CL. V for a depth 14 feet to 24 feet
iii. Special design for depth greater than 24 feet 
iv. RCP CL. III may be allowed in some cases if engineer provides 

calculations to show CL. III pipe can withstand the loading.

104



15

VI. SANITARY SEWER

A. GENERAL

1. Indicate building lead size, locations and invert elevation at building or finish grade 
of building.  (Minimum 6" diameter at 1% slope.)  Verify and indicate elevations 
at crossings with all other utilities.  

2. Testing:
a. Township Engineer and Orion Township will inspect sanitary taps into 

existing structures.  The Contractor shall contact Township Engineer and 
Township to set up inspection. Additionally, the Contractor is responsible 
for ensuring a permit has been pulled for the OCWRC tap.  

b. Sanitary air test will be conducted by the Contractor with the Township 
Engineer witnessing on behalf of the Township.  The Contractor shall 
contact Township Engineer for scheduling.  

3. Added depth may be required for sewer extensions to provide future service to the 
sewer district.

4. In sanitary sewers where construction of building sewers (leads) to the property line 
is not required, a wye branch (tees not allowed) shall be installed for each lot or 
potential building site.

5. Minimum 20' wide exclusive easement.  Increase may be required due to depth of 
sewer.  

6. Leads shall not be connected to manholes unless specifically approved by the 
Township for a connection to the last manhole.

7. Pump stations will not be allowed unless there is no other alternative for sewer 
service.  If a lift station is required, standard design details shall be purchased from 
the Charter Township of Orion for use. 

8. Prior to acceptance of the sewer, the developer or contractor shall provide a 
videotape or approved digital image file of the sewer (with flows) to the Township.  
The video shall be taken no less than 30 days after installation.

9. Casing pipe is required in the event a sanitary sewer must pass under a structural 
retaining wall, and must extend beyond the angle of repose of the retaining wall.  
Every attempt must be made to direct the sanitary sewer around any structural 
retaining wall.

B. DESIGN CRITERIA

1. Quantity list and design data (on the cover sheet or utility sheet of the plans) in 
conformance with current 10 States Standards shall be included.  SeeSee Appendix 
E Utilizefor a copy of the current OCWRDC Schedule of Unit Assignment Factors 
for theand an example of a typical basis of design.

2. Velocity:  Minimum = 2.0 fps; Maximum = 10.0 fps.  
3. The maximum depth to invert of any sanitary sewer pipe shall not exceed 80% of 

the manufacturer's recommendation.
4. Whenever there is a change in direction in a sewer at a manhole, an allowance of 

0.10 feet in grade shall be made for loss of head through the manhole.
5. Whenever there is a change in pipe size, the inverts of both sewers shall be set at a 

grade so that both sewers maintain the same energy gradient.
105



16

6. Minimum size for sewer shall be 8” diameter.
7. Materials, bedding, joints, manholes, and other appurtenances shall be as specified 

or shown on the Standard Details.
8. 4' minimum cover required over mains and leads.

C. DROP CONNECTIONS

1. Drop connections shall be constructed according to the Standard Details.  A drop 
connection is required when there is an 18” vertical difference between inverts on 
outlet and inlet pipes.  Drop connections are to meet the following requirements:

a. If the drop manhole is to be part of the new construction, then a five (5) foot 
pre-cast structure with internal drop connection shall be used.

b. If the existing manhole is deemed large enough to accommodate an interior 
drop by the system owner (i.e. Oakland County DPW or Charter Township 
of Orion DPW), then an interior drop that utilizes a drop bowl can be 
constructed.  Otherwise, an exterior drop connection must be constructed.

D. INFILTRATION

1. The infiltration rate for all sanitary sewers shall comply with current Oakland 
County Standards.

E. PUMP STATIONS

1. Any proposed pump station shall be considered on a case-by-case basis by the DPW 
and Township Engineer, according to existing and proposed site conditions and 
according to all current local, County and State requirements.

106



17

VII. STORM SEWER

A. GENERAL

1. It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with or obstruct flow of surface water 
over easements for public utilities or to impede the flow of surface water across 
private property in a manner different from the approved grading plan and drainage 
pattern.

2. A storm district drainage map shall be provided for all plan submittals, showing the 
storm system, sub-areas contributing to each structure and/or system, along with 
the overall drainage district limits.  Areas and structures should be labeled and 
correspond with the calculations.

3. Upstream (pass through) drainage shall also be accommodated.  Smaller sites may 
only need to indicate the quantity of flow, contributing acreage, and point of entry 
(with an arrow, etc.).  Larger sites will be required to provide a contour map, at no 
more than 1"=200'.

4. Where retention is required, storage volume must be provided for all acreage 
contributing to the basin, including that acreage off-site.

5. Where detention or retention is required, a sediment forebay designed to capture 
the runoff from a 1-year storm event shall be included.

6. Storage may be allowed by either an in-line or off-line basin.  See the appropriate 
section of these Standards for basin requirements.

7. Discharge cannot be diverted onto adjoining properties.
8. Existing drainage patterns shall be maintained.
9. Connections at storm structures:  roof drains may flow overland or be connected at 

a structure; direct tap connections are allowed only when provide with a core and 
boot.  If sump discharge is connected to storm sewer, 4” is the minimum diameter 
pipe to be utilized.

10. Size the pipe downstream of outlet to carry the flow from all on-site and off-site 
contributing area for a 10-year storm event.

11. All storm drainage from truck wells shall pass through an approved oil/gas 
separator structure.  Capacity of the structure shall be based on the contributing 
area.  The Township may require an oil/gas separator for certain proposed site uses 
that potentially pose a threat to drainage contamination. 

12. A note shall be added to the plans stating that the owner will regularly clean and 
maintain all storm sewer and detention basins per the Township’s Stormwater 
Management and Erosion Control Ordinance No. 139.

13. Casing pipe is required in the event a storm sewer must pass under a structural 
retaining wall, and must extend beyond the angle of repose of the retaining wall.  
Every attempt must be made to direct the storm sewer around any structural 
retaining wall.

14. Side slopes of all open channels and/or ditches shall be no steeper than 1 vertical to 
4 horizontal.

B. DESIGN CRITERIA

i. Design calculations shall be submitted with hydraulic grade line computed.  
107



18

ii. Attempt to keep hydraulic grade line (HGL) within pipe.  At no time shall HGL be 
within two feet of the top of casting elevation.  Where edge drain is used, HGL 
shall also be kept below invert of the edge drain.  When starting HGL from an 
existing pond or other water area, the 100-year elevation shall be used.  

iii. Design shall minimize standing water in all storm sewers, existing and proposed.
iv. Design:  Q = CIA, Rational Method. 

a. 10-year storm, I = 175/(Tc+25) with an initial Tc = 20 minimum for 
residential development; shall be less for non-residential development, 
based on the actual time of flow from the most distant point of flow 
measurement.

b. Larger sites should use a more appropriate method of determining flow.  For 
watersheds up to 20 square miles, the suggested method for determining 
surface runoff is the Soil Conservation Service (SCS) Methodology.  The 
computations should be based on the Type II rainfall distribution, 10-year, 
24-hr storm.  It is the responsibility of the design engineer to determine the 
best method to use for the site.

c. Typical composite runoff coefficient, C:
C

Agricultural/Undeveloped 0.20
Single Family Residential 0.35

Multiple Family 0.55
Commercial & Industrial 0.70

Completely Paved/Open Water 0.95

These coefficients are recommended minimums and may not be sufficient based 
on Township review - use surface runoff coefficients for each sub-area.

d. Typical surface runoff coefficients, C:
Surface C

Open Water 1.00
Pavement

Asphalt and Concrete 0.90
Brick 0.90

Aggregate 0.65
Roofs 0.90
Lawns 0.20

NOTE: Surface area of detention/retention ponds shall be considered to be 
open water.  Calculations shall consider the pond area at the peak (100-year) 
storage elevation.

e. Velocity:  Minimum = 2.0 fps; Maximum = 10.0 fps.  Velocities exceeding 
5 fps (or less depending on soils) will require erosion protection at outfall.

f. Use the “Manning” equation to calculate the flow capacity.
g. The runoff coefficient calculation must be included with plan submittal.

v. Sewer requirements:
a. All storm sewer shall be sized for the flow generated from a 10-year storm 

event.  Calculations shall take into account both on-site and off-site 
contributing area.

b. All storm sewer shall be shown in profile.
108



19

c. 8" diameter minimum pipe size. 
d. 4’ diameter minimum for manholes and catch basins.
e. 2’ diameter minimum for inlets – allowable for use when only one 12” pipe 

is connected to the structure (discharge pipe) and when preceding a structure 
with a sump.

f. Minimum cover of 2'-6".  MDOT "low head" required instead of 
cone/corbel if less than 4 feet of cover over pipe at structure, unless structure 
is 2' diameter.  Plan & profile shall specify "low head" where necessary, and 
shall be constructed according to the Standard Details.

g. Drainage inlets and catch basins shall be located as follows:
i. To assure complete positive drainage of all areas of the 

development.
ii. At all low points of streets and rear yards.

iii. Such that there is no flow across a street intersection.
iv. Such that there is a maximum of 500 feet of drainage from any 

particular point in the development to an inlet or catch basin.
h. All pipe connections at manholes shall be separated a minimum 1' between 

pipe walls with 40% of the manhole circumference intact.  The design 
engineer shall provide details for all manholes with multiple pipe 
connections not meeting the requirements below:

MANHOLE 
INSIDE 

DIAMETER

MAX. PIPE SIZE FOR 
STRAIGHT-THROUGH

INSTALLATION

MAX. PIPE SIZE FOR
RIGHT-ANGLE
INSTALLATION

48” 24” 18”
60” 36” 24”
72” 42” 36”
96” 60” 42”

i. If the storm sewer will be maintained by a subdivision Home Owners 
Association (HOA) or Condominium Association (commercial or 
otherwise), a 12’ minimum easement granted to the respective Association 
will be required.

j. A two (2) foot sump is required for any structure receiving surface runoff, 
except inlet structures.

k. All storm sewer shall be “premium joint” (rubber gasket).
l. Trench drains shall be permitted for use in truck wells. 

vi. Inlet headwater control or outlet tailwater control nomographs with proper “K” 
factors shall be used to determine culvert sizes.

109



20

VIII. INFILTRATION/DETENTION/RETENTION FACILITIESBASIN

A. GENERAL

1. All sites will be required to provide channel protection volume (CPVC) control by 
retaining the runoff volume from the 1.3-inch rainfall event to the maximum extent 
practicable.  Provide adequate infiltration and/or storage/reuse BMP’s to provide 
the calculated CPVC volume.  Facilities may include bioretention, rain gardens, 
bio-swales, cisterns, infiltration trenches, etc.  Water demand for water reuse 
BMP’s must be established and documented to ensure proper drawdown times.

2. Soil infiltration testing is required for all sites to be performed by a qualified 
geotechnical engineer who is a registered professional engineer in the State of 
Michigan.
a. Measured in-situ infiltration rate is above 0.5 in/hr, soils are adequate for 
infiltration
b. Measured in-situ infiltration rate is between 0.24 in/hr and 0.5 in/hr, soils 
are marginal for infiltration and will require supplemental measures such as subsoil 
modifications, underdrains, etc. to maximize infiltration.
c. Measured in-situ infiltration rate is less thatthan 0.24 in/hr, soils are not 
suitable for infiltration and the CPVC requirement is waived.  When the CPVC 
requirement is waived, other volume reducing LID practices must be implemented 
to the maximum extent practicable.

3. Pre-treatment is required for all BMP’s to remove fine sediment, trash, and debris 
to preserve the longevity and function of the BMP.

4. Infiltration BMP’s are prohibited in areas with contaminated 
soils/groundwater, well head protection areas, high seasonal groundwater 
(less than 2’ to the bottom of the infiltration BMP), and in areas with hotspot 
activities and setback restrictions.

5. All sites are required to provide channel protection rate control (CPRC): 
extended detention for the 1.9-inch rainfall event.  

6. All sites are required to provide water quality control (WQC) by limiting the total 
suspended solids (TSS) to either of the following standards: 80mg/L or 80%TSS 
reduction.  Areas tributary to the BMP’s that achieve the channel protection volume 
meet the requirements for WQC.  Areas of the site plan that are not served by the 
channel protection volume BMP’s shall provide TSS treatment with the following 
options:will be required to provide a sediment forebay, or equivalent mechanical 
treatment unit structure within the storm system, at each inlet point to the basin 
designed to capture the runoff from a 1-year storm.  

a. Mechanical separators, the mechanical separator shall remove 80% of 
TSS based upon the 75 micron particle size and 90% of the floatable 
free oil.  The units shall be NJDEP certified to meet these requirements.

a.b.Sediment forebays, tThe forebay should be a separate cell from the main 
detention/retention basin. and designed such that it will dewater within 
48 hours.  The outlet device must be designed to filter sediment, heavy 
pollutants and oil from the water flow.

b.c.The volume of detention/retention within the forebay, above any 
proposed permanent pool of water, can be considered when calculating 
total detention/retention volume required for a site.

110



21

c.d.The forebay must have a minimum depth of 2 feet to capture and prevent 
resuspension of sediment. The mechanical system must remove a 
minimum of 80% of the Total Suspended Solids (TSS) based on a 75-
micron particle size and 90% of the floatable free oil and follow the 
Oakland County Standards.

d.e.The separation between the main basin and the forebay shall be designed 
to allow overtopping of flows in a controlled and non-erosive manner.

e.f. An access route shall be provided for forebay/treatment unit 
maintenance.  Direct access shall be provided for the inlet and outlet 
facilities. 

All sites are required to provide Detention & Flood Control to manage the 100-year 
peak runoff rate.  Vvolume on a gravity outflow detention basin is defined as the 
volume of detention provided above the invert of the outflow pipe.  Any volume 
provided below the invert of the outflow pipe will not be considered detention.
2.4. Detention basin shall be sized to accommodate only on-site drainage and 

limited off-site drainage if applicable. Off-site drainage shall be routed around the 
site basin as to “pass-through” the site without affecting the restrictor sizing within 
the basin outflow structure. Drainage area map shall include all off-site areas per 
storm sewer requirements.

3.5. If a wet basin is designed, the minimum average depth of permanent 
standing water shall be 4 feet.  Additionally, some mechanical means for water 
circulation shall be integrated into the pond to minimize stagnant water. 

4.6. If a dry basin is designed, the bottom shall be sodded.  1.0% is the minimum 
bottom slope allowed.

5.7. All basins shall have a positive dewatering method, such as by gravity flow 
or pump outlet.

6.8. Minimum 12" freeboard provided (at overflow) above 100-year storm 
elevation.

7.9. A proposed non-erodible overflow route must be shown on the plans and 
must be able to contain a 100-year storm event.  Acceptable methods would include 
a control structure, overflow weir and swale, etc.  Downstream drainage easements 
may be required for the overflow route.

8.10. The receiving watercourses shall be identified on the plan for the 100-year 
event.

9.11. The developer shall make provisions for maintenance of the basin by the 
property owner(s).  The Township will not accept the responsibility for the 
maintenance of any basin or other site drainage feature.  See Township Ordinance 
No. 139 for details regarding maintenance responsibilities.

10.12. Basins bank slopes shall be fenced if side slopes exceed 1 on 4 (may be 
waived if Bldg. Dept. feels location and depth do not present a hazard and/or design 
is integral part of landscaping).  Wet basin side slopes may not exceed 1 on 6 at the 
normal water level. Also applies to sediment basins.

a. If a fence is required an access gate shall be provided, as approved by the 
Township.

b. Maximum side slope 1 on 3.  Properly designed retaining walls may be 
utilized on any or all sides of a proposed basin.  See Section XI “Retaining 
Walls” for wall requirements.

111



22

13. Oversize storm pipes or underground basin (with restricted outlet) may be allowed, 
subject to Township review.

14. No rooftop or parking lot detention/retention is allowed.

B. DESIGN CRITERIA

1. Oversize storm pipes or underground basin (with restricted outlet) may be allowed, 
subject to Township review.

2. No rooftop or parking lot detention/retention is allowed.
1. Channel Protection Volume Control shall be calculated using the following 

equation: Vcp-r = 4,719 x C x A
Where:
Vcp-r is the revised CPVC volume in cubic feet
C is the post development runoff coefficient

A is the contributing area in acres
2. Infiltration BMP’s designed to meet the CPVC criteria shall completely dewater within 

72 hours, consisting of the 24 hour dewatering for the surface volume and 48 hour 
dewatering of the void space.  Water storage/reuse BMP’s shall also be designed to 
fully dewater within 72 hours.

3. Channel Protection Rate Control: Extended Detention volume shall be calculated using 
the following equation: Ved = 6,897 x C x A

Where:
Ved is the required volume for extended detention in cubic 

feet
C is the post development runoff coefficient
A is the contributing area in acres

4. Extended detention shall be dewatered in not less than 48 hours.
5. Water Quality Control requirements achieved with mechanical separators shall be 

designed for the 1 year peak flow rates utilizing the following equation:
Qwq = C x I x A
Where:
Qwq is the peak flow rate for mechanical separator design in cfs
C is post development runoff coefficient
I = 30.2 / (Tc + 9.17)0.81 

Tc =  Time of concentration in minutes
Maximum peak intensity (I) = 2.0 inches/hour for smaller sites with time 
of concentration equal to or less than 15 minutes
Minimum peak intensity (I) = 1.0 inches/hour for larger sites with a

 time of concentration equal to or greater than 1 hour
A is the contributing area in acres

6. Water Quality Control requirements achieved with sediment forebays, combined with 
extended detention shall be designed with a volume equal to 15% of the water quality 
volume and is calculated using the following equation:

Vf = 0.15Vwq = 545 x C x A
Where:
Vf is the required sediment forebay volume
C is the post development runoff coefficient

A is the contributing area in acres112



23

7. Detention and Flood Control shall be provided to manage the 100 year peak runoff 
rate.  The allowable peak discharge rate is variable release rate and shall be 
determined utilizing the following equationsRestricted outflow shall be 0.2 cfs/acre 
unless otherwise allowed/required by design of a more restrictive receiving drain.  
Note: Some areas in Orion Township have a documented dischargerequire a more 
restrictive runoff rate.  See Appendix DF for a listing of allowable discharge rates 
for drainage districts within the Township or contact OCWRC.  If the variable 
release rate formula yields a more restrictive rate than the receiving drain, the 
formula shall be used.

Qvrr = 1.1055 – 0.206ln (A)
Where:
Qvrr is the allowable release rate in cfs/acre
A is the contributing area in acres

The variable release rate is capped at 1.0 cfs/acre for developments 2 acres or
 less.  For all developments equal to or greater than 100 acres, the variable

 release rate is 0.15 cfs/acre
Q100p = Qvrr x A
Where:W
Q100p is the allowable 100 year peak flow discharge rate
A in the contributing area in acres

8. The required 100 detention volume shall be calculated utilizing the following 
equations:

Calculate the total 100 year runoff volume:
V100r = 18985 x C x A
Where:
V100r is the total 100 year runoff volume
C is the post development runoff coefficient
A is the contributing area in acres

Calculate the 100 year peak inflow rate:
Q100in = C x I100 x A
I100 = 83.3 / (Tc + 9.17)0.81

Where:
Q100in is the 100 year peak inflow rate
C is the post development runoff coefficient
I100 is the 100 year peak rainfall intensity in inches/hour
Tc is the Time of Concentration in minutes

Calculate the storage curve factor:
R = [0.206 – 0.15ln (Q100p / Q100in)]
Where:
Q100in is the 100 year peak inflow rate
Q100p is the 100 year peak discharge rate
R is the storage curve factor

Calculate the 100 detention basin size:
V100d = (V100r x R) – Vcp-p
Where:
V100d is the required 100 year detention basin volume in cft
V100r is the 100 year runoff volume in cft
R is the storage curve factor
Vcp-p is the provided CVPC volume in cft (if applicable)113



24

Key rule is that V100d > Ved
8. The 100 de

3.9. Provide calculations showing the required restrictor size to control the rate 
of outflow. The minimum rRestrictor size is three (3) inches or less in diameter 
requires special approval.
Sediment forebays shall be sized to handle the runoff generated by all improved 
site area during a 1-year storm event, based on Oakland County Simplified Method.  
Volume calculations must be provided for each contributing area.  See Appendix F 
for a sample calculation.
Detention basins shall be sized to handle the runoff generated by all improved site 
area during a 100-year storm event, based on Oakland County Simplified Method.  
Calculations for storage (both required and provided) and orifice sizing must be 
shown on the plans.  See Appendix F for a sample calculation.

4.10. Retention basins shall be sized to handle the runoff generated by all 
improved site area for two (2) consecutive 100-year storm events., using Oakland 
County Simplified Method.  See Appendix F for a sample calculation.

5.11. Both in-line and off-line detention will be considered.  An in-line detention 
outlet must control the runoff from the 100-year storm event, including upstream 
drainage.  

6.12. Underground storage facilities will be considered where traditional storm 
water management measures are not feasible.  The use of underground storage will 
require the installation of one of two recommended control structure.  The first is a 
standard manhole with weir plate (top of plate at 100-year storm elevation) and 
orifice provided for the extended detention1-year allowable discharge; this 
configuration can only be used in a pre-cast manhole.  The second is a corrugated 
metal standpipe strapped inside in a minimum 5’ diameter manhole (top of 
standpipe at 100-year storm elevation) and an orifice drilled into the standpipe to 
allow the discharge of the extended detention 1-year storm event.

7.13. Detention in wetlands may be allowed, subject to Township/EGLEMDEQ 
review. Conditions that must be met for Township approval are outlined in 
Ordinance No. 139. The permitted use of the wetlands for storm water discharge 
and/or detention shall not exempt the wetlands from future regulation or 
consideration as a wetland with respect to the Goemaere-Anderson Wetland Act.  
(Part 303 of Act 451 of P.A. 1994)

8.14. Overflow outlet shall be the standard OCWRC standpipe with extended 
detention1-year and 100-year outflow provision.  Both the 1-year and 100-year 
structures should be permanent.  See Appendix DF for a copy of the OCWRC 
details.

9.15. Outlet pipe from 100-year overflow to receiving system shall be sized for 
10-year storm.

WATER QUALITY ALTERNATIVES
C.

The above storm water standards represent the minimum criteria that are necessary in order to 
gain approval.  The Township would like to encourage developers and engineers to utilize 
alternate approaches to site construction that improve storm water quality and reduce the 
quantity of runoff from the site.  In order for the Township to consider alternate designs, 

114



25

documentation must be provided that presents the alternate’s sustainability and long term 
maintenance requirements.    The following list is a partial list of Best Management Practices 
(BMPs):
Green Roofs

a. Bioswales
b. Cisterns
c. Rain Gardens
d. Porous Pavement

e. Native Landscaping
f. Filter Strips
g. French Drains
h. Level Spreaders
i. Dry wells

115



26

VIII. FLOOD PLAIN DEVELOPMENT

A. GENERAL

1. MDEQ permit required.
2. Review per principles of compensating excavation (i.e., all fill within floodplain 

must be compensated for by an equivalent volume of excavation to maintain water 
storage volume).

3. 100-year flood plain (per FEMA) must be shown on all plans.  If no flood plain 
exists, so note.  

IX. SITE GRADING

A. GENERAL

1. Sufficient proposed grades indicated to ensure that:
a. Drainage is adequately discharged offsite with proper detention or 

retention.
b. No upstream drainage is restricted.
c. Paving slopes are adequate.
d. The site generally drains without standing water.
e. Sight lines are not obstructed (especially at driveways).

2. Elevations representing the finished grade and the first floor grade must be 
indicated for both proposed buildings and existing buildings on adjacent property. 

3. No disturbance shall be permitted to vegetation and no activity shall be permitted 
within twenty-five (25) feet of a regulated wetland or watercourse in all zoning 
districts.  This provision is not intended to prohibit wetland crossings for 
infrastructure or wetland fill approved by either the Charter Township of Orion or 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality.

4. Proposed grading shall meet abutting property line elevations.  Easements from 
adjacent property owners will be required for any offsite grading.

5. Differentials in grade must incorporate a 4 on 1 maximum slope to the abutting 
property line.

6. If permitted by the Township Engineer, slopes of 3 on 1 to 4 on 1 can be constructed 
interior to the site and shall be restored using an approved "erosion blanket".  This 
shall be identified on the plans.  Non-vegetative restoration may also be considered 
for these slopes, if permitted. 

7. Walls or berms, as required by Zoning, must be shown in cross-section and included 
in the bound engineering plan set.  Walls separating a grade differential of more 
than 3' are considered retaining walls and require a structural engineering design 
and review.  Some retaining walls less than 3’ in height, if determined by the 
Township, will require structural design and review.  Design Engineer must supply 
calculations and include all retaining walls in the Engineer's estimate.

116



27

XI. RETAINING WALLS

A. GENERAL

1. Design details and computations (sealed by a registered engineer in good standing 
in the State of Michigan) shall be submitted and approved for all retaining or screen 
walls which are greater than three (3) feet in height.  The Township reserves the 
right to require design calculations and details for shorter walls in unique situations.  
Cost of wall shall be included in engineer’s estimate submitted with Engineering 
Plan Review application.

2. Any face of a retaining wall shall be a minimum of five (5) feet from the nearest 
property line as to provide adequate space for maintenance and potential drainage 
swales if required.

3. Easement from abutting parcels will be required for any retaining wall footing that 
encroaches on said parcel, or where it appears that "normal" (1 on 1 side slope) 
excavation to the bottom of the footing would require encroachment.

4. Typically, utilities shall not be proposed under a retaining wall.  If it is unavoidable, 
then all proposed utilities shall be installed in a proper casing pipe.

5. Wall details shall be included in the overall plan set.
6. It is noted that additional surface drainage shall not be placed directly behind the 

wall upon completion of construction for this may compromise the structural 
integrity of the wall. 

7. Design engineer shall execute and submit certification form. (See Appendix EG for 
example form.)   Additionally, if the design engineer for the site did not complete 
the design of the retaining wall, then the retaining wall design engineer shall sign 
and seal their plans.

8. The following wall types are acceptable in the Township:
a. Concrete Wall
b. Pre-Cast Wall
c. Block Wall
d. Wood Wall
e. Boulder Wall 

9. The following items shall be included in all retaining wall submittals for review:
f. Plan View

i. Clearly identify location of the structure in plan view.
ii. Indicate the top of wall and bottom of wall elevation at a minimum 

interval of 25’ along the wall.
iii. Provide finished grades adjacent to the structure at a maximum interval 

of 25’.
iv. Show location of protective guardrail and/or fencing.  The necessity for 

guardrail will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.  Typically, a guard, 
fence or guardrail is required on structures greater than 30” in height.  
The typical guard or fence is 42” high with openings less than 4” in 
diameter.

v. The proposed drainage system shall be shown on the plans as well as its 
ultimate discharge point, i.e. storm structure, ditch or swale, etc.

117



28

g. Cross-section View
i. Provide minimum and maximum heights of the wall.

ii. Identify the material type and all manufacturers’ specifications.
iii. State the proposed structural dimensions, including wall thickness, and 

the depth and thickness of the footing.
iv. Geo-grid length shall be provided, dimensioned and labeled, as well as 

the embedment depth.  Any changes in layout shall be shown on the 
plans.

v. Fence, guard, or guardrail post footings or connections to walls shall be 
detailed.  Installation of the post or post footing shall be specified so as 
not to damage any geo-grid, if applicable.

vi. The location of utility crossings shall be noted.  Additionally, the 
manner in which these crossings will be constructed so as not to 
diminish the integrity of the wall shall be noted.

h. Calculations
i. Design loads including vehicular impact and surcharge loadings where 

applicable.  Loads due to attached structures (fences, guardrails, guards, 
etc) shall be considered in the design of the wall.

ii. Note the grade of reinforcing steel, as well as the cover depth and the 
horizontal spacing.

iii. Provide the bearing pressures (noted or referenced) and the soil bearing 
capacities.

iv. Provide soil boring information and geotechnical analysis, if required.

118



29

XII. SOIL EROSION CONTROL

A. GENERAL

1. All sites with more than an acre of disturbed ground (total) or any earth disruption 
within five hundred (500) feet of the waters of the state regardless of the amount of 
land disturbed must apply for a permit from Orion Township.  All sites shall 
conform to the criteria listed herein and within Article 4 of Ordinance 139. Soil 
Erosion Permits shall not be issued if the required fees and bonds have not been 
submitted to the Township and will only be issued to the landowner. Additionally, 
all site plans shall follow the plan requirements pursuant to rule 1703 promulgated 
under Part 91, as amended.

2. A soil survey or written description of the soils of the anticipated exposed land area 
shall be included within the plan.

3. All proposed temporary and permanent erosion control measures shall be shown on 
the plans submitted to the Township.  Descriptions for installing and removing all 
proposed temporary measures shall be included and descriptions for permanent 
measure installation shall be included. 

4. A Soil Erosion Control (and/or construction) Sequence shall be shown on the plans 
outlining the timing of proposed earth changes.

5. The smallest practical area of land should be exposed at any one time during 
development.  "Practical area" shall be defined as the area in which temporary or 
permanent restoration can and will be performed within a reasonable period of time, 
as defined by the Township. Location of the physical limits of disruption shall be 
called out on the Soil Erosion Plan.

6. When land is exposed during development, the exposure should be kept to the 
shortest possible period of time, as deemed by the Township.

7. Temporary vegetation or mulching may be required to protect areas exposed during 
development, particularly if an unexpected erosion problem becomes evident.  The 
developer will be required to assign this activity top priority upon notification by 
the Township.  

8. Sediment basins (debris basins or silt traps) shall be installed and maintained during 
construction, to remove sediment from runoff from land undergoing development.

9. Sediment basins (debris basins or silt traps) prior to discharge into any wetland, 
stream, pond, etc., require 1 x 3 stone outlet filter at all low points/discharge points 
properly toed into silt fence.

10. The permanent vegetation and structures/basins should be installed as soon as 
practical during development.  This would be included in the Soil Erosion Control 
Sequence noted above.

11. Wherever feasible, natural vegetation should be retained and protected.
12. All new or existing (disrupted) ditches shall be sodded.
13. Seed and mulch is not permitted on slopes greater than 4:1. “Excelsior" Mulch 

blanket, sod pegged per Township specifications, or approved equal will be 
required on such slopes.

14. Temporary vegetation and/or mulching shall be placed after mass grading for sites 
proposing phasing. 

119



30

15. For sites where grading occurs in areas where the drainage improvements will not 
immediately follow, such as phased construction, temporary drainage plans for 
these types of developments shall be provided in addition to soil erosion and 
sedimentation control plans. 

16. Erosion control shall conform to Oakland County SESC standard details, with a 
detail of each measure used required to be shown on the plans.

17. The developer shall clean all structures impacted during construction along with 
any other erosion control items prior to occupancy. 

XIII. PAVING IMPROVEMENTS

A. GENERAL

1. On-site Paving Requirements:
a. Pavement cross-section must be shown on the site plan as well as the site 

improvement plan.  All driveway cross-sections shall meet or exceed the 
cross-section of the roadway it enters onto.  On-site minimums are:
i. Residential, Commercial, and Multiple Residential (SF, SE, SR, R1-R3, 

MHP, OP, GB, RB, RM1, RM2): 4" asphalt on 8" aggregate base or 7" 
concrete on approved base.

ii. Light Industrial (LI): 6" asphalt on 8" aggregate base or 8" concrete on 
approved base.

iii. Industrial (IP, IC, RFY):  9" asphalt or 9" concrete on approved base.
iv. Loading zones and dumpster pads:  8” non-reinforced concrete on 

approved base.
NOTE: Requirements are typical for areas zoned industrial, technology 

and research, or office, and may be modified based on Township review.  
Requirements for areas zoned SP and P will be based on Township 
review.

b. Minimum slope:
i. Asphalt:  1.0%

ii. Concrete: 0.4%
c. Maximum slope

i. Roads:    6.0%
ii. Parking: 4.0%

iii. Sidewalks & Pathway: 5.0%
iv. Accessible parking spaces (per ADA requirements and MDOT, where 

applicable) and access aisles shall be level with surface slopes not 
exceeding 2.0% in all directions. 

d. Minimum drive & greenbelt widths and parking lot dimensions to be in 
accordance with Charter Township of Orion Zoning Ordinance No. 78.  The 
ordinance text can be viewed on the Ordinance website.

e. Curb and gutter is required at edge of drives and parking aisles unless 
otherwise approved by the Township.

f. Concrete curb and gutter sections shall meet requirements M.D.O.T. 
Specifications Section 802.

120

http://oriontownship.org/GeneralInformation/Information/OrdinanceIndex.aspx


31

2. All roads shall have 6” edge drain with pea stone and filter fabric provided on both 
sides of the road for its entire length. The Township will not allow any road lacking 
edge drain. Unless a geotechnical report is presented by the developer that states 
underdrain is not necessary. 

B. PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

1. All roads shall follow the appropriate standards for the owner of said corridor (i.e. 
Road Commission for Oakland County or Michigan Department of 
Transportation). 

C. RECREATIONAL PATHWAYS AND SIDEWALKS

1. Sidewalk or recreational pathway required along the frontage of all major roads.  
Reference Township Ordinance No. 97 for Safety Path Regulation. 

2. Located 1' from ultimate ROW line unless otherwise approved.  Path can be 
constructed on private property if easement is dedicated to the Township.

3. Concrete sidewalk:  minimum 5' wide, 4" minimum thickness with 8"minimum 
thickness at driveways for major roads/major driveways and 6" minimum thickness 
at driveways for collector roads and commercial driveways.  Base to be 4" as noted 
below in item 8.

4. Recreational Pathway: minimum 8' wide, 3" minimum thickness over a 4” 
aggregate base of 21AA or as approved by the Township Engineer. Existing 
subgrade must be compacted and treated with soil sterilant.

5. Proposed grades shall be given at property corners, driveways and intermittent 
locations between.

6. Handicapped ramps shall be noted and an acceptable detail provided for a 
detectable warning (per ADA requirements and MDOT, where applicable).  All 
areas where the pathway/sidewalk intersects the curb will require a handicapped 
ramp. The MDOT Sidewalk Ramp Detail can be found on the MDOT website.  The 
detectable warning shall be specified as Vitrified Polymer Composite cast-in-place 
tile, whose color shall be “Brick Red” (Federal Color No. 20109). Detectable 
warning surfaces are only required at roadway crossings, not driveway crossings.  
All sidewalk construction shall be in accordance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended.

7. All fixed objects: structures, hydrants, poles, etc., shall be noted and moved to a 
minimum clearance of 3-feet for separation, or adjusted as necessary, from the edge 
of the pathway. A minimum clearance of 5 feet is required from the back of curb, 
8.5-feet overhead clearance, and 12-feet minimum clearance required from edge of 
the travelled way (designated by a white line, no curb).

8. A minimum 4" aggregate base (MDOT 21AA) or suitable Class II base (approved 
by the Township) shall be required for all sidewalks and a minimum 4" aggregate 
base (MDOT 21AA) for all recreational pathways.  Pramitol "25E" or approved 
equal soil sterilant shall be placed on the subbase prior to paving.  (Note: crystalline 
form placed immediately prior to paving is recommended, to minimize sterilant 
migration from the path).

121

http://mdotwas1.mdot.state.mi.us/public/design/englishstandardplans/spdetails/


32

9. The cross slope gradient for drainage shall be less than 2%.
10. The longitudinal grade of the path shall not exceed 5%.
11. All sidewalk or recreational pathways shall attempt to perpendicularly intersect 

drives, railroads, roadways, etc.

D. PRIVATE ROADS

1. Private roads for residential development should follow the subdivision asphalt 
paving detail cross section provided in Appendix G.

2. All private roads shall have a minimum ROW per Township Ordinance 60, with 
any additional width as required by the Township.  Minimum ROW for business 
and industrial private roads (all non-residential zoning) shall be a minimum of 70 
foot ROW, with any residential collectors to be a minimum of 86 feet of ROW.

3. Where Township maintained utilities are placed in private roads, exclusive 
easement(s) rights shall be granted to the Township.  Recorded documents shall be 
provided prior to acceptance, use, or occupancy. 

E. PAVEMENT CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

1. All paving geometry should follow the requirements set by the Road Commission 
of Oakland County (RCOC).

122



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 11, 2021
Subject: PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone Request

REQUEST
Board action on PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, a request to rezone approximately 17.44 acres of 
3120 S. Lapeer Rd. (parcel 09-26-151-019) from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to Multiple Family Residential 1 (RM-1) and 
approximately 4.21 acres from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to General Business (GB).

REASON
The Planning Commission, at their October 6, 2021 meeting, passed a motion to recommend approval of PC-2021-70, 
Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone Request (as amended at the meeting).

PROCESS
The Orion Township Board of Trustees deliberates on PC-2021-70 and approves or denies the first reading.  If the first 
reading is approved, the Clerk advertises for the second reading and possible adoption of the map amendment on 
11/15/2021. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
October 18, 2021

IF MOTION TO APPROVE FIRST READING

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the first reading on October 18, 2021, 
for PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd Rezone, a request to rezone approximately 17.44 acres of 3120 S. Lapeer 
Rd. (parcel 09-26-151-019) from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to Multiple Family Residential 1 (RM-1) and approximately 4.21 
acres from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to General Business (GB).

 OR

IF MOTION TO DENY FIRST READING

Motion to declare the first reading was held and denied October 18, 2021, for PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer 
Rd. Rezone, requesting to rezone approximately 17.44 acres of 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. (parcel 09-26-151-019) from 
Recreation-2(REC-2) to Multiple Family Residential 1 (RM-1) and approximately 4.21 acres from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to 
General Business (GB).

☐ Consent ☒ Pending

123



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

November 15, 2021

IF MOTION TO APPROVE SECOND READING:

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the second reading on November 15, 
2021, for PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, requesting to rezone approximately 17.44 acres of 3120 S. 
Lapeer Rd. (parcel 09-26-151-019) from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to Multiple Family Residential 1 (RM-1) and approximately 
4.21 acres from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to General Business (GB), for the reasons given in the recommendation of approval 
by the Planning Commission on October 6, 2021.

                   * Motion maker to insert any additional reasons 

OR

IF MOTION TO DENY SECOND READING

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and denied the second reading on November 15, 
2021, for PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, requesting to rezone approximately 17.44 acres of 3120 S. 
Lapeer Rd. (parcel 09-26-151-019) from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to Multiple Family Residential 1 (RM-1) and approximately 
4.21 acres from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to General Business (GB) for the following reasons:

                    * Motion maker to list reasons 

124



Charter Township of Orion
Planning & Zoning Department
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
P: (248) 391-0304 ext. 5000; Fax (248) 391-1454

TO: Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees

FROM:            Charter Township of Orion Planning Commission 

DATE:  October 13, 2021

RE:             PC-2021-70, Grandview Lapeer Rd. Rezone Request 
______________________________________________________________________________
The applicant, Joseph P. Salome (Grandview Building, Inc.), is requesting approval for PC-2021-70, 
Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, a request to rezone approximately 17.44 acres of 3120 S. 
Lapeer Rd. (parcel 09-26-151-019) from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to Multiple Family Residential 1 (RM-
1) and approximately 4.21 acres from Recreation-2 (REC-2) to General Business (GB).   

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 6, 2021 and at the regularly scheduled 
Planning Commission meeting the same evening took the following action:.

Moved by Vice-Chairman Gross, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski, that the 
Planning Commission forward a recommendation to the Township Board to 
approve PC-2021-70, Grandview – Lapeer Road Rezone Request as amended, 
the request is to rezone approx. 17.44 acres of 3120 S. Lapeer Road (parcel #09-
26-151-019) from Recreation 2 (Rec-2) to Multiple Family Residential (RM-1), and 
approx. 4.21 acres from (Rec-2) to General Business (GB).  This recommendation 
to approve is based on the following findings of facts:  that the subject parcel is 
suitable for the proposed rezoning with multiple family and the majority of the 
property being (RM-1) and a small portion of (GB) being adjacent to existing (OP) 
zoning to the north; the property does have some restrictions on it relative the 
powerline which traverses the property which would assist in making the (RM-1) 
zoning reasonable; due to the trend of development in the area that has taken 
place is consistent with the zoning classifications as requested.

Roll call vote was as follows:  Walker, no; St. Henry, yes; Gross, yes; Brackon, 
no; Urbanowski, yes; Reynolds, yes. Motion carried 4-2. (Gingell absent). 

Please note, the applicant initially applied to rezone the approximately 17.44 acres to Multiple 
Family Residential-2 (RM-2) but modified his request at the meeting to Multiple Family 
Residential-1 (RM-1).

Included in your packet is the consultant review letter, the rezone application, a rezoning plan, 
additional information provided by the applicant, a letter from the current property owner, and the 
Planning Commission minutes and Public Hearing minutes from October 6, 2021.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact me at (248) 391-0304 x 5000.

125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 11, 2021
Subject: PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone Request

REQUEST
Board action on PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone, the request is to rezone approx. 23.05 acres of vacant parcel (#09-
35-100-019) located at the SW corner of Silverbell and Lapeer Road from Office Professional (OP) to Industrial Park (IP), 
and approx. 7.02 acres from Office Professional (OP) to General Business (GB).

REASON
The Planning Commission, at their October 6, 2021 meeting, passed a motion to recommend approval of PC-2021-71, 
F&D Silverbell Rezone request.

PROCESS
The Orion Township Board of Trustees deliberates on PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone, and approves or denies the 
first reading.  If the first reading is approved, the Clerk advertises for the second reading and possible adoption of the 
map amendment on 11/15/2021. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
October 18, 2021

IF MOTION TO APPROVE FIRST READING

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the first reading on October 18, 2021, 
for PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone, a request to rezone approx. 23.05 acres of vacant parcel (#09-35-100-019) 
located at the SW corner of Silverbell and Lapeer Road from Office Professional (OP) to Industrial Park (IP), and approx. 
7.02 acres from Office Professional (OP) to General Business (GB).

 OR

IF MOTION TO DENY FIRST READING

Motion to declare the first reading was held and denied October 18, 2021, for PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone, 
requesting to rezone approx. 23.05 acres of vacant parcel (#09-35-100-019) located at the SW corner of Silverbell and 
Lapeer Road from Office Professional (OP) to Industrial Park (IP), and approx. 7.02 acres from Office Professional (OP) to 
General Business (GB).

☐ Consent ☒ Pending

155



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

November 15, 2021

IF MOTION TO APPROVE SECOND READING:

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the second reading on November 15, 
2021, for PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone, requesting to rezone approx. 23.05 acres of vacant parcel (#09-35-100-
019) located at the SW corner of Silverbell and Lapeer Road from Office Professional (OP) to Industrial Park (IP), and 
approx. 7.02 acres from Office Professional (OP) to General Business (GB), for the reasons given in the recommendation 
of approval by the Planning Commission on October 6, 2021.

                   * Motion maker to insert any additional reasons 

OR

IF MOTION TO DENY SECOND READING

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and denied the second reading on November 15, 
2021, for PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone, requesting to rezone approx. 23.05 acres of vacant parcel (#09-35-100-
019) located at the SW corner of Silverbell and Lapeer Road from Office Professional (OP) to Industrial Park (IP), and 
approx. 7.02 acres from Office Professional (OP) to General Business (GB) for the following reasons:

                    * Motion maker to list reasons 

156



Charter Township of Orion
Planning & Zoning Department
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
P: (248) 391-0304 ext. 5000; Fax (248) 391-1454

TO: Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees

FROM:            Charter Township of Orion Planning Commission 

DATE:  October 13, 2021

RE:             PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone Request 
______________________________________________________________________________
The applicant, F&D Silverbell Company, LLC, is requesting approval for PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell 
rezone, the request is to rezone approx. 23.05 acres of vacant parcel (#09-35-100-019) located at the 
SW corner of Silverbell and Lapeer Road from Office Professional (OP) to Industrial Park (IP), and 
approx. 7.02 acres from Office Professional (OP) to General Business (GB).   

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 6, 2021 and at the regularly scheduled 
Planning Commission meeting the same evening took the following action:.

Moved by Commissioner Walker, seconded by Commissioner Brackon, that the 
Planning Commission forward a recommendation to the Board of trustees to 
approve PC-2021-71, F & D Silverbell Request, the request is to rezone approx. 
23.05 acres of vacant parcel (09-35-100-019) located at the SW corner of 
Silverbell and Lapeer Road from Office Professional (OP) to Industrial Park (IP), 
and approx. 7.02 acres from Office Professional (OP) to General Business (GB).  
This recommendation to approve is based on the following findings of facts:  the 
objectives of the Master Plan are met pursuant to the report by the Planner; the 
existing uses of the property in the general area coincide with this.

Roll call vote was as follows:  St. Henry, yes; Brackon, yes; Urbanowski, yes; 
Walker, yes; Gross, yes; Reynolds, yes. Motion carried 6-0. (Gingell absent)

Included in your packet is the consultant review letter, the rezone application, a rezoning plan,  
and the Planning Commission minutes and Public Hearing minutes from October 6, 2021.  If you 
have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (248) 391-0304 x 5000.

157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021

Memo Date: October 11, 2021
Subject: Township Initiated Text Amd. To the Stormwater Management & Soil Erosion & 

Sedimentation Control Ordinance #139

REQUEST
Board action on proposed text amendment. 

REASON
As part of Orion Township’s updated MS4 permit, issued by EGLE June 1, 2021, changes to the Township’s stormwater 
management standards are required. 

PROCESS
The Board of Trustees held the first reading on July 19, 2021 and directed the Clerk to advertise for the second reading 
and possible approval/adoption at a later date (October 18, 2021).

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
October 18, 2021

Move to declare that the second reading of the Township initiated text amendment to the Stormwater Management & 
Soil erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance #139 to have been held on October 18, 2021 and to approve/adopt.

☐ Consent ☒ Pending

179



Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 1

Charter Township of Orion

Ordinance No. 139

Stormwater Management and Soil Erosion 
& Sedimentation Control Ordinance

Adopted October 2, 2006

July 14, 2021

180



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 2

AN ORDINANCE ENACTED TO PROTECT THE HEALTH, SAFETY, AND GENERAL WELFARE OF ORION 
TOWNSHIP RESIDENTS; TO MINIMIZE WATER QUALITY DEGRADATION, FLOODING, AND DRAINAGE 
PROBLEMS FROM STORMWATER RUN-OFF; TO REDUCE SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION 
DURING AND AFTER SITE DEVELOPMENT; TO DESIGNATE THE ORION TOWNSHIP BUILDING 
DEPARTMENT AS THE MUNICIPAL ENFORCING AGENCY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 91 OF THE 
NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT, 1994 PA 451, MCL 324.9101, ET SEQ.; 
MSA 13A.101, ET SEQ., AS AMENDED; TO REDUCE THE NEED FOR PUBLIC EXPENDITURES RELATED 
TO FLOODING AND POLLUTION CONTROL; TO IDENTIFY REQUIREMENTS FOR STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT AND SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL; TO PROVIDE FOR 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS AND TOWNSHIP INSPECTIONS; AND TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES FOR 
THE VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE REPEAL OF ORDINANCE 92.

Article 1 – Short Title

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the ORION TOWNSHIP STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND 
SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL ORDINANCE and referred to as Ordinance No. 139.

Article 2 – Definitions

The following terms, phrases, words and derivatives, when used in this Ordinance, shall have the meaning given herein, 
unless the context otherwise requires:

Accelerated Soil Erosion – The increased loss of the land surface that occurs as a result of human activities.

Agriculture – Plowing and tilling for the purposes of producing and harvesting crops.

Agricultural Practices – All land farming operations except the plowing or tilling of land for the purpose of crop production 
or the harvesting of crops.

Authorized Public Agency – A state agency or an agency of a local unit of government authorized by the Department under 
Section 9110 of Part 91 to implement Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Procedures with regard to Earth Changes 
undertaken by it.

Certification of Completion – A signed written statement by the Township Engineer, Building Official, or Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Agent(s) that specific construction has been inspected and found to comply with any Stormwater 
Management Plan or that specific construction and permanent stabilization has been inspected and found to be complete and 
comply with Part 91 and any approved Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit and/or any Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Plan.

Channel Protection Volume Control (CPVC) – The volume of runoff under post development conditions from a 1.3” 
rainfall event that is required to be retained on-site to the maximum extent practicable (MEP).

Channel Protection Rate Control (CPRC) – The volume of runoff under post development conditions from a 1.9” rainfall 
event that requires extended detention be provided.

Conservation District – A conservation district authorized under Part 93, Soil Conservation Districts, of the Natural 
Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, being 324.9301 et seq. of the Michigan Compiled Laws, as 
defined therein.

Conveyance Facility – A structure or channel which transports stormwater run-off.

Department – The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality.

Designated Agent – A person who has written authorization from the landowner to sign the application and secure a soil 
erosion and sedimentation control permit in the landowner’s name.

181



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 3

Detention Basin – A structure or facility, natural or artificial, which stores stormwater on a temporary basis and releases at a 
controlled rate. A detention basin may drain completely after a storm event, or it may be a pond with a fixed minimum water 
elevation between run-off events.

Discharge – The rate of flow of water at a given point and time resulting from a storm event, measured in cubic feet per 
second (cfs).

Disturbed Area – An area of land subjected to the removal of vegetative cover and/or earthmoving activities.

Drainage System – All facilities, channels, and areas which serve to convey, catch, filter, store, and/or receive stormwater, 
either on a temporary or permanent basis.

Earth Change – Any human-made change in the natural cover or topography of land, including cut and fill activities, 
grading, and land clearing which may result in, or contribute to, soil erosion or sedimentation of Waters of the State, 
watercourses or wetlands. Earth change does not include the practice of plowing and tilling soil Agriculture.

Erosion – See "Soil Erosion."

Flood – A temporary rise in the level of any waterbody, watercourse or wetland which causes the inundation of areas not 
ordinarily covered by water.

Floodplain – The area of land adjoining a river, stream, watercourse, lake or other body of water which will be inundated by 
a 100-year frequency flood event.

Gardening – Activities necessary to the growing of plants for personal use, consumption, or enjoyment.

Grading – Any leveling, stripping, excavating, filling, stockpiling, or any combination thereof, including the land in its 
excavated or filled condition.

Illicit Connection – An improper physical connection of Illicit Discharges to the storm water drainage system, or other 
connections not authorized by local authority (where required), to the stormwater drainage system.

Illicit Discharge – The discharge of untreated sanitary wastewater (including industrial and commercial wastewater) or other 
polluting materials into a river, stream, or other water body from improper sewer connections, effluent from improperly 
designed and/or operated septic systems, sanitary sewer overflows, improper disposal of waste products, and other discharges 
not composed entirely of stormwater.

Infiltration Facility – A structure or area which allows stormwater run-off to gradually seep into the ground, e.g. French 
drains, seepage pits, infiltration basin, dry well, or perforated pipe, rain garden, bioswale, or bioretention.

Lake – The Great Lakes and all natural and artificial inland lakes or impoundments that have definite banks, a bed, visible 
evidence of a continued occurrence of water, and a surface area of water that is equal to, or greater than 1 acre. “Lake” does 
not include sediment basins and basins constructed for the sole purpose of storm water retention, cooling water or treating 
polluted water.

Landowner – The person who owns the property or holds a recorded easement on the property or who is engaged in 
construction in a public right-of-way in accordance with sections 13, 14, 15 and 16 of Highway Obstructions and 
Encroachments; use of Highway by Public Utilities, 1925 PA 368, as amended, being 247.183, 247.184, 247.185 and 
247.186 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Maintenance Agreement – A binding agreement between the proprietor and Orion Township which sets forth the terms and 
conditions for stormwater control facility maintenance.

Major Development – Any use or development requiring a site plan in accordance with Section 30.01 of the Orion 
Township Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance 78), any land proposed for platting, and any development projects of any federal 
state, and/or local governmental agency.

182



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 4

Minor Development – Development of a single-family residential lot or development on any site not subject to site plan 
approval under the provisions of the Orion Township Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance 78).

Municipal Enforcement Agent (MEA) – An agent designated by a municipality under Section 9106 of Part 91 to enforce a 
local ordinance.

Non-Erosive Velocity – A speed of water movement that is not conducive to the development of accelerated soil erosion.

Off-Site Facility – All or part of a drainage system which is located partially or completely off of the development site which 
it serves.

On-Site Authorized Agent – The person identified on the permit application by the landowner or the designated agent to be 
authorized and responsible for making decisions on behalf of the landowner.

Part 91 – Part 91, Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control, of the Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection 
Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, being 324.9101 et seq. of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Peak Rate of Discharge – The maximum allowable rate of stormwater flow from a storm event, as measured at a given point 
and time in cubic feet per second (cfs).

Person – Any individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company, organization or legal entity of any kind, 
including governmental agencies.

Planning Commission – Orion Township Planning Commission.

Pond – All natural and artificial inland ponds that have definite banks, a bed, visible evidence of continued occurrence of 
water, and a surface area of water that is less than 1 acre. “Pond” does not include sediment basins and basins constructed for 
the sole purpose of storm water retention, cooling water or treating polluted water.

Proprietor – A Person who holds an ownership interest in land, whether recorded or not.

Public Storm Sewer – A drainage system serving a platted subdivision or other development which has been designed and 
constructed to be operated and maintained by the Oakland County Drain Commissioner, the Oakland County Road 
Commission, or Orion Township.

Receiving Body of Water – Any watercourse, lake, pond, creek, stream, wetland, or groundwater into which stormwater 
run-off is directed.

Retention Basin – A stormwater holding area, either natural or manmade, which does not have an outlet, and may or may 
not contain a permanent pool of water. Water is removed from retention basins through infiltration and/or evaporation 
processes.

Run-Off – That part of precipitation which flows off the land, measured in depth of inches.

Rules – The rules promulgated pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act of 1969, 1969 PA 306, being 24.201 to 24.328 
of the Michigan Compiled Laws for the administration of Part 91.

Seawall Maintenance – An earth change activity landward of the seawall.

Sediment – Solid particulate matter, including both mineral and organic matter, that is in suspension in water, is being 
transported, or has been removed from its site of origin by the actions of wind, water, or gravity and has been deposited 
elsewhere.

Sediment Basin – A naturally occurring or constructed depression used for the sole purpose of capturing sediment during 
and after an earth change activity.

Site – Any tract, lot or parcel of land or combination of tracts, lots or parcels of land proposed for development.

183



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 5

Soil Erosion – The wearing away of land by the action of wind, water, gravity or a combination thereof.

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) Agent – A person who has a current certification of training in soil 
erosion and sedimentation control from the Department, and who is appointed by the Township Building Department and is 
responsible for administering and enforcing Part 91, the Rules and this Ordinance.

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) Measures – A structure, barrier, berm, vegetative cover, basin or other 
installation designed to control accelerated soil erosion and sedimentation.

Temporary Measures – Interim Control Measures which are installed or constructed to control soil erosion and 
sedimentation and which are not maintained after project completion.

Permanent Measures – Control measures which are installed or constructed to control soil erosion and sedimentation 
and which are maintained after project completion.

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) Plan – A Plan that contains at a minimum Rule 1703 requirements for an 
earth change which is designed and planned to show how soil erosion and sedimentation will be controlled and the site 
permanently stabilized.

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit – A permit issued by the Municipal Enforcement Agent to authorize work 
to be performed under the provisions of Part 91, the Rules and this Article.

Stabilization – The establishment of vegetation or the proper placement, grading or covering of soil to ensure its resistance 
to soil erosion, sliding or other earth movement.

Stop Work Order – An order that stops all work on a project until any and all violations of Part 91, the Rules and this 
Ordinance are corrected, except for remedial measures to correct the violation.

Storage Facility – A basin, structure, or area, either natural or manmade, which is capable of holding stormwater for the 
purpose of reducing the rate of discharge from the site.

Storm Drain – A conduit, pipe, swale, natural channel or man-made structure which serves to transport stormwater run-off. 
Storm drains may be either enclosed conduits or open drains.

Stormwater Management Plan – Maps and written information for a development or earth change which describe the way 
in which stormwater run-off is to be controlled, both during and after construction.

Stormwater Management Measures and Facilities – Any facility, structure, channel, area, or measure which serves to 
control stormwater run-off in accordance with the purposes and standards of this Ordinance.

Storm Water Retention Basin – An area which is constructed to capture surface water runoff and which does not discharge 
directly to a lake or stream through an outlet. Water leaves the basin by infiltration and evaporation.

Stream – A river, creek or other surface watercourse which may or may not be serving as a drain as defined in The Drain 
Code of 1956, 1956 PA 40, as amended, being 280.1 et seq. of the Michigan Compiled Laws, and which has definite banks, a 
bed and visible evidence of the continued flow or continued occurrence of water, including the Waters of the State.

Stripping – Any activity which removes or significantly disturbs the vegetative surface cover, including clearing and 
grubbing operations.

Swale – Low-lying area with gradual slopes which transports stormwater, either on-site or off-site.

Township – Orion Township Board of Trustees.

Vegetative Cover – Grasses, shrubs, trees, and other vegetation which hold and stabilize soils.

Violation – A violation of Part 91, the Rules or this Ordinance, or a Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit.

184



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 6

Waters of the State – The Great Lakes and their connecting waters, inland lakes and streams, as defined in the Rules, and 
wetlands regulated under Part 303, Wetlands Protection, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 
PA 451, being 324.30301 et seq. of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Watercourse – Any natural or manmade waterway or other body of water having reasonably well-defined banks. Rivers, 
creeks, and streams, whether continually or intermittently flowing; as well as lakes and ponds are watercourses for purposes 
of stormwater management.

Watershed – A land area, known as a drainage area, which collects precipitation and contributes run-off to a receiving body 
of water.

Wetlands – Areas that are inundated or saturated by surface water or groundwater with a frequency sufficient to support, and 
under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetative or aquatic life that requires saturated or seasonally 
saturated soil conditions for growth and reproduction. Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, sloughs, potholes, 
wet meadows, river overflows, mud flats, and natural ponds. Wetlands shall include poorly drained and very poorly drained 
soils, and other soils classified as "hydric soils" by the U.S. Soil Conservation Service.

Article 3 – Stormwater Management

Section 3.01 – Purpose

The purpose of this Article shall be:

A. To protect public health, safety, and general welfare by requiring stormwater management measures and facilities 
whenever new, expanded, or modified developments are proposed.

B. To ensure that landowners control stormwater run-off from their property so that lake and stream water quality is 
protected, flooding is reduced, and to protect the Waters of the State and adjacent properties.

C. To preserve and use the natural drainage system for conveying and receiving stormwater run-off, and to minimize the 
need to construct storm drain pipes.

D. To protect Orion Township's lakes from any adverse effects of stormwater run-off, while at the same time utilizing the 
water-holding capacity of the lakes.

E. To encourage the use of stormwater conveyance and detention systems, which serve multiple purposes, including, but 
not limited to flood control, water quality enhancement, recreation, and wetlands protection.

F. To ensure that stormwater management systems are incorporated into the early stages of site planning and design.

G. To allow on-site and/or off-site wetlands to be used for stormwater detention, provided that adverse environmental 
impacts on wetlands are minimized and provided that any anticipated effects are acceptable to the Orion Township 
Planning Commission, the Orion Township Board of Trustees, and permitted by the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality.

H. To allow for off-site stormwater management if proposals meet the requirements of this Ordinance and applicable county 
and/or state requirements.

I. To ensure that all stormwater conveyance and detention measures and facilities will be properly constructed, maintained, 
and preserved.

J. To ensure that Illicit Discharge to stormwater facilities does not occur within the Township.

Section 3.02 – Construction of Language

The following rules of construction apply to the text of this Ordinance:

A. Particulars provided by way of illustration or enumeration shall not control general language.
185



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 7

B. Ambiguities, if any, shall be construed liberally in favor of protecting natural resources.

C. Words used in the present tense shall include the future, and words used in the singular number shall include the plural, 
and the plural the singular, unless the context clearly indicates the contrary.

D. Terms not specifically defined in this Ordinance shall have the meaning customarily assigned to them.

E. In case of conflict between Township maps and the definitions in this Ordinance, the definitions shall control.

Section 3.03 – General Provisions

A. Abrogation and Conflict of Authority

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be interpreted to conflict with present or future State statutes in the same subject matter. 
Conflicting provisions of this Ordinance shall be abrogated, but only to the extent of the conflict. Moreover, the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be construed to be consistent with and in addition to relevant State regulations and 
statutes.

In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held to be minimum requirements and 
shall be liberally construed in favor of the governing body and shall not be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other 
powers granted by State statutes.

This Ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. 
However, where this Ordinance imposes greater restrictions, the provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail. If there is 
another ordinance that is inconsistent, the terms of the ordinance that is most restrictive shall apply.

B. Applicability

1. Applicability to Minor Developments

Any Minor Development, including individual single family residential lot development, shall meet the purpose of 
this Ordinance for Stormwater Management Plans and permits.

2. Applicability to Major Developments.

The proprietor of any proposed Major Development shall submit a Stormwater Management Plan to the Township 
for review and approval.

C. Compliance

Full compliance with the terms of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations shall be met by all persons.

D. Proof of Ownership

The Township Building Official may require proof of ownership of the subject property before approval of a Stormwater 
Management Plan.

E. Illicit Discharge

Illicit Discharges are strictly prohibited within the Township. The Township shall have the legal authority to investigate 
suspected Illicit Discharges or Connections. If an Illicit Discharge or Connection is found as a result of this investigation, 
the Township shall have the authority to require elimination of the Illicit Discharge or Connection. If the Illicit Discharge 
or Connection is not eliminated within a period of time set forth in the notice requiring elimination of the Illicit 
Discharge, the Township shall have the authority to proceed with penalties and enforcement measures outlined in Article 
5 of this Ordinance.

F. Fee Schedule
186



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 8

All fees for administering and enforcing this Ordinance shall be paid to the Township in accordance with a Fee Schedule 
determined by resolution of the Township Board. The Township may revise the Fee Schedule by adopting a written 
amendment to the Fee Schedule from time to time.

All fees shall be doubled if work starts without a permit.

Section 3.04 – Stormwater Management Plan Requirements for Major Developments

A. Pre-Application Conference

A pre-application conference may be requested by the proprietor prior to the submittal of a Stormwater Management 
Plan. The pre-application conference shall be held with the Township Supervisor and/or his/her designee. The purpose of 
the pre-application conference is to provide information and guidance that will assist the proprietor in preparing the 
required plan.

B. Stormwater Management Plan Contents

1. Plan Organization and Presentation.

a. Through maps, reports, illustrations, and calculations, the Stormwater Management Plan shall display the 
required information in a clear and logical sequence.

b. Information submitted to the Township on a site plan may be used to meet the requirements of this Section, 
provided that a written statement identifying the Stormwater Management Plan information is provided.

c. Information submitted to the Township on a tentative preliminary subdivision plat and a final preliminary 
subdivision plat may be used to meet the requirements of this Section, provided that a written statement 
identifying the applicable data is provided.

d. The Stormwater Management Plan must be sufficiently detailed to specify the type, location, and size of 
stormwater management, using preliminary calculations. Construction drawings and specifications are not 
required at the plan review stage.

e. If it is proposed that a parcel be developed in two or more phases, the Stormwater Management Plan shall be 
prepared and submitted for the total project unless a waiver has been approved by the Planning Commission.

2. Plan Preparation.

The Stormwater Management Plan shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer, registered landscape architect, 
registered land surveyor, and/or registered architect. Other persons and professionals may assist in the preparation of 
the plan.

3. Scale for Mapping.

The Stormwater Management Plan shall be drawn to a scale of one inch equal to fifty feet (1 inch = 50 feet) for 
property less than three (3) acres and one inch equal to one hundred feet (1 inch = 100 feet) for property three (3) 
acres or more in size. Sheet size shall be at least twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches.

4. Required Information: Identification and Description.

a. Proprietor's name, mailing address, and telephone number.

b. Common description of property and complete legal description.

c. Dimensions of land, total acreage, and net acreage (total acreage minus rights-of-way).

d. Existing zoning and zoning of all adjacent properties.
187



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 9

e. Written description of the proposed land use and the name of the proposed development.

f. Location and size of existing and proposed lots, buildings, structures and pavement.

g. Name and address of any professional architect, landscape architect, wetland specialist, engineer, or planner 
surveyor responsible for the preparation of the stormwater management plan.

h. Proof of ownership of the property, as well as any off-site easements for stormwater management.

i. Title block, scale, northpoint, and date of submission with revisions noted (month, day and year).

5. Required Information: Existing Conditions.

The following information describing existing site conditions is required:

a. A site location and vicinity map at a scale of not less than one inch equal to two thousand feet (1 inch = 2000 
feet) including the approximate boundaries of the small watershed within which the site is located. Maps are 
available for reference at Orion Township offices.

b. Topography on the site and within one hundred (100) feet of the site at two (2) foot contour intervals, 
referenced to a U.S. Geological Survey benchmark.

c. Soils Types with a high infiltration rate, including soil map units 14B, 14C, 15B, 15C, 15E, 35A, 62B, 62C, and 
63A, as shown on the soil survey maps of Oakland County, published by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, 
Natural Resource Conservation Service (https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/HomePage.htm) U.S. Soil 
Conservation Service.  The percentage of the site in each Hydrologic Soil Group (Type A, B, C, D) shall be 
provided.

c.d. The in-situ infiltration rates determined by direct testing for the soils where infiltration facilities are proposed, 
as well as verification that the groundwater depths will not impact the designed infiltration.

d.e. Location and flow direction of all watercourses (including lakes, ponds, creeks, and streams) on the site and 
within one hundred (100) feet of the site, including permanent and intermittent features. Elevations shall be 
indicated, referenced to a U.S. Geological Survey benchmark.

e.f. Entry points where stormwater run-off and watercourses enter the site from off-site locations, with arrows 
indicating the direction of the flow.

f.g. Outlet point and drainage area boundaries for all watercourses on the site and within one hundred (100) feet of 
the site.

g.h. Preliminary engineering analysis of the existing peak rate of discharge from the site.

h.i. Location of wetlands on the site, based upon the National Wetland Inventory maps (available for reference in 
Orion Township offices) or soil survey maps (poorly drained soils, very poorly drained soils, and other hydric 
soils), and verified by field survey.

i.j. Location of any existing storm drains, ditches, swales, or other stormwater management facilities.

6. Required Information – Proposed Conditions.

a. Information Required for Tentative Preliminary Plats:

i. Proposed changes to the land surface and existing vegetative cover, including delineation of areas to be cut 
and filled. Final contours at two (2) foot contour intervals shall be provided.

ii. Flow routes with directional arrows for stormwater Run-Off from the 100-year storm frequency event.

188

https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/HomePage.htm


Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 10

iii. Proposed outlet points and associated drainage area boundaries.

iv. The receiving watercourses for stormwater run-off, including but not limited to lakes, streams, wetlands, 
road drains, and county drains, whether located on-site or off-site.

v. Preliminary description of the location, type and size of stormwater management facilities and measures, 
including facilities for the conveyance, infiltration, and/or storage of stormwater Run-Off.

vi. Approximate location of easements to protect the primary and secondary drainage systems, and to provide 
access for maintenance.

b. Information Required for Site Plans and Final Preliminary Plats:

i. All of the information required for tentative preliminary plats.

ii. A plan and timetable for the staging of site grading and preparation activities.

iii. Preliminary calculations of the effect of the development upon the peak rate of discharge, and a preliminary 
determination of the amount of channel protection volume, extended detention (channel protection rate 
control) and detention storage required. to limit the proposed discharge to the existing levels.

iv. Description and proposed location of all temporary and permanent stormwater management facilities and 
measures, including facilities for the conveyance, infiltration, and/or storage of run-off. The benefits of 
stormwater management facilities for water quality and/or flood control shall be indicated. The flow rate at 
all points of discharge from any conveyance or storage facility shall be indicated. Facility construction 
plans and specifications are not required at this stage.

v. Expected alterations of wetlands and watercourses, including expected changes in the type of vegetation 
and water level.

vi. Listing of activities proposed to maintain stormwater management and facilities.

C. Plan Submission

1. Fourteen (14) copies of the Stormwater Management Plan shall be submitted to the Township Clerk. Copies shall be 
distributed to the Planning Commission, Building Department, Planner, Engineer, and/or other reviewers by the 
Clerk as appropriate.

2. For developments subject to site plan review, the proprietor shall submit a Stormwater Management and Erosion 
Control Plan to the Township Clerk at the time that the site plan is submitted.

3. For developments subject to subdivision plat review, the proprietor shall submit a SESC Plan to the Township Clerk 
in two phases, as indicated herein.

4. For other earth changes or activities subject to Stormwater Management and Erosion Control Plan requirements, the 
plan shall be submitted to the Township Clerk before construction drawings are submitted.

5. Compliance with the requirements of this Ordinance does not eliminate the need for the proprietor to obtain 
necessary and required permits and approvals from county and state agencies, including, but not limited to:

a. Drainage approvals from the Oakland County Drain Commissioner;

b. Road drainage approvals from the Road Commission for Oakland County;

c. Wetlands, dam construction, Inland Lakes and Streams, and Flood Plain permits from the Michigan Department 
of Environmental Quality;

189



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 11

D. Review Procedures

1. The Planning Commission shall determine if a proposed Stormwater Management Plan meets the requirements and 
standards of this Ordinance. The Planning Commission is authorized to approve, approve with conditions, or 
disapprove.

2. If the Planning Commission disapproves the proposed Stormwater Management Plan, the proprietor shall be notified 
of the decision. Reasons for the disapproval shall be specified in writing.

3. If approval with conditions has been granted, revisions shall be reviewed by the Township Engineer and/or Building 
Official prior to the issuance of any building permit. If Stormwater Management Plan revisions are not made as 
specified by the Planning Commission, the building permit(s) shall not be issued.

E. Review Fees

The Township Board shall establish fees and escrow requirements by resolution. A copy of the current resolution 
establishing such fees shall be attached to this Ordinance as an appendix.

F. Standards for Stormwater Management Plan Approval

Stormwater management measures and facilities, whether on-site or off-site, shall be designed, constructed, and 
maintained to prevent flooding and protect water quality.  Facilities shall be designed in accordance with this ordinance 
and the Township’s engineering standards.

1. General Standards for On-Site and Off-Site Stormwater Management.

a. Stormwater management, conveyance, storage, and infiltration facilities shall be designed to prevent flood 
hazards and water pollution related to run-off from the proposed development project.

b. Stormwater from upstream and off-site locations shall be conveyed through the site or stored on-site.

c. A primary drainage system which manages Run-Off from storms up to a 100-year frequency storm event shall 
be provided.

d. Every basin shall have an internal overflow system to direct run-off from storms of a greater than a 100-year 
frequency (secondary drainage system).

e. Every detention basin shall control the release of stormwater from the 100-year frequency event. The peak 
discharge rate shall be calculated per the Township’ engineering standards or as defined by the established 
County Drainage Districtshall not exceed the agricultural discharge rate of 0.2 cubic feet per second (cfs) per 
acre. There may be cases where the existing outlet has limitations due to downstream conditions. In this 
situation the discharge from the site will be restricted to conform to the governing downstream conditions.

f. There may also be cases where the outlet has already reached capacity. The burden is on the proprietor to design 
and construct, at his expense, any necessary improvements to the downstream outlet, including obtaining 
property permissions. Such designs will be reviewed by the governing agency for adequacy. Additional controls 
may be required in these cases in order to protect downstream properties.

Unless otherwise approved, stormwater run-off shall be conveyed through swales and vegetated buffer strips so 
as to decrease run-off velocity, allow for natural infiltration, allow suspended sediment to settle, and to remove 
pollutants.

g. Alterations to natural drainage patterns shall not create flooding or water pollution for adjacent or downstream 
property owners.

h. Watercourses and adjacent stream banks shall not be dredged, cleared of vegetation, deepened, widened, 
straightened, stabilized, or otherwise altered without approval from the Department and Township. If the 

190



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 12

watercourse is a designated County drain, approval from the Oakland County Drain Commissioner shall also be 
obtained.

i. No modifications of major watercourses shall be permitted if the primary purpose is to increase the flow 
capacity of the watercourse.

j. Discharge of run-off from commercial and industrial sites which may contain oil, grease, toxic chemicals, or 
other polluting materials shall be prohibited unless measures to reduce and trap pollutants meet the 
requirements of the Department and Township.

k. Drainage systems shall be designed to protect public health and safety and to be visually attractive.

l. No approval shall be made by the Planning Commission if it finds that the action will or is likely to pollute, 
impair or destroy a wetland or watercourse. However, if the Planning Commission finds that there are no 
feasible and prudent alternatives and that the approval is consistent with the public interest in light of the 
purposes of this Ordinance, the Planning Commission may grant approval.

2. Stormwater Storage,  and Infiltration. And Water Quality Control Facilities.

a. Channel Protection Volume Control (CPVC) shall be provided.  Provide infiltration and/or storage/reuse 
BMP’s.  This may include bioretention, rain gardens, bio-swales, pervious pavement, cisterns, green roofs, etc.  
For water use BMP’s, water demand must be established and documented to show adequate drawdown times.  
Where in-situ soil infiltration rates are determined to be less than 0.24 in/hr, infiltration is impractical and is 
therefore waived.  In these cases of poor infiltration rates, other low impact development (LID) practices must 
be implemented to the maximum extent practical. Stormwater storage or infiltration facilities which protect 
water quality and prevent flooding on-site and off-site shall be required. Storage or infiltration facilities may 
include, but are not limited to detention basins, retention basins, infiltration trenches, infiltration basins, and 
swales with check dams, and other facilities.

b. Channel Protection Rate Control (CPRC) shall be provided by providing extended detention.

a.c. Water Quality Control (WQC) shall be provided by either reducing the total suspended solids (TSS) in the post 
development runoff to 80mg/l or 80%TSS reduction.  The WQC requirement shall be satisfied for the area 
tributary to the CPVC.  In other cases, WQC can be achieved by either a mechanical separator or sediment 
forebay.

b.d. Detention and Flood Control shall be provided to manage the 100-peak runoff rate.All detention basins shall be 
designed to maximize the ability of the basin to hold and trap sediment. The types of basins listed below meet 
Orion Township requirements. Types of basins are listed in order of preference, with the most desirable listed 
first:

i. Infiltration facilities, provided that soils and groundwater conditions are suitable. The permeability of the 
existing soils must be demonstrated such that percolation of the retained storm water is possible. Soil 
boring logs must be submitted for review. The borings must be taken within the proposed basin bottom area 
to a distance of twenty (20) feet below the proposed basin bottom elevation. Calculations performed by a 
professional geotechnical engineer must be submitted. The calculations must indicate the percolation rates 
for the soils encountered during soil boring.

ii. Detention basins with a fixed minimum water elevation between run-off events (wet basins). Wet basins, 
which serve to trap soil particles on-site, are preferable to dry basins.

iii. Detention basins which hold stormwater for more than twenty-four (24) hours before completely draining 
to become a dry basin (extended detention basins).

iv. Dry detention basins, which have upland sediment basins or mechanical separators to trap sediment.

c.e. Detention basins shall be designed to hold run-off from a 100-year frequency storm event. Basins shall be 
permanently stabilized to minimize erosion.

191



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 13

d.f. A sediment forebay, or equivalent structure, designed to capture the runoff from a 1-year frequency storm event 
is required for all sites. The forebay should be a separate cell from the main detention basin and designed such 
that it will dewater within forty-eight (48) hours. The volume of detention within the forebay, above any 
proposed permanent pool of water, can be considered when calculating total detention volume required for a 
site.

e.g. Detention basins shall have an overflow system. If the overflow system cannot discharge to a creek, lake or 
wetland without causing flooding on adjacent or downstream properties, then the basin shall be designed to hold 
stormwater run-off from two (2) back-to-back 100-year frequency storm events.

f.h. Detention and retention basins with banks which are steeper than one on four (vertical to horizontal) shall not be 
permitted unless a waiver is obtained from the Planning Commission. Any basin permitted with a steeper slope 
than one on four shall provide a fence or other suitable barrier to prevent public access.

g.i. Signs shall be posted by the proprietor to alert residents to hazards and use limitations of any stormwater basin.

h.j. Constructed detention and retention basins may not be a part of a platted subdivision lot, but shall be provided 
in platted outlots or open space areas.

3. Discharge of Stormwater Run-Off to Wetlands.

a. Stormwater run-off discharged to wetlands must be diffused to a non-erosive velocity before it reaches the 
wetland.

b. Wetlands may be used for stormwater detention if the following conditions are met:

i. That part of the wetland used for a storage or detention area is set back at least one hundred (100) feet from 
any lake or stream.

ii. The wetland does not have significant wildlife habitat or ecological values which are likely to be impaired 
or destroyed by stormwater.

iii. The wetland has sufficient holding capacity for stormwater, based upon calculations prepared by the 
proprietor and reviewed and approved by the Township Engineer.

iv. Adequate soil erosion control is provided to protect the natural integrity of the wetland.

c. During the construction phase of development, adequate soil erosion and sedimentation control and protection 
of wetlands shall be provided. Measures such as the following are encouraged:

i. One or more sediment traps or soil settling basins located in upland locations; or

ii. Open-water sediment traps within or adjacent to wetlands, provided that the proposal meets the wetlands 
requirements of the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality and Orion Township, and provided 
that access for maintenance equipment is provided.

d. If off-site wetlands are used for stormwater management, easements must be provided in accordance with the 
requirements of this Ordinance.

G. Off-Site Detention and Flood ControlStormwater Management

1. Waiver Option.

In lieu of on-site stormwater detention and flood control, the use of off-site stormwater conveyance, infiltration, 
and/or detention areas may be proposed. In such cases, the proprietor shall request a waiver of the requirements for 
on-site stormwater detention and flood control. This waiver option does not allow for changes in requirements for 
CPVC and on-site soil erosion and sedimentation control.

192



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 14

Off-site stormwater management areas may be shared with other landowners, provided that maintenance agreements 
have been approved by the Planning Commission and Township Board, and properly recorded with the Oakland 
County Register of Deeds.

2. Stormwater Management Plan.

The waiver request shall be submitted with a Stormwater Management Plan as provided in Section 3.04, including 
proposed stormwater management measures on-site and off-site.

3. Applicable Standards.

In addition to stormwater management standards specified in Section 3.04 of this Ordinance, the proprietor must 
demonstrate and provide assurances for all of the following, as applicable:

a. Stormwater flows and management controls shall not result in excessive stream channel erosion on-site or off-
site;

b. High value or unique wetlands and natural areas shall not be significantly altered by stormwater flows on-site or 
off-site;

c. Off-site stormwater facilities shall be protected through appropriate easements; and

d. Adequate provision and agreements for maintenance of stormwater management facilities shall be made.

Section 3.05 – Construction Drawings and Specifications

A. Submittal Requirements.

Following approval of any site plan or final preliminary plat, construction drawings and specifications shall be 
submitted.

B. Approval Responsibilities.

A building or construction permit for a major development shall not be issued unless and until the construction drawings 
and specifications meet the standards of this Ordinance and have been approved by the Township Engineer. All 
applicable requirements of State and County agencies shall also be met and proof of necessary permits shall be presented 
to the Township Building Official.

C. Stormwater Management Run-Off Volume Calculations.

Calculations of stormwater run-off volumes and peak discharge rates from all contributing areas to storage facilities or 
other outlets shall be submitted with engineering specifications.  Calculations shall be completed in accordance with 
Township’s Engineering Standards and the Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner Stormwater Engineering 
Design Standards and shall be provided for the following: 

1. Channel Protection Volume Control
2. Channel Protection Rate Control: Extended Detention
3. Water Quality Control
4. Detention and Flood Control

The rational method of design:
1.

Q = CIA for a 100-year frequency storm event shall be used, where:

Q = Run-off rate in cubic feet per second,
C = Imperviousness coefficient,
A = Contributing area in acres, and
I  = Rainfall intensity in inches per hour.

193



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 15

For a 100-year frequency storm event, I = 275/T+25, where T is the time of concentration in minutes.

2.5. For proposed developments larger than fifty (50) acres in size, the Soil Conservation Service Method (Technical 
Release No. 55) as presented in the "Soils and Run-Off Guidebook” of the Land and Water Management Division, 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources, may be used as an option. A copy of this Guidebook is available for 
review in the Orion Township Building Department.

Retention and Detention Basin Sizing Requirements.
D.
The procedure recommended by the Oakland County Drain Commissioner, titled "A Simple Method of Retention Basin 
Design" for a 100-year frequency storm event with a maximum of 0.2 cubic feet per second (cfs) per acre allowable outflow 
shall be used. There may be cases where the existing outlet has limitations due to downstream conditions. In this situation the 
discharge from the site will be restricted to conform to the governing downstream conditions. If a drainage outlet to an 
existing watercourse for the basin is not available, the basin volume shall be designed for back to back 100-year frequency 
storm events.

Section 3.06 – Waivers

A. Planning Commission Authority

The Planning Commission shall have the authority to grant waivers from the strict application of this Article regarding 
stormwater management, in accordance with the terms of this Section.

B. Written Application Required

A written application requesting a waiver shall be submitted to the Township Clerk, demonstrating that:

1. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or project involved, and which are not 
generally applicable to other plans or projects;

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result or have not resulted from the actions of the applicant or the 
applicant's predecessor;

3. Literal interpretation of the provisions of this Article would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by 
other properties under the terms of this Article; and

4. Granting of the waiver shall not result in an unreasonable risk of impairment or destruction of property and/or 
natural resources which this Article is designed to protect.

C. Standards for Waivers

1. All waivers of the provisions of this Article regarding stormwater management shall be granted only if all of the 
following standards are met:

a. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the property involved or to 
the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other properties or class of uses in the same 
district or zone.

b. That such waiver is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right possessed by 
other property in the same zone and vicinity.

c. That the granting of such waiver or modification will not be materially injurious to the property or 
improvements in such zone or district in which the property is located.

2. In addition, the Planning Commission shall, prior to granting a waiver to the provisions of this Article, make a 
determination that the proposed waiver will not pollute, impair, or destroy air, water or other natural resources or the 
public trust therein.

194



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 16

D. In exercising their authority to grant waivers to the provisions of this Article, the Planning Commission shall have the 
following responsibilities:

a. The Planning Commission may permit modification in the size and location of stormwater management 
facilities, provided that off-site pollution, flooding and health hazards are avoided.

b. The Planning Commission may impose such conditions and restrictions as may be necessary to comply with the 
standards and objectives of this Article.

Section 3.07 – Performance Guarantees, Inspections, and Maintenance, and Submittals

A. Performance Guarantees

1. After Stormwater Management Plan approval, but prior to the beginning of construction, the proprietor shall be 
required to post a cash escrow, certified check, or other acceptable form of performance security in an amount 
determined by a Resolution of the Township Board.

2. After determination by Orion Township that all measures and facilities are installed in compliance with the 
approved plan, the security shall be released.

B. Maintenance

All stormwater management facilities shall be maintained in proper working condition by the owner of the facility. If, 
after due notice, a facility is not properly maintained, Orion Township may withhold any other inspections, retain bond 
and/or escrow funds, revoke and/or refuse issuance of occupancy permits, and/or perform the necessary maintenance and 
assess the cost to the owner. The cost of the work shall be a lien on the property, or pro-rated against the beneficial users 
of the property, and may be placed on the tax roll and collected as ordinary taxes. The financing requirement shall be 
stated in the maintenance agreement. Additionally, the Township may institute appropriate court action to prohibit 
further activities upon the site.

C. Stormwater Management Easements

1. Necessity of Easements.

Stormwater management easements shall be provided by the property owner if necessary to ensure:  (1) access for 
stormwater management facilities inspections and maintenance; and (2) preservation of stormwater management 
conveyance, infiltration, and storage areas, including overflow routes.

2. Easements for Off-Site Stormwater Management.

Stormwater management and flood easements are required for all areas used for off-site stormwater management, 
unless the areas are under the ownership of the proprietor at the time of stormwater management plan submittal.

3. Recording of Easements.

Easements shall be recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds according to Oakland County 
requirements.

4. Recording Prior to Building Permit Issuance.

The proprietor must provide the Building Official with evidence of the recording prior to the issuance of a building 
permit.

D. Maintenance Agreement

1. Purpose of Maintenance Agreement.

195



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 17

The purpose of the Maintenance Agreement is to provide the means and assurance that maintenance of stormwater 
management facilities shall be undertaken.

2. Maintenance Agreement Required.

a. The proprietor of a development and/or earth change subject to Stormwater Management Plan requirements 
(Article 3) shall submit a Maintenance Agreement to the Township Clerk.

b. Maintenance agreements shall be reviewed by the Township Engineer and Township Attorney and approved by 
the Township prior to the issuance of any building permit or final preliminary plat approval.

3. Maintenance Agreement Provisions.

a. The Maintenance Agreement shall provide for routine maintenance and emergency maintenance.

b. The Maintenance Agreement shall be binding on all subsequent owners of land served by the stormwater 
management and erosion control facilities, and shall be recorded in the land records of Oakland County within 
thirty (30) days after approval by the Township.

E. Submittals

Upon substantial completion of the stormwater management facilities and prior to submitting the Notice of Completion 
described below, the land owner shall submit the Land Use Summary chart, as well as GIS point format data for the 
following data: development area, site outfalls and points of discharge, drainage areas (including off-site drainage areas), 
structures, and storm sewer.  The data shall be submitted per the Township’s engineering standards.  If the landowner is 
unable to provide the data in the proper format, the Township will cause the work to be performed and charge the cost of 
said work to the projects construction escrow account posted with the Township.

F. Notification

In the event that an owner or developer fails to comply with the requirements of this Ordinance, or fails to conform to the 
requirements of any approval given under this Ordinance, the Orion Township Building Official or his/her designee, 
shall provide written notification of any violation. Such notification shall set forth the nature of the violation and 
establish a time limit for correction.

G. Notice of Completion; Certificate of Completion

Upon satisfactory execution of the approved plans and permit conditions and other requirements imposed under this 
Article, the landowner shall file a written notice of completion with the Orion Township Building Official or his/her 
designee. The Orion Township Building Official or his/her designee shall make a final inspection within thirty (30) days 
of receiving notice of completion and shall issue a certificate or letter of completion and release of bond if the landowner 
has satisfactorily complied with the plan, permit conditions and this Article. If the project is to be completed in different 
phases, the landowner may submit a written notice of completion for a project phase and the Orion Township Building 
Official or his/her designee may issue separate certificates of completion and authorize a proportionate release of a cash 
bond for each completed project phase.

Section 3.08 – Violation and Enforcement

A. Effect of Approval on Remedies

The approval or disapproval of any stormwater management plan shall not have any effect on any remedy of any person 
at law or in equity, provided that, where it is shown that there is a wrongful failure to comply with this Ordinance, there 
shall be a rebuttable presumption that the violation was the proximate cause of the damage to the land of any person 
bringing suit.

B. Liability for Township Expenses for Violations

196



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 18

Any person violating the provisions of this Ordinance shall become liable to the Township for any expense or loss or 
damage occasioned by the Township by reason of such violation.

C. Circuit Court Action

In addition to municipal civil infraction penalties which may be imposed, the Township may institute circuit court action 
to obtain injunctive relief for a violation of this Ordinance. A violation of this Ordinance shall be deemed a nuisance per 
se and shall be abated by order of the court.

D. Stop Work Order

Upon notice of the Township Building Official or his/her designee that activity which requires a Stormwater 
Management Plan approval is being conducted without such approval, such activity shall be immediately stopped. The 
stop work order shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the property involved and/or to the person 
conducting the activity.

E. Injunction; Inspection and Investigation; Interference with Administration and Enforcement

1. Injunction

Notwithstanding the existence or pursuit of any other remedy, the Department or the Township may maintain an 
action in its own name in a court of competent jurisdiction for an injunction or other process against a person to 
restrain or prevent violations this Ordinance.

2. Right of Entry and Inspection

An agent appointed by the Department or the Township may enter at all reasonable times in or upon any private or 
public property for the purpose of inspecting and investigating conditions or practices that may be in violation of 
this Ordinance.

3. Interference with Administration and Enforcement

No person shall unlawfully hinder, oppose or resist the Orion Township Building Official or his/her designee in the 
discharge of the administration and enforcement this Ordinance. No person shall remove, mutilate or conceal any 
notice posted by the Orion Township Building Official or his/ her designee except by written permission of the 
Orion Township Building Official or his/ her designee.

Article 4 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC)

Section 4.01 – Purpose

The purpose of this Article shall be:

A. To protect public health, safety, and general welfare by requiring soil erosion and sedimentation control measures and 
facilities whenever new, expanded, or modified developments are proposed.

B. To prevent soil erosion and off-site sedimentation to adjacent properties and to the waters of the state.

C. To effectively reduce soil erosion and sedimentation by requiring both temporary and permanent soil erosion and 
sedimentation control measures in accordance with Part 91 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 
1994 PA 451, MCL 324.9101, et seq.

D. To regulate earth change activities, which can harm the environment through soil erosion and sedimentation and the 
unnatural accumulation of sediment in accordance with provisions of Part 91 of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, MCL 324.9101, et seq.

197



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 19

E. To provide necessary legal authority for the designation of the Orion Township Building Department as the Municipal 
Enforcement Agency (MEA) in accordance with provisions of Part 91 of the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, MCL 324.9101, et seq.

F. To ensure that soil erosion and sedimentation control systems are incorporated into the early stages of site planning and 
design.

G. To ensure that all soil erosion and sedimentation control measures will be properly constructed, maintained, and 
preserved.

H. To provide penalties for violation of the provisions of this Article.

Section 4.02 – Construction of Language

The following rules of construction apply to the text of this Article:

A. Particulars provided by way of illustration or enumeration shall not control general language.

B. Ambiguities, if any, shall be construed liberally in favor of protecting natural resources.

C. Words used in the present tense shall include the future, and words used in the singular number shall include the plural, 
and the plural the singular, unless the context clearly indicates the contrary.

D. Terms not specifically defined in this Article shall have the meaning customarily assigned to them.

E. In case of conflict between Township maps and the definitions in this Article, the definitions shall control.

Section 4.03 – General Provisions

A. Abrogation and Conflict of Authority

Nothing in this Article shall be interpreted to conflict with present or future State statutes on the same subject matter. 
Conflicting provisions of this Article shall be abrogated to, but only to the extent of the conflict. Moreover, the 
provisions of this Article shall be construed to be consistent with and in addition to relevant State regulations and 
statutes.

In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Article shall be held to be minimum requirements and shall 
be liberally construed in favor of the governing body and shall not be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other powers 
granted by State statutes.

This Article is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. 
However, where this Article imposes greater restrictions, the provisions of this Article shall prevail. If there is another 
ordinance that is inconsistent, the terms of the ordinance that is most restrictive shall apply.

B. Applicability

1. Applicability to Minor Developments.

a. Any Minor Development, including single-family residential lot development, shall meet the requirements of 
this Article for SESC Plan and permits, if a permit is required for an earth change under Part 91, the Rules, or 
this Article.

2. Applicability to Major Developments.

a. The landowner of any proposed Major Development shall submit a SESC Application and Plan to the MEA for 
review and approval for earth changes that require a permit under Part 91, the Rules, or this Article.

C. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit Required
198



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 20

1. Activities Requiring a SESC Permit

a. Earth change activity which:

i. Disturbs one or more acres of land; or

ii. Is located within five hundred (500) feet of the Waters of the State regardless of the amount of land 
disturbed.

b. If the earth change is under the jurisdiction of two or more local or county enforcing agencies, then the 
department shall act as the enforcing agency.

c. An earth change activity that does not require a SESC Permit under this Ordinance is not exempt from 
enforcement procedures under Part 91, the Rules or this Article, if the activity results in violation of Part 91, the 
rules, or this Article.

2. A SESC Permit shall be issued only if the following conditions are met:

a. A SESC Plan has been submitted for review with the SESC Permit application and approved by the MEA.

b. Any required fees or bonds have been received by the Township.

3. All SESC Permits shall be issued for a period of one (1) year and may be renewed annually.

4. Earth Change Requirements

The landowner and the On-Site Responsible Party engaged in an Earth Change shall:

a. Conduct the Earth Change in a manner that will effectively reduce accelerated soil erosion and resulting off-site 
sedimentation.

b. Plan, implement and maintain acceptable SESC Measures in conformance with Part 91, the Rules and this 
Article, which effectively reduce accelerated soil erosion and off-site sedimentation.

c. Carry out the Earth Change activities in accordance with an approved SESC Plan and in compliance with all the 
requirements of the SESC Permit, Part 91, the Rules and this Article.

d. The SESC Permit must be posted on-site and clearly visible from the road. The SESC Plan must be available for 
inspection at the site of the Earth Change at all times.

D. Compliance

Full compliance with the terms of this Article and other applicable regulations shall be met by all persons.

E. Proof of Ownership

The MEA may require proof of ownership of the subject property before issuance of a SESC Permit.

F. Rules Adopted

The Township hereby adopts by reference and incorporates into this Article as if fully set forth herein the Rules adopted 
by the Department pursuant to Part 91 and duly filed with the Secretary of State. Said rules shall be available for public 
distribution at a reasonable charge and will be available for public inspection at the Township Clerk and Building 
Department offices.

G. Fee Schedule

199



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 21

All fees for administering and enforcing this Article shall be paid to the Township in accordance with a Fee Schedule 
determine by resolution of the Township Board. The Township may revise the Fee Schedule by adopting a written 
amendment to the Fee Schedule from time to time.

All fees shall be doubled if work starts without a SESC permit.

Section 4.04 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan and Permit Requirements for Minor 
Developments

A. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan Requirements

1. Any person proposing to initiate an Earth Change which meets the requirements of Section 4.03 in the Township 
shall submit a SESC Application and Plan to the MEA for review and approval.

2. The SESC Application shall be on the form supplied by the Township and shall be accompanied by three (3) copies 
of the plan drawn to a scale of 1" = 50' (one inch equals 50 feet) on a sheet of paper no smaller than eleven (11) 
inches by seventeen (17) inches and no larger than twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches.

3. The SESC Plan shall meet the requirements of Part 91.

4. If a building permit is required, the Township shall not issue the building permit to a person engaged in an Earth 
Change if the change requires a permit under Part 91 or the Rules until the MEA has issued the required state-
prescribed SESC permit for the Earth Change.

5. The SESC Plan shall include the following information:

a. Legal description of the property.

b. Site location map.

c. A soils survey or written description of the soil types of the exposed land area contemplated for the Earth 
Change.

d. Existing topography including predominant land features, and proposed changes in topography.

e. Location of all existing Waters of the State, and ponds on the site and within five hundred (500) feet of the site.

f. Description and location of the physical limits of existing and proposed buildings, pavement, and other Earth 
Changes.

g. Flow direction(s) of stormwater run-off from the site, before and after development.

h. A description and the location of all existing and proposed on-site drainage and dewatering facilities.

i. Description and location of all proposed temporary and permanent SESC Measures and removal of temporary 
SESC measures.

j. Description and location of all existing and proposed on-site stormwater management facilities, if applicable.

k. The timing and sequence of each proposed Earth Change.

l. A program proposal for the continued maintenance of all permanent SESC Measures that remain after project 
completion, including the designation of the person responsible for the maintenance. Maintenance 
responsibilities shall become part of any sales or exchange agreement for the land on which the permanent 
SESC Measures are located.

6. SESC Permit Application; Designated Agent; Meeting with Soil Erosion Control Agent

200



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 22

a. A landowner or Designated Agent shall submit a SESC Permit Application to the MEA. Copies of the SESC 
Permit Application containing the state-prescribed information are available at the Township Offices.

b. The SESC Permit Application shall be signed and dated by the landowner or Designated Agent. If the 
landowner is a corporation, the name and title of the authorized corporate representative shall be included.

c. If a Designated Agent is signing the application for the landowner, the landowner shall either also sign the 
application or provide a letter authorizing the Designated Agent to act on his/her behalf including authority for 
the Designated Agent to designate an On-Site Responsible Party. The landowner or Designated Agent shall 
meet with the SESC Agent, if requested, to ensure that the SESC Plan meets the provisions of Part 91, the Rules 
and this Article.

B. Review Procedures and Standards

1. The SESC Agent shall 1) approve, 2) approve with conditions, or 3) deny the SESC Permit following a review of 
the SESC Permit Application and Plan. A decision shall be made within ten (10) working days of receipt of a 
complete SESC Permit Application and Plan.

2. The SESC Agent shall review SESC Plans to ensure compliance with the following standards:

a. Cutting, filling and grading shall be minimized and the natural topography of the site shall be preserved to the 
maximum possible extent.

b. Sediment resulting from accelerated soil erosion shall be trapped and retained on the site through the use of 
effective sediment control measures.

c. Seeding, mulching, establishment of vegetative cover, or other permanent soil erosion control measures for all 
disturbed land areas shall be completed within five (5) calendar days following the completion of the Earth 
Change.

d. Temporary SESC measures shall be installed before or on commencement of the earth change activity and shall 
be maintained on a daily basis.

e. Temporary SESC measures shall be removed after permanent SESC measures are in place and the area is 
stabilized.

f. The area shall be stabilized with permanent SESC measures under approved standards as prescribed by R 
323.1710.

g. If it is not possible to permanently stabilize a disturbed area after an Earth Change has been completed, or if 
significant earth change activity ceases, then all temporary SESC measures shall be maintained until permanent 
SESC measures are in place and the area is stabilized.

h. Stormwater infiltration into the ground shall be encouraged through the design and location of swales, yards, 
buildings, and paved areas.

i. Diversion of stormwater run-off to adjacent properties which increases the volume, rate of discharge, or 
pollutants shall be prohibited unless approval from the affected property owners has been obtained in the form 
of a document recordable with the Oakland County Register of Deeds.

Section 4.05 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan Requirements for Major 
Developments

A. Pre-Application Conference

A pre-application conference may be requested by the landowner prior to the submittal of a SESC Plan. The pre-
application conference shall be held with the MEA and/or his/her designee. The purpose of the pre-application 
conference is to provide information and guidance that will assist the landowner in preparing the required plan.

201



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 23

B. Construction Drawings and Specifications

1. Submittal Requirements.

Following approval of any site plan, final preliminary plat or final planned unit development, construction drawings 
and specifications shall be submitted.

2. Approval Responsibilities.

A building or construction permit for a Major Development shall not be issued unless and until the construction 
drawings and specifications are found to meet the standards of this Article and have been approved by the MEA and 
the Township Engineer. All applicable requirements of State and County agencies shall also be met and proof of 
necessary permits shall be presented to the MEA.

3. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Requirements

SESC Plans for a Major Development shall be included in the construction drawings. A building or construction 
permit for a Major Development shall not be issued unless and until the construction drawings and specifications are 
reviewed by the MEA and all requirements of Part 91, the Rules, and this Article are met.

C. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan Requirements

1. Plan Organization and Presentation.

a. Through maps, reports, illustrations, and calculations, the SESC Plan shall display the required information in a 
clear and logical sequence.

b. The SESC Plan must be sufficiently detailed to specify the type, location, and size of soil erosion and 
sedimentation control measures. Construction drawings and specifications are not required at the plan review 
stage.

c. If it is proposed that a parcel be developed in two or more phases, the SESC Plan shall be prepared and 
submitted for the total project unless a waiver has been approved by the MEA.

2. Plan Preparation.

The SESC Plan shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer, registered landscape architect, registered land 
surveyor, and/or registered architect. Other persons and professionals may assist in the preparation of the plan.

3. Scale for Mapping.

The SESC Plan shall be drawn to a scale of one inch equal to fifty feet (1 inch = 50 feet) for property less than three 
(3) acres and one inch equal to one hundred feet (1 inch = 100 feet) for property three (3) acres or more in size. 
Sheet size shall be at least twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches.

4. Required Information: Identification and Description.

The SESC Plan shall meet the requirements of Part 91 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 
1994 PA 451, MCL Rule 323.1703, et seq, and contain all of the following information:

a. Landowner’s name, mailing address, and telephone number.

b. Common description of property and complete legal description.

c. Dimensions of land, total acreage, and net acreage (total acreage minus rights-of-way).

d. Existing zoning and zoning of all adjacent properties.

202



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 24

e. Written description of the proposed land use and the name of the proposed development.

f. Location and size of existing and proposed lots, buildings, structures and pavement.

g. Name and address of any professional architect, landscape architect, wetland specialist, engineer, or planner 
responsible for the preparation of the SESC Plan.

h. Proof of ownership of the property, as well as any off-site easements for stormwater management.

i. Title block, scale, northpoint, and date of submission with revisions noted (month, day and year).

5. Required Information: Existing Conditions.

The following information describing existing site conditions is required:

a. A site location and vicinity map at a scale of not less than one inch equal to two thousand feet (1 inch = 2000 
feet) including the approximate boundaries of the small watershed within which the site is located. Maps are 
available for reference at Orion Township offices.

b. Topography on the site and within one hundred (100) feet of the site at two (2) foot contour intervals, 
referenced to a U.S. Geological Survey benchmark.

c. Predominate land features on or within one hundred (100) feet of the site.

d. Soils with a high infiltration rate, including soil map units 14B, 14C, 15B, 15C, 15E, 35A, 62B, 62C, and 63A, 
as shown on the soil survey maps of Oakland County, published by the U.S. Soil Conservation Service.

e. Location and flow direction of all waters of the state and ponds on the site and within five hundred (500) feet of 
the site, including permanent and intermittent features.

f. Entry points where stormwater run-off and waters of the state enter the site from off-site locations, with arrows 
indicating the direction of the flow.

g. Outlet point and drainage area boundaries for all waters of the state on the site and within one hundred (100) 
feet of the site.

h. Location of wetlands on the site, based upon the National Wetland Inventory maps (available for reference in 
Township offices), soil survey maps (poorly drained soils, very poorly drained soils, and other hydric soils), and 
field inspection.

i. Location of any existing storm drains, ditches, swales, or other stormwater management facilities.

6. Required Information – Proposed Conditions.

a. Proposed changes to the land surface and existing vegetative cover, including delineation of areas to be cut and 
filled. Final contours at two (2) foot contour intervals shall be provided.

b. Flow routes with directional arrows for stormwater run-off from both the 10-year storm frequency event and the 
100-year storm frequency event.

c. Proposed outlet points and associated drainage area boundaries.

d. The receiving watercourses for stormwater run-off, including but not limited to lakes, streams, wetlands, road 
drains, and county drains, whether located on-site or off-site.

e. A description of the location, type and size of stormwater management facilities and measures, including 
facilities for the conveyance, infiltration, and/or storage of stormwater run-off.

203



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 25

f. A plan and timetable for the staging of site grading and preparation activities.

g. Description, location, and scheduling the installation and removal of temporary and permanent SESC measures, 
including but not limited to sediment traps, sediment basins, diversion structures, stone filters around storm 
drain inlets, filter fabric, straw bale berms, seeding and vegetative cover.

h. Description and proposed location of all temporary and permanent stormwater management measures, including 
facilities for the conveyance, infiltration, and/or storage of run-off. The benefits of stormwater management 
facilities for water quality and/or flood control shall be indicated. The flow rate at all points of discharge from 
any conveyance or storage facility shall be indicated.

i. Expected alterations of wetlands and watercourses, including expected changes in the type of vegetation and 
water level.

j. Listing of activities proposed to maintain soil erosion and sedimentation control measures.

D. Plan Submission

1. Two (2) copies of the SESC Plan, required under Section 4.03.2(B), shall be submitted to the Township Clerk. 
Copies shall be distributed to the Building Department, Engineer, and/or other reviewers by the Clerk, as 
appropriate.

2. For all Major Developments, the landowner shall submit a SESC Permit Application and Plan to the Township 
Clerk at the time that the construction drawings are submitted.

3. Compliance with the requirements of this Article does not eliminate the need for the landowner to obtain necessary 
and required permits and approvals from county and state agencies, including, but not limited to:

a. Drainage approvals from the Oakland County Drain Commissioner;

b. Road drainage approvals from the Road Commission for Oakland County;

c. Wetlands, dam construction, inland lakes and streams, and flood plan permits from the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality,

E. Review Procedures

1. The SESC Agent shall approve, disapprove, or require modification to an application for a SESC Permit within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the filing of a complete Permit Application. A complete application includes the 
completed application, plans and required fees. The SESC Agent shall notify an applicant of approval. If an 
application is disapproved, then the SESC Agent shall advise the applicant of its reasons for disapproval and any 
conditions required for approval. The SESC Agent need not notify an applicant of approval or disapproval by mail if 
the applicant is given written notification of the determination in person. A permit given to the applicant in person 
constitutes approval.

2. Upon determination that a Permit Application has met all the requirements of Part 91, the Rules and this Article, the 
SESC Agent shall issue a Permit for the proposed Earth Change on a form that contains State-prescribed information 
as well as that prescribed by the Township.

F. Review Fees

The Township Board shall establish fees and escrow requirements by resolution. A copy of the current resolution 
establishing such fees shall be attached to this Ordinance as an appendix.

G. Standards for Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan Approval

204



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 26

SESC measures, whether on-site or off-site, shall be designed, constructed, and maintained to prevent flooding and 
protect water quality.

1. Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control.

a. Cutting, filling and grading shall be minimized and the natural topography of the site shall be preserved to the 
maximum possible extent, except where specific findings demonstrate that major alterations will still meet the 
purposes and requirements of this Article.

b. Development shall be staged to keep the exposed areas of soil as small as practicable.

c. SESC measures shall be installed between the disturbed area and any Waters of the State, ponds; or roadways 
on or near the site.

d. Sediment resulting from accelerated soil erosion shall be removed from run-off water before that water leaves 
the site.

e. Temporary and permanent SESC measures designed and constructed for the conveyance of water around, 
through, or away from the site shall be designed to limit the water flow to a non-erosive velocity.

f. Temporary SESC measures shall be removed after permanent SESC measures have been implemented and the 
site is permanently stabilized. All sites shall be stabilized with permanent SESC measures.

g. If lakes, ponds, creeks, streams, or wetlands are located on or near the site, SESC measures which divert run-off 
and trap sediment must be provided at strategic locations. Straw bale berms may be used as temporary 
stormwater diversion structures, but will not be considered sufficient for trapping sediment. The use of sediment 
basins, filter fabric, vegetated buffer strips, and rock filters in lieu of straw bale berms shall be strongly 
encouraged. Other measures may be required if reasonably determined to be necessary to protect Waters of the 
State.

h. If it is not possible to permanently stabilize a disturbed area after an Earth Change has been completed or when 
significant Earth Change activity ceases, temporary SESC measures shall be maintained until permanent SESC 
measures are installed and the area is permanently stabilized.

i. Permanent SESC measures for all slopes, channels, ditches, or any disturbed land area shall be completed 
within five (5) calendar days after final grading or the final earth change has been completed.

j. It is recommended that a twenty-five (25) foot vegetated buffer strip be created or retained along the edge of all 
Waters of the State and ponds.

k. SESC measures shall be maintained on a daily basis to ensure proper functioning.

l. Permit Application shall be complete and comply with the provisions of Part 91, the Rules and this Article.

2. Earth Change requirements; time; sediment removal; design installation, and removal of temporary or permanent 
control measures; Standards and Specifications (see R 323.1708 and 1709 and 1710)

a. A person shall design, construct and complete Earth Change activities in a manner that limits the exposed area 
of any disturbed land for the shortest possible period of time as determined by the MEA.

b. A person shall remove sediments caused by accelerated soil erosion from runoff waters before it leaves the site 
of the Earth Change.

c. A person shall design a temporary or permanent SESC measure that is designed and constructed for the 
conveyance of water around, through or from, the soil moving area to limit the water flow to a non-erosive 
velocity.

205



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 27

d. A person shall complete permanent soil erosion control measures for all slopes, channels, ditches or any 
disturbed land area as approved in the timing sequence schedule but not later than five (5) calendar days after 
final grading or the final earth change activates have been completed. A person shall install and maintain 
temporary and permanent SESC measures in accordance with the standards and specifications of all the 
following:

i. Those formally adopted by the Township.

ii. The Department, and

iii. The product manufacturer.

e. If a conflict exists between standards and specifications referenced in this section, then the MEA shall 
determine which specifications are appropriate for the project.

Section 4.06 – Waivers

A. A SESC permit is not required for any of the following:

1. A beach nourishment project permitted under part 325 of Act 451 of the Public Acts of 1994, as amended, being 
§324.32501 et seq. of the Michigan Compiled Laws

2. Earth changes associated with well locations, surface facilities, flowlines or access roads relating to oil or gas 
exploration and development activities regulated under Part 615, Supervisor of Wells, of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451 being MCL 324.61501 et seq., provided the permit application to drill 
and operate contains a Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan that is approved by the Department under Part 615. 
However, those earth changes shall conform to the same standards as required for a Permit under Part 91, the Rules 
and this Article.

3. Earth changes associated with a metallic mineral mining activity regulated under a mining and reclamation plan that 
contains soil erosion and sedimentation control provisions approved by the Department under Part 631, Reclamation 
of Mining Lands, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, being MCL 324.63101 
et seq.

a. As used in this section “mining” does not include the removal of clay, gravel, sand, peat, or topsoil as stated in 
Part 91 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, MCL 324.9115, et seq.

4. Normal road and driveway maintenance, such as grading or leveling, that does not increase the width or length of 
the road or driveway and that will not contribute sediment to lakes or streams.

5. An Earth Change of a minor nature that is stabilized within twenty-four (24) hours of the initial earth disturbance 
and that will not contribute sediment to lakes or streams.

6. Installation of oil, gas, and mineral wells under permit from the Supervisor of Wells to be in compliance with the 
conditions of Part 91.

7. Gardening, if the natural elevation area is not raised.

8. Seawall maintenance that does not exceed one hundred (100) square feet.

B. The MEA may grant a permit waiver for an Earth Change after receiving a signed affidavit from the landowner stating 
that the Earth Change will disturb less than two hundred twenty-five (225) square feet and that the Earth Change will not 
contribute sediment to lakes or streams.

C. Exemptions provided in subsections A and B of this Section shall not be construed as exemptions from enforcement 
procedures under Part 91 or the Rules, if the activities exempted by subsections A and B cause or result in a violation of 
Part 91, the Rules, or this Article.

206



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 28

Section 4.07 – Performance Guarantees, Inspections, and Maintenance

A. Performance Guarantees

1. After SESC Application and Plan approval, but prior to the beginning of construction, the landowner shall be 
required to post a cash escrow, certified check, or other acceptable form of performance security in an amount 
determined by the Township.

2. After determination by the MEA that all permanent soil erosion and sedimentation measures are installed in 
compliance with the approved SESC plan and the site is permanently stabilized, the security shall be released.

3. In the event that the landowner fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the SESC Permit; or fails to comply 
with the provisions of Part 91, the Rules, or this Article; or fails to implement the approved SESC Plan, the SESC 
Agent may order such work as necessary to provide for effective soil erosion and sediment control. The landowner 
or person issuing the irrevocable letter of credit or making a cash bond shall continue to be firmly bound under a 
continuing obligation for the payment of all necessary costs and expenses, including legal, that the Township incurs 
in causing any and all work to be done to comply with the provisions of Part 91, the Rules or this Article. In the case 
of a cash bond, the SESC Agent shall authorize the Township to refund any unused portion to the person who posted 
the bond.

B. Maintenance

All soil erosion and sedimentation control measures shall be maintained in proper working condition by the landowner. 
If, after written notice, SESC measures are not properly maintained, the Township may withhold any other inspections, 
retain bond and/or escrow funds, revoke and/or refuse issuance of occupancy permits, and/or perform the necessary 
maintenance and assess the cost to the owner. The cost of the work shall be a lien on the property, or pro-rated against 
the beneficial users of the property, and may be placed on the tax roll and collected as ordinary taxes in accordance with 
Part 91, the Rules, and this Article. The financing requirement shall be stated in the maintenance agreement. 
Additionally, the Township may institute appropriate court action to prohibit further activities upon the site.

C. Notification

If MEA determines that the soil erosion and sedimentation onto adjacent properties or the Waters of the State has or will 
reasonably occur from land in violation of Part 91, the Rules, or this Article, the MEA may seek to enforce Part 91, the 
Rules, or this Article by notifying the person who owns the land, by mail, with return receipt requested, of its 
determination that a violation has occurred. The notice shall contain a description of the violation and what must be done 
to remedy the violation and specify a time to comply with Part 91, the Rules, and this Article.

D. Notice of Completion; Certificate of Completion

Upon satisfactory execution of the approved SESC plans and permit conditions and other requirements imposed under 
this Article, the Permitee shall file a written notice of completion with the MEA. The MEA shall make a final inspection 
within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of completion and shall issue a certificate or letter of completion and release of 
bond if the landowner has satisfactorily complied with the SESC Plan, SESC Permit conditions, Part 91, the Rules, and 
this Article. If the project is to be completed in different phases, the landowner may submit a written notice of 
completion for a project phase and the MEA may issue separate certificates of completion and authorize a proportionate 
release of a cash bond for each completed project phase if separate SESC Permits are issued for each phase.

207



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 29

Section 4.08 – Violations and Enforcement

A. Effect of Approval on Remedies

The approval or disapproval of any SESC Plan shall not have any effect on any remedy of any person at law or in equity, 
provided that, where it is shown that there is a wrongful failure to comply with Part 91, the Rules and this Article, there 
shall be a rebuttable presumption that the violation was the proximate cause of the damage to the land of any person 
bringing suit.

B. Liability for Township Expenses for Violations

Any person violating the provisions of Part 91, the Rules, or this Article shall become liable to the Township for any 
expense or loss or damage occasioned by the Township by reason of such violation.

C. Circuit Court Action

In addition to municipal civil infraction penalties which may be imposed, the Township may institute circuit court action 
to obtain injunctive relief for a violation of Part 91, the Rules, or this Article. A violation of Part 91, the Rules, or this 
Article shall be deemed a nuisance per se and shall be abated by order of the court.

D. Stop Work Order

Upon notice of the MEA that activity which requires a SESC Permit is being conducted without such permit, such 
activity shall be immediately stopped. The stop work order shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the 
property involved, or to the person conducting the activity.

E. Enforcement

1. Enforcement

The MEA or SESC Agents may issue a municipal civil infraction citation, Stop Work Order or revoke a permit 
based upon its findings that there is a violation of Part 91, the Rules or this Article, or a finding that there is a 
violation of a permit or an approved SESC Plan. (See R 323.1712)

2. Notice of Determination

If the MEA determines that soil erosion or sedimentation onto adjacent properties or the Waters of the State has or 
will occur from land in violation of Part 91, the Rules or this Article, the MEA may seek to enforce Part 91, the 
Rules, or this Article by notifying the landowner through a notice of violation served in person or by mail. The 
notice shall contain a description of the violation and what must be done to remedy the violation and shall specify a 
time to comply with Part 91, the Rules and this Article. (See R 324.9117)

3. Compliance; Time

Within five (5) days after a notice of violation has been issued under Section 3.08.6(B) of this Article, a person who 
owns land subject to Part 91, the Rules or this Article shall implement and maintain SESC Measures in conformance 
with Part 91, the Rules or this Article. (See R 324.9118)

4. Entry upon Land; Construction; Implementation and Maintenance of Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 
Measures; Cost

Not sooner than five (5) days after notice of violation has been served in person or mailed under Section 4.08 of this 
Article, if the condition of the land, in the opinion of the MEA, may result in or contribute to soil erosion or 
sedimentation of adjacent properties or to the Waters of the State, and if soil erosion and sedimentation control 
measures in conformance with Part 91, the Rules, this Article are not in place, the MEA, or its designee, may enter 
upon the land and construct, implement and maintain soil erosion and sedimentation control measures in 
conformance with Part 91, the Rules and this Article. However, the MEA shall not expend more that $10,000 for the 
cost of the work, materials, labor and administration without prior written notice in the Notice of Determination 

208



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 30

provided in Section 4.08 of this Article to the landowner that an expenditure of more than $10,000 may be made. If 
more than $10,000 is to be expended under this section, than the work shall not begin until at least 10 days after the 
notice of violation has been mailed.

5. Reimbursement of Township Expenses

All expenses incurred by the MEA under this Article to construct, implement and maintain SESC Measures to bring 
land into compliance with Part 91, the Rules and this Article shall be reimbursed to the MEA by the lien. (See R 
324.9120)

F. Inspection and Investigation; Interference with Administration and Enforcement

1. Right of Entry and Inspection

An agent appointed by the Department or the MEA may enter at all reasonable times in or upon any private or 
public property for the purpose of inspecting and investigating conditions or practices that may be in violation of 
Part 91, the Rules or this Article.

2. Interference with Administration and Enforcement

No person shall unlawfully hinder, oppose or resist the SESC Agent in the discharge of the administration and 
enforcement of Part 91, the Rules or this Article. No person shall remove, mutilate or conceal any notice posted by 
the SESC Agent except by written permission of the SESC Agent.

G. Appeal Procedures

1. Appeal of Permit Decision; Informal Hearing

If the landowner or Designated Agent is aggrieved by a permit decision made by the SESC Agent, a written appeal 
including the reason for the appeal referencing applicable sections of this Article; a photocopy of any written action; 
and the required fees may be filed with the MEA within 14 calendar days of that decision. If an appeal is filed, a 
hearing will be scheduled within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the filing. However, an appeal 
decision cannot waive or conflict with any requirements set forth in Part 91, the rules, and this Article. During this 
period the permittee must not allow any further discharges of sediment onto adjoining properties or into waters of 
the state.

2. Appeal of Notice of Violation; Informal Hearing

If the landowner or On-Site Authorized Agent is aggrieved by a compliance and enforcement action made by the 
Soil Erosion Control Agent pursuant to Section 4.08. of this Ordinance, a written appeal including the reason for the 
appeal referencing applicable sections of the Ordinance; a photocopy of any written action; and the required fees 
may be filed with the MEA within 24 hours of receiving a notice of violation. If an appeal is filed, a hearing will be 
scheduled within five (5) business days of the date of the filing. However, an appeal decision cannot waive or 
conflict any requirements set forth within Part 91 and the Rules.

The hearing will allow the landowner or On-Site Authorized Agent opportunity to submit additional information or 
re-emphasize previously submitted data. The MEA will then review the information and take under advisement any 
other information received before making a final decision within two (2) days of the informal hearing, and forward 
this final decision to the landowner or On-Site Authorized Agent in person or by mail.

3. Municipal Enforcing Agency Decisions; Standard of Review

a. The MEA shall sustain the decision of the SESC Agent unless it is found, by clear and convincing evidence that 
the SESC Agent’s decision:

i. Was based upon a mistake(s) of fact or law and upon the correction of that mistake(s) it is found that there 
is no violation; or,

209



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 31

ii. Was based upon a mistake(s) of fact or law and upon the correction of that mistake(s) it is found that there 
is a different violation; or,

iii. Constitutes an abuse of discretion and no factual or legal argument provides any support for the SESC 
Agent’s position.

4. All decisions, whether oral or written, must include a brief recap of testimony and evidence presented. The decision 
of the MEA shall be binding upon the SESC Agent and the Landowner, Designated Agent and/or On-Site 
Responsible Party.

Article 5 – Penalties and Enforcement

A. Municipal Civil Infraction/Payment of Fine. Any person, firm, or corporation violating a provision of this Ordinance, 
upon an admission or finding of responsibility for such violation, shall be deemed responsible for a municipal civil 
infraction, and shall pay a fine.

B. Costs. Except as otherwise provided herein, the person, firm, or corporation ordered to pay a fine under Subsection (A) 
shall be ordered by the District Court Judge or Magistrate to pay costs of not less than Nine Dollars ($9) or more than 
Five Hundred Dollars ($500), which costs may include all expenses, direct and indirect, to which the Township has been 
put in connection with the violation of this Ordinance up to the entry of the Court’s judgment or order to pay fines and 
costs.

C. Additional Writs and Orders. A person who admits or is found responsible for violation of this Ordinance shall 
comply with any order, writ or judgment issued by the District Court to enforce this Ordinance.

D. Default on Payment of Fines and Costs. A default in payment of a civil fine, costs, or damages or expenses ordered 
under Subsection (A) or (B) or an installment of the fine, costs, or damages as allowed by the Court, may be collected by 
the Township by a means authorized for the enforcement of a judgment.

E. Failure to Comply with Judgment or Order. If a defendant fails to comply with an order or judgment pursuant to this 
section within the time prescribed by the Court, the Court may proceed under Subsection (G).

F. Failure to Appear in Court. A defendant who fails to answer a citation or notice to appear in Court for a violation of 
this Ordinance is guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500) plus costs 
and/or imprisonment not to exceed ninety (90) days.

G. Civil Contempt.

1. If a defendant defaults in the payment of a civil fine, or other damages or expenses, or an installment as ordered by 
the District Court, upon motion of the Township or upon its own motion, the Court may require the defendant to 
show cause why the defendant should not be held in civil contempt and may issue a summons, order to show cause, 
or bench warrant of arrest for the defendant’s appearance.

2. If a corporation or an association is ordered to pay a civil fine, costs, or damages or expenses, the individuals 
authorized to make disbursements shall pay the fine, costs, damages or expenses, and their failure to do so shall be 
civil contempt unless they make the showing required in this subsection.

3. Unless the defendant shows that the default was not attributable to an intentional refusal to obey the order of the 
Court or to a failure on their part to make a good faith effort to obtain the funds required for payment, the Court 
shall find that the default constitutes a civil contempt and may order the defendant committed until all or a specified 
part of the amount due is paid.

4. If it appears that the default in the payment of a fine, costs, or damages or expenses does not constitute civil 
contempt, the Court may enter an order allowing the defendant additional time for payment, reducing the amount of 
each installment, or revoking the fine, costs, damages or expenses.

5. The term of imprisonment on civil contempt for nonpayment of a civil fine, costs, or damages or expenses shall be 
specified in the order of commitment and shall not exceed one day for each Thirty Dollars ($30) due. A person 

210



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 32

committed for nonpayment of a civil fine, costs, or damages or expenses shall be given credit toward payment for 
each day of imprisonment and each day of detention in default of recognizance before judgment at the rate of Thirty 
Dollars ($30) per day.

6. A defendant committed to imprisonment for civil contempt for nonpayment of a fine, costs, damages or expenses 
shall not be discharged until one of the following occurs:

a. Defendant is credited with an amount due pursuant to Subsection (G)(5) above.

b. The amount due is collected through execution of process or otherwise.

c. The amount due is satisfied pursuant to a combination of subdivisions G(6)(a) and (b) above.

7. The civil contempt shall be purged upon discharge of the defendant pursuant to Section G(6).

H. Lien Against Land, Building, or Structure.

If a defendant does not pay a civil fine or costs or installment ordered under Subsection (A) or (B) within thirty (30) days 
after the date upon which the payment is due for a violation of this Ordinance involving the use or occupation of land or 
a building or other structure, the Township may obtain a lien against the land, building, or structure involved in the 
violation by recording a copy of the court order requiring payment of the fine and costs with the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds. The court order shall not be recorded unless a legal description of the property is incorporated in or 
attached to the court order.

1. The lien is effective immediately upon recording of the court order with the Register of Deeds.

2. The court order recorded with the Register of Deeds shall constitute the pendency of the lien. In addition, a written 
notice of the lien shall be sent by Orion Township by first class mail to the owner of record of the land, building, or 
structure at the owner’s last known address.

3. The lien may be enforced and discharged by Orion Township in the manner prescribed by its Charter, by the 
General Property Tax Act, Act No. 206 of the Public Acts of 1893, being Section 211.1 et seq., of the Michigan 
Compiled Laws, or by an ordinance duly passed by the Township. However, property is not subject to sale under 
Section 60 of Act No. 206 of the Public Acts of 1893, being Section 211.60 of the Michigan Compiled Laws, for 
non-payment of a civil fine or costs or an installment ordered under Subsection (A) or (B) unless the property is also 
subject to sale under Act No. 206 of the Public Acts of 1893 for delinquent property taxes.

4. A lien created under this section has priority over any other lien unless one or more of the following apply:

a. The other lien is a lien for taxes or special assessments.
b. The other lien is created before the effective date of the amended ordinance that added this section.
c. Federal law provides the other lien has priority.
d. The other lien is recorded before the lien under this section is recorded.

5. The Township may institute an action in a court of competent jurisdiction for the collection of the fines and costs 
imposed by a court order for a violation of this Ordinance. However, an attempt by the Township to collect the fines 
or costs does not invalidate or waived the lien upon the land, building, or structure.

6. A lien provided for by this subsection shall not continue for a period longer than five (5) years after a copy of the 
court order imposing a fine or cost is recorded unless within that time an action to enforce the lien is commenced.

Article 6 – Repealer

Ordinance No. 92 of the Charter Township of Orion, and all other ordinances or parts of ordinances which are inconsistent or 
in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict.

211



Ordinance No. 139 Stormwater Mgt. and Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control

Clerical Revision 07/16/09
Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion Ord. 139 - 33

Article 7 – Severability

The various parts, sections and clauses of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. If any part, sentence, paragraph, 
section or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Ordinance 
shall not be affected.

Article 8 – Effective Date

This Ordinance shall be published in full in a newspaper of general circulation in the Charter Township of Orion, qualified 
under State law to publish legal notices, and shall become effective upon publication, as provided by law.

Article 9 – Adoption

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Orion at a 
meeting thereof duly called and held on the 2nd day of October, 2006, and ordered to be given publication in the manner 
prescribed by the Charter of the Township of Orion.

212



    
 

V4.04-08-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor 

Meeting Date: October 18, 2021 

Memo Date: October 13, 2021 

Subject: Schedule Budget Workshop 

 

REQUEST 
The request is to convene the Township Board of Trustees for a 2022 Budget Workshop.  

REASON 
To receive presentations from the Township Supervisor and Department Directors regarding the preliminary 2022 
Budget.   

PROCESS 
A Doodle Poll was sent to the Township Board to determine availability for a budget workshop. The date and time will 
be determined at the meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
Schedule a Budget Workshop with the Board of Trustees based on the Doodle Poll results.  
 

 

 

☐ Consent ☒ Pending 

213



OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Orion Township Substation

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary

Time period:  10-04-2021 to 10-10-2021

21-206315         12:08 AM          10/05/2021 - Orion Township – Traffic Stop – 
Methamphetamine Possession 

While on patrol in the area of S. Lapeer and Clarkston Rd. deputies observed a vehicle traveling 
northbound in the southbound lanes.  Deputies effected a traffic stop and contacted the driver.  
As deputies were speaking with the driver, the passenger began acting erratically. Deputies 
asked the driver if they could search the vehicle and the driver agreed.  Both the driver and 
passenger were safely removed from the vehicle. During the search of the vehicle, deputies 
located suspected drugs and drug paraphernalia.   The driver was issued a traffic citation and 
released at the scene pending court date.  The passenger, a 33-year-old Davidson resident, was 
arrested on the charge of Possession of Methamphetamine and transported to Oakland County 
Jail without incident.

UPDATE: The Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office authorized the complaint for Possession of 
Controlled Substance. The warrant was sworn to in front of Magistrate Soma from the 52nd 3rd 
District Court. The subject was arraigned and given a $5000, 10% bond. 

Calls for service: 347
Felony arrests:    1
Misdemeanor arrests:   2
Accidents:    16

214



21-206423          2:35AM        10/05/2021          Larceny from Vehicle - Report

Deputies were dispatched to Parakeet Hill Dr for a larceny from vehicle report. The owner of 
the vehicle stated he parked his vehicle in the alley behind his residence on 10/3/2021.  When 
he returned to his vehicle on 10/04/2021 he noticed that his cell phone had been stolen.  There 
was no damage done to the vehicle.  Detectives will be continuing the investigation.

21-207637          2:44PM           10/06/2021      Retail Fraud 

Deputies were dispatched to 4872 Baldwin Rd (KOHLS) for a retail fraud complaint.  An 
employee stated that on 10/04/2021 a male subject entered the store and proceeded to the 
perfume counter, selected 6 bottles of perfume placed them into a bag. The subject proceeds 
towards the exit passing all points of purchase making no attempt to pay for the items.  Suspect 
is currently unknown.  All information was gathered and turned over to detectives for follow 
up. Investigation continues.

 21-208445         1:13PM             10/07/2021       Check Fraud 

Deputies received a walk-in complaint at the Orion Twp Substation for a fraud complaint.   The 
Orion Township resident received an email asking him if he wanted to be a secret shopper.  The 
victim responded and was advised that he would be receiving several checks in the mail.  After 
receiving the checks, he was to cash them and obtain several VISA gift cards totaling the 
amount of the check.  After getting the gift cards he was told to photograph the gift cards front 
and back and text the pictures to the unknown suspect.  After completing this several times, he 
believed that he may be a victim of a scam.  All information was gathered and turned over to 
detectives, investigation continues.  

21-209141 9:41AM 10/08/2021 Credit Card Fraud

Deputies were dispatched to 465 Brown Rd. (Menards) for an Illegal Use of Credit
Card report. Management reported that on 10/07/2021 at 9:30 pm two black male suspects 
entered the store. The suspects filled two shopping carts with merchandise and began checking 
out. The suspects were able to make 3 transactions and attempted a fourth, but employees 
became suspicious. Employees noticed that the suspects were swiping a Visa credit card, but 
the cashier observed it was displaying as a Menards chip card in the system. Management 
approached the suspects at the register while transaction four was in progress and requested 
his ID. The suspects ran out of the store dropping two (suspected fraudulent cloned) Visa cards. 
Management reported Menards’ West Bloomfield Store encountered these same two 
individuals at their store at approximately 8:30PM on 0/07/2021. Deputies obtained statements 

215



from employees and video of the suspects. It was determined that the suspects fled in a White 
Chevy Equinox with an undisclosed amount of stolen merchandise.

21-210670           8:37AM            10/10/2021             MDOP Vehicle

Deputies were dispatched to the 800 block of Markdale for a MDOP report.  A 42-year-old 
resident stated that he parked his vehicle in his driveway on 10/09/2021.  On 10/10/2021 he 
received a call from his father telling him that the back window of his vehicle was broken out.  
Upon closer inspection the victim also noticed damage to the front fender of his vehicle.  All 
information was collected and turned over to detectives.  Investigation continues. 

Everyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to contact 
the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or our Dispatch 
Center at 248 858-4911 for crimes in-progress. Tipsters can remain anonymous.

216



      
  Orion Township Fire Department 

Interoffice Memorandum

Date:  October 13, 2021

To: Orion Township Board of Trustees 
         

From:
John Pender
Assistant Fire Chief  

Subject: Fire Department Call Volume/Significant Incidents  

Orion Township Call Volume
September 29, 2021-October 13, 2021

Medical Calls- 97                                    Mutual Aid’s-
Non- Medical Calls- 49                              Received- 2
Total Call Volume- 146                                    Given-3
Year to Date- 2705
Transports (pre-ALS)- 299
Transports YTD- (ALS)- 716
Transport Cost Recovery YTD- $294,360.35

Fire Department Significant Incidents
 Massive flooding event caused one call for FD service. Sink hole at a 

residence. 
  Structure Fire- Upon arrival crews had smoke showing. Fire crews 

determined that the fire was in the kitchen area of the home on the 
first floor. An attack crew made entry through the front door and 
made an aggressive interior attack on the fire. Fire was extinguished 
quickly with minimal damage to the home. Resident was treated and 
transported to hospital for possible smoke inhalation. No other 
injuries. Fire cause is under investigation with the Prevention 
Division. 

 Multiple car PI accident. 4 vehicles involved. One passenger needed 
to be extricated from the vehicle. 

 Hazardous Materials Team Leader Lt. Kyle Hagan was deployed to 
Auburn Hills for an incident. Lt. Hagan assisted in leading his team in 
mitigating the incident.    

217



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Report Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor 

Meeting Date: October 18, 2021 

Memo Date: October 13, 2021 

Subject: Community Survey 

 

REQUEST 
The 2021 Community Survey launched today, October 18, 2021. It will be open until the end of the year. All Township 
residents and business owners are encouraged to participate so we can capture this important feedback.  The survey can 
be accessed online at www.oriontownship.org/survey. Printed copies are available at Township Hall, the Orion Center, 
and the Orion Township Public Library. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
Receive and file. 
 

 

 

218

www.oriontownship.org/survey

	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
	3. CITIZEN OF THE MONTH
	4. PRESENTATION - Flooding Response
	5. APPROVAL OF BILLS
	Board Bill Cover Sheet

	6. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
	7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	8. CONSENT AGENDA
	8.A. Minutes - Regular Meeting, October 4, 2021
	Minutes, BOT oct 4, 2021

	8.B. Notice of Solicitation - Christ the Redeemer Community Outreach Project
	101821 Agenda Item Summary Christ the Redeemer
	Christ the redeemer

	8.C. Street Closure - Bald Mountain Road
	101821 Agenda Item Summary street closure bald mountain
	street closure

	8.D. Parks & Paths Bylaw Changes
	10142021 agenda summary parks and paths bylaw change
	Parks  Paths Committee Bylaws 2021

	8.E. Create Ord. 154 Subcommittee
	10-18-21_Agenda Memo - Create Ord. 154 Subcommittee
	Orion Resolution on Moratorium Medical Marihuana Subcommittee dtd 10-14-2021 FINAL

	8.F. Purchases - ARPA
	10-18-2021_Agenda Memo - Purchases - ARPA
	Ascentis_DocuSign_THE_CHARTER_TOWNSHIP_OF_ORION 10042021
	Orion Center Sign Quote 09202021
	Orion Township Municipal Complex - Automatic Dispensers
	Quote_SIGNED
	US_QUOTE_3000101025610.1 Dell Equipment 10042021

	8.G. Purchase - ARPA - Aerial Service Truck
	Purchase - ARPA - Aerial Service Truck 1
	Orion Twp 2022 C5500 4WD Aerial

	8.H. Purchase - Facilities & Grounds Truck with Utility Crane
	Purchase - Facilities & Grounds Truck with Utility Crane
	Orion Twp 2022 TK20903 utility crane

	8.I. Purchase - Facilities & Grounds Truck with Plow
	Purchase - Facilities & Grounds Truck with Plow
	Orion Twp 2022 TK20903 plow

	8.J. Purchase - Parks & Recreation Pickup
	Purchase - Parks  Recreation Pickup
	2022 Ford Ranger
	MIDEAL CONTRACT 10.13.21

	8.K. Hire Parks & Recreation Seasonal
	8.L. Hire Firefighter
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - Firefighter - M Schaefer

	8.M. Matured, Called and Purchases of Securities & Bonds for Water/Sewer and General Accounts
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - bond purchases sales September 2021
	Bond purchases sales Sept 2021
	Robinson Monthly Commentary 10-21
	JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, Columbus, OH

	8.N. CDBG  FY 2022 Public Hearing
	10182021 Schedule 2022 CDBG Program Public Hearing memo

	8.O. Waive Permit Fees Associated with Storm Remediation
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - as of 07-29-21 NONFINANCIAL

	8.P. Updated Township Engineering Standards
	Agenda Item Summary Memo Updated Engineering Standards
	memo
	Addition to Appendix D
	Orion Township Engineering Standards Final Draft_w markups


	9. PENDING
	9.A. First Reading - PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone Request
	Agenda item request PC-2021-70 Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rezone (002)
	PC-2021-70 Grandview Lapeer Rd. Rezone memo. doc
	Application
	Public Hearing Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes
	PC-2021-70, Grandview Additional Info
	PC-2021-70, Grandview Location Map
	PC-2021-70, Grandview Owner Attorney Letter (1)
	PC-2021-70, Grandview Planners Review

	9.B. First Reading - PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone Request
	Agenda item request PC-2021-71 FD Silverbell Rezone (002)
	PC-2021-71 F&D Silverbell Rezone memo. doc
	PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone Application
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Pubic Hearing Minutes
	PC-2021-71, F & D Silverbell Planners Review
	PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Location Map

	9.C. Second Reading - Township Initiated Text Amendment to Ord. 139
	Agenda Item Summary Memo Township Initiated Text Amd. to Ord 139 second reading
	Ord.139 revised draft final (002)_formatted w markups

	9.D. Schedule Budget Workshop
	10-18-2021_Agenda Memo - Schedule Budget Workshop


	10. REPORTS
	10.A. Police/Fire Reports
	ORION WEEKLY- 10-04-2021 to 10-10-2021 (2)
	Board Incident Release 10-13-2021

	10.B. Community Survey
	10-18-2021_Agenda Memo - Community Survey


	11. PUBLIC COMMENT
	12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
	13. ADJOURNMENT

